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@ Punjab & Sind Bank
(A Government of India Undertaking)
Head Office: 21-Rajendra Place,
New Delhi-110 008,

NOTICE
Notice is hereby given that the Fourth Annual General Meeting of Shareholders of Punjab & Sind Bank will be held
at India International Centre, 40-Max Mueller Marg, Lodhi Estate, New Delhi-110003 on Monday, the 30" June, 2014
at 9.00 a.m. for transacting the following business:

Item No.

1.  To discuss, approve and adopt Audited Balance Sheet of the Bank as at 31t March 2014, Profit & Loss account
for the year on that date, the Report of the Board of Directors on the working and activities of the Bank for the
period covered by the Accounts and the Auditors’ Report on the Balance Sheet and Accounts.

2. To approve and declare final dividend for the financial year 2013-14.

3.  To elect two Directors from amongst the shareholders, other than Central Government, in respect of whom valid
nominations are received in terms of Section 9(3) (i) of The Banking Companies (Acquisition and Transfer of
Undertakings) Act, 1980 read with The Banking Regulations Act, 1949 and The Nationalised Banks (Management
& Miscellaneous Provisions) Scheme, 1980 and Punjab & Sind Bank (Shares & Meetings) Regulations, 2008 made
pursuant to Section 19 of the Act and Notification No. DBOD. No. BC. N0.46/29.39.001/ 2007-08, 47/29.39.001/
2007-08, both dated 01.11.2007 and DBOD. No. BC. No. 95/29.39.001/2010-11 dated 23.05.2011 issued by
Reserve Bank of India and to pass the following resolution:-

“RESOLVED THAT two Directors elected from amongst shareholders other than Central Government, in respect of
whom valid nominations were received, pursuant to Section 9(3)(i) of the Act read with Scheme and Regulations made
thereunder, be and are hereby appointed as the Directors of the Bank to assume office from the date following the date
of this meeting and to hold office until the completion of a period of three years from the date of such assumption.”
Notice is also hereby given that the Register of Shareholders and the Share Transfer Books of the Bank, will remain

closed from 14.06.2014 to 30.06.2014 (both days inclusive) in connection with (a) the Annual General Meeting;
and (b) to determine the entitlement of shareholders to receive final dividend declared, if any, at the Fourth AGM.

Further, the Bank has fixed Friday, May 30, 2014 as ‘Cut-off’ Date for ascertaining the shareholders who will be
entitled to participate (to nominate, contest and vote/e-vote) in the election of two shareholder directors of the Bank
and to ascertain the shareholder who will be entitled to participate in voting/e-voting on the agenda items of 4" AGM.

By Order of the Board of Directors

Place: New Delhi Jatinderbir Singh
Date: 19" May 2014 Chairman & Managing Director
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NOTES
EXPLANATORY STATEMENT:

The Explanatory Statement setting out the material facts in respect of Iltem No. 3 of the Notice regarding Election
of Directors is annexed below.

Explanatory statements setting out the material facts in respect of agenda item No. 3

The Banking Companies (Acquisition & Transfer of Undertakings) Act, 1980, inter alia, provides that where the
capital issued under Clause (C) of sub section (2 B) of Section 3 of the Act (other than to the Central Government),
is more than 16% but not more than 32% of the total paid up capital, the Shareholders would be entitled to
elect two directors from amongst themselves.

The paid up equity share capital of the Bank as on 31.03.2014 was Rs. 275.28 crores of which 81.42% is held
by the Govt. of India while 18.58% is held by others. In view of provisions in Para (Il) of Section 9(3) (i), the
Bank is required to have two directors on Board of Directors to be elected by the Shareholders from amongst
themselves. Two directors elected on 03.06.2011 from amongst the shareholders, for a period of three years,
completed their term on 02.06.2014.

The Board of Directors in their meeting dated 10.05.2014 has decided to appoint two directors from amongst
shareholders other than the Central Government, through the process of election at the Annual General Meeting
of the Bank.

A Director, so elected, shall be deemed to have assumed office from the date following that on which he/she
is elected or deemed to have been elected and will hold office for a period of three years.

APPOINTMENT OF PROXY:
A SHAREHOLDER ENTITLED TO ATTEND AND VOTE AT THE MEETING IS ENTITLED TO APPOINT A
PROXY TO ATTEND AND VOTE INSTEAD OF HIMSELF/ HERSELF AND SUCH PROXY NEED NOT BE A
SHAREHOLDER OF THE BANK.

However, the proxy so appointed will not have any right to speak at the meeting.

No person shall be appointed as a proxy who is an officer or employee of Punjab & Sind Bank as per provisions
of Punjab & Sind Bank (Shares and Meetings) Regulations, 2008.

As per the regulation 70 (vi) of Regulations, the grantor of an instrument of proxy shall not be entitled to vote
in person at the meeting to which such instrument relates.

The Proxy Form (Annexure-'D’) in order to be effective must be received at Shares Cell, Head Office Accounts
& Audit Department, 1% floor, 21-Rajendra Place, New Delhi-110 008, at least Four days before the date of the
Annual General Meeting i.e. on or before the closing hours of the Bank at 5.00 p.m. on 25.06.2014 (Wednesday)
together with the Power of Attorney or other authority, if any, under which it is signed or a copy of that Power
of Attorney or other authority certified as a true copy by a Notary Public or a Magistrate unless such Power of
Attorney or other authority has been previously deposited and registered with the Bank.

APPOINTMENT OF AN AUTHORISED REPRESENTATIVE :

No person shall be entitled to attend or vote at the meeting as a duly authorized representative of a company
or any other Body Corporate which is a shareholder of the Bank, unless a copy of the Resolution appointing
him/her as a duly authorized representative, certified to be true copy by the Chairman of the meeting at which
it was passed, shall have been deposited at Shares Cell, Head Office Accounts & Audit Department, 1 floor,
21-Rajendra Place, New Delhi-110 008 at least four days before the date of the Annual General Meeting, i.e.
on or before the closing hours of the Bank at 5.00 p.m. on 25.06.2014 (Wednesday).

No person shall be appointed as authorised representative who is an officer or employee of Punjab & Sind Bank
as per provisions of Punjab & Sind Bank (Shares and Meetings) Regulations, 2008.

REGISTRATION, ATTENDENCE SLIP AND ENTRY SLIP:

In order to facilitate the shareholders attending the meeting, Registration process will commence from 8.00 a.m.

ANNUAL REPORT 2013-14 7
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on 30.06.2014, at the venue. Shareholders are requested to be present for the meeting well in advance, to
complete the Registration formalities.

For the convenience of the shareholders, attendance slip and entry pass is annexed (Annexure-'E’) to this notice.
Shareholders/Proxy Holders/Authorised Representatives are requested to fill in, affix their signatures at the
space provided therein and surrender the same at the venue and thereafter entry slip shall be issued to them.
Proxy/Authorised Representative of a shareholder should state on the attendance slip as ‘Proxy’ or ‘Authorised
Representative’ as the case may be. Shareholders / Proxy holders / Authorised Representatives may note that
the admission to the meeting will be subject to verification / checks, as may be deemed necessary and they
are advised to carry valid proof of identity viz., Voters ID Card / Employer Identity Card / Pan Card / Passport
/ Driving license etc.

5. COMMUNICATION WITH THE SHARE TRANSFER AGENT:

Shareholders holding shares in physical form are requested to intimate changes, if any, in their Registered
Addresses, email address, bank details etc. to the Share Transfer Agent of the Bank at the following address:

Link Intime India Pvt Ltd.

Unit : Punjab & Sind Bank

44, Community Centre, 2™ Floor,

Naraina Industrial Area, Phase-l,

Near PVR Naraina,

NEW DELHI-110 028. Ph: 011 41410592, 41410593 email: delhi@linkintime.co.in

Shareholders holding shares in dematerialised form are requested to intimate the aforesaid changes only to their
depository participants.

6. CLOSURE OF BOOKS:

The Register of shareholders and the share transfer books of the Bank will remain closed from 14.06.2014 to
30.06.2014 (both days inclusive) in connection with (a) the Annual General Meeting and (b) to determine the
entitlement of shareholders to receive final dividend declared, if any, at the Fourth AGM.

7. CUT-OFF DATE FOR THE PURPOSE OF ASCERTAINMENT OF SHAREHOLDERS ENTITLED TO PARTICIPATE
IN THE ELECTION & VOTE/e-VOTE TO ELECT TWO DIRECTORS AND OTHER AGENDA ITEMS:

Those shareholders whose names appear on the Register of Shareholders/ as Beneficial owners as furnished by
NSDL/ CDSL as at the close of business hours i.e. 30.05.2014 (hereinafter referred to as the “Cut-Off Date”)
shall be entitled to participate i.e. nominate, contest and vote/e-vote in election of directors from amongst
Shareholders other than Central Government and other agenda items.

8. PAYMENT OF DIVIDEND

The Board of Directors of the Bank in its meeting held on 10.05.2014 recommended a final dividend of Rs.
0.60 (paise sixty only) (excluding interim dividend of Rs. 1.60 per equity share declared on 16.01.2014, paid on
31.01.2014) per equity share of Rs. 10/~ each, for the financial year 2013-14. Final dividend as recommended
by the Board of Directors, approved and declared at the 4" Annual General Meeting will be paid as under:

a. To all beneficial owners in respect of shares held in electronic form as per the data as may be made available
by the National Securities Depository Services Ltd. (NSDL) / Central Depository Services (India) Ltd. (CDSL)
as of the close of business hours on 13.06.2014.

b. To all the members in respect of shares held in physical form after giving effect to valid transfers, if any,
in respect of transfer requests lodged with the Bank/ Bank’s Registrar and Share Transfer Agent, i.e., Link
Intime India Pvt. Ltd. on or before the close of business hours, i.e. 5.00 p.m. on 13.06.2014.

c. The final dividend will be distributed to the eligible shareholders within thirty days from the date of 4%
Annual General Meeting.
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RIASEE

DIVIDEND MANDATE / CHANGE OF ADDRESS

a. Beneficial Owners holding shares in electronic form are hereby informed that Bank particulars registered
against their respective depository account will be used by the Bank for payment of dividend. The Bank or
its Registrar and Share Transfer Agent can not act on any request received directly from the shareholders
holding shares in electronic form for any change of bank particulars or bank mandate. Such changes are to
be advised only to their Depository Participant.

b. Shareholders holding shares in physical form are requested to advise any change of address, bank details
immediately to the Bank’s Registrar and Share Transfer Agent, i.e. Link Intime India Pvt. Ltd. Shareholders
holding shares in electronic form must send the advice about change in address, bank details to their
respective Depository Participant only and not to the Bank or Bank’s Registrar and Share Transfer Agent.

c. Shareholders are requested to invariably quote their respective folio number/s (for those holding shares in
physical form) and their respective DP ID / Client ID number (for those holding shares in electronic form)
in any correspondence with the Bank or Bank’s Registrar and Share Transfer Agent.

UNPAID DIVIDEND, IF ANY

Shareholders are requested to carefully note that pursuant to amendment in Banking Companies (Acquisition and
Transfer of Undertakings) Act, 1980 vide “The Banking Companies (Acquisition and Transfer of Undertakings)
And Financial Institutions Laws (Amendment) Act, 2006, Public Sector Banks are required to transfer amount
remaining unpaid/unclaimed in dividend accounts of earlier years on the commencement of the aforesaid Act,
and also dividend declared after the commencement of the said Act, to “Unpaid Dividend Account”.

The amount transferred to the said “Unpaid Dividend Accounts” and remaining unclaimed/unpaid for a period
of seven years from the date of transfer is required to be transferred to the Investors Education and Protection
Fund established and thereafter no claim for payment shall lie in respect thereof to the Bank or the Fund.

CONSOLIDATION OF FOLIOS:

The shareholders who are holding shares in identical order of names in more than one folio, are requested to
intimate to Link Intime India Pvt. Ltd. (RTA), the ledger folio of such accounts together with the share certificate(s)
to enable the Bank to consolidate all the holdings into one folio. The share certificate(s) will be returned to the
Shareholders after making necessary endorsement in due course.

REQUEST TO SHAREHOLDERS:

Shareholders / Proxy holders / Authorised Representatives are requested to bring their copies of the Annual
Report to the Annual General Meeting. No copy of the Annual report shall be provided at the venue of the
Annual General Meeting.

VOTING RIGHTS OF SHAREHOLDERS:

In terms of the provisions of Section 3 (2E) of the Act, no shareholder of the Bank, other than the Central
Government shall be entitled to exercise voting rights in respect of any shares held by him / her in excess of
ten per cent of the total voting rights of all the shareholders of the Bank.

ELECTION OF DIRECTORS:

14. QUALIFICATION REQUIRED FOR BEING ELECTED AS A DIRECTOR OF THE BANK

In terms of Section 9(3-A) of the Act, a candidate being a Shareholder of the Bank and who desires to be elected
as Director under the clause (i) of Sub section (3) of the Act shall -

A)  have special knowledge or practical experience in respect of one or more of the following matters namely:-

- agriculture and rural economy;

- banking
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- co-operation;
- economics;
- finance
- law;
- small-scale industry;
- any other matter the special knowledge of and practical experience in which, would, in the opinion of the
Reserve Bank be useful for the Bank.
B) represents the interest of depositors; or
C) represent the interest of farmers, workers and artisans.
In terms of Section 9(3AA) of the Act a candidate being a shareholder of the Bank and desires to be a Director
of the Bank should possesses ‘Fit and Proper’ status pursuant to guidelines issued by Reserve Bank of India

in this regard. Further the elected Director shall also execute the deed of covenant and is required to furnish
annual declarations/ changes, if any, as prescribed by the Reserve Bank of India in this regard.

DISQUALIFICATION FROM BEING ELECTED AS A DIRECTOR OF THE BANK:

A. In terms of Clause 10 of the Nationalized Banks (Management & Miscellaneous Provisions) Scheme, 1980,
a person shall be disqualified for being appointed as, and for being a Director:

a) if he has at any time been adjudicated as insolvent or has suspended payment or has compounded with
his creditors ; or

b) if he has been found to be of unsound mind and stands so declared by a competent Court; or

¢) if he has been convicted by a criminal court of an offence which involves moral turpitude; or

d) if he holds any office of profit under any Nationalized Bank or State Bank of India constituted under
Sub-Section (1) of Section 3 of the State Bank of India Act, 1955 or any Subsidiary Bank as defined
in Section 3 of the State Bank of India (Subsidiary Banks) Act, 1959, except for holding the post of a
whole-time director, including the Managing Director and directors nominated under Clause (e) and (f)
of Sub-Section (3) of Section 9 of the Act from among the employees of the Bank.

B. If he is not found to be ‘Fit and proper’ person in terms of Notification No. DBOD. No. BC. N0.46/29.39.001/
2007-08, 47/29.39.001/ 2007-08, both dated 01.11.2007 and DBOD. No. BC.No 95/29.39.001/2010-11
dated 23.05.2011 and/or other guidelines issued by Reserve Bank of India from time to time.

16. TENURE OF DIRECTORS:

Pursuant to Clause 9(4) of the Scheme, an elected director shall hold office for three years and shall be eligible
for re-election.

Provided that no such director shall hold office continuously for a period exceeding six years.
Attention of Shareholders is invited to Section 9 (3B) of the Act, on the right of Reserve Bank of India to
remove a director so elected under Section 9 (3) (i) of the said Act, who does not fulfill the requirements of
Section 9 (3A) & (3AA) of the said Act.

17. NOMINATION OF CANDIDATES FOR ELECTION:

1. No nomination of a candidate for election as a Director shall be valid unless,

a. He/she is a shareholder holding not less than 100 (One hundred) shares of the Bank as on, the 30.05.2014
being the cut-off date for participating in the election ;

b. He/she is, as on 14.06.2014, being the last date for receipt of nomination not disqualified to be a Director
under the Banking Companies (Acquisition & Transfer of Undertakings) Act 1980 or under The Nationalised
Banks (Management & Miscellaneous Provisions) Scheme, 1980 / RBI;
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c. the nomination is in writing signed by at least one hundred shareholders entitled to elect Directors under
the Act or by their duly constituted attorney, provided that a nomination by a shareholder who is a company
may be made by a resolution of the Directors of the said company and where it is so made, a copy of
the resolution certified to be a true copy by the Chairman of the meeting at which it was passed shall be
dispatched to the Head Office of Bank addressed to the Assistant General Manager, Head Office Shares
Cell, Accounts & Audit Department, 21-Rajendra Place, New Delhi, such copy shall be deemed to be a
nomination on behalf of such company;

d. the nomination is accompanied or contains a declaration signed by the candidate before a Judge, Magistrate,
Registrar or Sub-Registrar of Assurances or other Gazetted Officer or any officer of the Reserve Bank of India
or any Nationalized bank, that he/she accepts the nomination and is willing to stand for election and that
he/she is not disqualified under the Act or the Scheme or these Regulations.

2. No nomination shall be valid unless it is received with all the connected documents complete in all respect,
at the Head Office of the Bank addressed to the Assistant General Manager, Head Office Shares Cell,
Accounts & Audit Department, 21, Rajendra Place, New Delhi 110 008 on working day not less than 14
days, before the date fixed for the meeting i.e., on or before the closing of business hours of the Bank on
14 June 2014 (2.00 p.m.).

18. SUBMISSION OF NOMINATION FORMS:

Shareholders desirous of contesting the election of Directors of the Bank from amongst the Shareholders other
than the Central Government should submit the following:

a. duly filled in ‘Declaration Form’ as per format (Annexure-’A’) attached along with testimonials viz., bio-data,
certificates of educational qualification(self attested), experience;

b. “Declaration and Undertaking by Candidate” as per format (Annexure-‘B’) attached pursuant to Fit & Proper
Guidelines issued by Reserve Bank of India and required attachments thereat; and

c.  minimum of 100 Nomination Forms, as per format (Annexure-'C’) obtained from shareholders of the Bank
who are entitled to nominate, in the format(s) annexed to this Notice, in a sealed envelope and super
scribed “Nomination for Shareholder Director”, to :

The Assistant General Manager
Punjab & Sind Bank

Head Office, Shares Cell
Accounts & Audit Department,
21 Rajendra Place,
NewDelhi-110008

on any working day not less than fourteen days before the date fixed for the Annual General Meeting i.e., on or
before the closing hours of the Bank i.e., 2.00 p.m. on Saturday, 14 June, 2014 failing which, the nominations
are liable to be rejected.

19. AVAILABILITY OF LIST OF SHAREHOLDERS:

To enable the Shareholders to contest the election, a copy of the list of shareholders as mentioned in Regulation
64 of Punjab & Sind Bank (Shares and Meetings) Regulations 2008 will be made available at the Head office
of the Bank, from 5" June 2014 onwards for purchase by Shareholders on payment of Rs. 50,000/- [Rupees
fifty thousand only] by demand draft in favour of Punjab & Sind Bank, payable at New Delhi. However, a
shareholder may make extracts of any entry in the register or computer prints free of charges or if he requires
a copy or computer prints of the register or any part thereof, the same will be supplied to him on pre-payment
at the rate of Rs.5/- for every 1000 words or fractional part thereof required to be copied.

20. SCRUTINY OF NOMINATIONS:

a) Nominations shall be subjected to Scrutiny by Nomination Committee of the Board in terms of the fit and
proper Guidelines dated 01.11.2007 issued by the RBI on Monday, the 16 June 2014, the first working
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day following the date fixed for receipt of the nominations and in case any nomination is not found to be
valid, the same shall be rejected after recording the reasons therefore.

b) If there are only two valid nominations for the vacancies to be filled by election, the candidate(s) so nominated
shall be deemed to be elected forthwith & they will assume office from the next day and his/her name &
address shall be published. In such an event there shall not be any election at the meeting and Agenda
Item No. 3 shall be withdrawn.

¢) In the event of an election being held, if valid nominations are more than the number of directors to be
elected, the candidate polling the majority of votes shall be deemed to be elected and they will assume
office from the next day and his/her name & address shall be published.

d) If there is any dispute, the same will be settled as per Regulation 67 of the Punjab & Sind Bank (Shares
and Meetings) Regulations, 2008.
21. WITHDRAWAL OF NOMINATIONS:

If any candidate desires to withdraw his/her nomination, he/she would be entitled to do so at any time prior to
closing hours of the Bank on Saturday 28" June, 2014.

SHARES Cell

In order to facilitate quick and efficient service to the shareholders, the Bank has set up a Shares cell at its Head
Office, New Delhi, Shareholders may contact this Cell at the under mentioned address for any assistance :

The Company Secretary,

Punjab & Sind Bank,

Head Office, Shares Cell,

Accounts & Audit Department,

21 Rajendra Place, 1* floor,

New Delhi-110008

Telephone : 011-25782926, 25812922

OTHER INFORMATION
Shareholders may kindly note that no gift/gift coupons will be distributed at the meeting.

Due to strict security reasons, brief cases, eatables and other belongings are not allowed inside the hall. Persons
attending the meeting are, therefore, advised to make their own arrangements for the safe keeping of their articles.

By Order of the Board of Directors

Place : New Delhi Jatinderbir Singh
Date: 19" May 2014 Chairman & Managing Director
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Punjab & Sind Bank

GIST OF PROVISIONS OF RELEVANT ACTS, SCHEME AND REGULATIONS ETC.

In terms of Section 9 (3) (i) of The Banking Companies (Acquisition and Transfer of Undertakings) Act, 1980, Shareholder
Directors shall have to be appointed depending upon the extent of capital issued under Clause (c) of Sub-Section 2
(B) of Section 3. The relevant Sections of The Banking Regulation Act, 1949, the Banking Companies (Acquisition
and Transfer of Undertaking) Act, 1980, Nationalised Banks (Management and Miscellaneous Provisions) Scheme,
1980 and relevant regulations of the Punjab & Sind Bank (Shares and Meetings) Regulations, 2008 respectively in
this regard, are reproduced below for the information of the shareholders.

THE BANKING REGULATION ACT, 1949
Prohibition of Common Directors:

16 (1) No banking company incorporated in India shall have as a Director in its Board of Directors, any person who
is a Director of any other Banking Company.

Restrictions on loans and advances:
Section 20:

1.  Notwithstanding anything to the contrary contained in Section 77 of the Companies Act, 1956 (1 of 1956), no
banking company shall —

a) grant any loans or advances on the security of its own shares, or

b) enter into any commitment for granting any loan or advance to or on behalf of

i) any of its directors

ii) any firm in which any of its directors is interested as partner, manager, employee or guarantor, or

iii) any company not being a subsidiary of the banking company or a company registered under Section 25 of the
Companies Act, 1956 (1 of 1956), or a Government Company of which or the subsidiary or the holding company of
which any of the directors of the banking company is a director, managing agent, manager, employee or guarantor
or in which he holds substantial interest, or

iv) any individual in respect of whom any of its directors is a partner or guarantor.

2. Where any loan or advance granted by a banking company is such that a commitment for granting it could not
have been made if Clause (b) of Sub-Section (1) had been in force on the date on which the loan or advance was
made, or is granted by a Banking Company after the commencement of Section 5 of the Banking Laws (Amendment)
Act, 1968 (58 of 1968), but in pursuance of a commitment entered into before such commencement, steps shall
be taken to recover the amounts due to the banking company on account of the loan or advance together with
interest, if any, due thereon within the period stipulated at the time of the grant of loan or advance, or where no
such period has been stipulated, before the expiry of one year from the commencement of the said Section 5.
Provided that the Reserve Bank may, in any case on any application in writing made to it by the Banking Company
in this behalf, extend the period for the recovery of the loan or advance until such date, not being a date beyond
the period of three years from the commencement of the said Section 5 and subject to such terms and conditions
as the Reserve Bank may deem fit.

Provided further that this Sub-Section shall not apply if and when the director concerned vacates the office of the
director of the banking company, whether by death, retirement, resignation or otherwise.

3.  No loan or advance, referred to in Sub-Section (2), or any part thereof shall be remitted without the previous
approval of the Reserve Bank, and any remission without such approval shall be void and of no effect.

4.  Where any loan or advance referred to in Sub-Section (2), payable by any person, has not been repaid to the banking
company within the period specified in that Sub-Section, then such person shall, if he is a director of such banking
company on the date of the expiry of the said period, be deemed to have vacated his office as such on the said date.

Explanation — In this Section

a) “Loan or advance” shall not include any transaction which the Reserve Bank may, having regard to the nature
of the transaction, the period within which, and the manner and circumstances in which, any amount due on
account of the transaction is likely to be realized, the interest of depositors and other relevant considerations,
specify by general or special order as not being a loan or advance for the purpose of this section.
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b) “Director” includes a member of any board or committee in India constituted by a banking company for the
purpose of managing, or for the purpose of advising it in regard to the management of, all or any of its affairs.

If any question arises whether any transaction is a loan or advance for the purpose of this section, it shall be
referred to the Reserve Bank, whose decision thereon shall be final.

THE BANKING COMPANIES (ACQUISITION AND TRANSFER OF UNDERTAKINGS) ACT, 1980
Composition of the Board of Directors:

Section 9 (3) (i): Where the capital issued under clause (c) of sub-section (2B) of Section 3 is: -
(I) Not more than sixteen per cent of the total paid-up capital, one Director.
(II) More than sixteen per cent but not more than thirty two percent of the total paid-up capital, two Directors.

(I11) More than thirty two percent of the total paid-up capital, three Directors. to be elected by the shareholders,
other than the Central Government, from amongst themselves:

Provided that on the assumption of charge after election of any such Directors under this clause, equal number
of Directors nominated under clause (h) shall retire in such manner as may be specified in the scheme.

Obligation as to Fidelity and Secrecy:

Section 13 (2): Every Director, member of a local board or a committee, or auditor, advisor, officer or other
employee of a corresponding new bank shall, before entering upon his duties, make a declaration of fidelity
and secrecy in the form set out in the Third Schedule

NATIONALISED BANKS (MANAGEMENT AND MISCELLANEOUS PROVISIONS) SCHEME, 1980

Clause 11: Vacation of Office of Director, etc.

i) If a Director becomes subject to any of the disqualification as specified in Clause 10, or is absent without
leave of the Board for more than three consecutive meetings thereof, he shall be deemed to have vacated
his office as such and thereupon his office shall become vacant.

i)  The Chairman or a whole-time Director including the Managing Director or a Director referred to in Clause
(b) or Clause (c) of Sub-Section (3) of Section 9 of the Act may resign his office by giving notice thereof in
writing to the Central Government and on such resignation being accepted by that Government shall be
deemed to have vacated his office; and any other Director may resign his office by giving notice thereof in
writing to the Central Government and such resignation shall take effect on the receipt of the communication
of the resignation by the Central Government.

iii) Without prejudice to the provision of the foregoing Sub-Clauses, the office of the Director referred to in Clause
(e) or Clause (f) of Sub-Section (3) of Section 9 of the Act shall become vacant as soon as the Director ceases
to be a workman or an employee, other than a workman of the Nationalized Bank of which he is a Director

iv) Where any vacancy occurs in the office of a Director, other than an elected director, it shall be filled in
accordance with Sub-Section (3) of Section 9 of the Act.

Clause 11A: Removal from Office of an Elected Director:

The Shareholders, other than the Central Government, may, by a resolution passed by the majority of votes of
such Shareholders holding in aggregate, not less than one-half of the share capital held by all such Shareholders,
remove any Director elected under Clause (i) of Sub-Section (3) of Section 9 and elect instead of another person
to fill the vacancy.

Clause 11 B: Filling of Vacancy in the Office of an Elected Director:

1.

Where any vacancy occurs before the expiry of the term of office of a elected Director, the vacancy shall be
filled in by election; Provided that where the duration of vacancy is likely to be less than six months, the vacancy
may be filled in by the remaining directors.

A person elected or co-opted as the case may be, under Sub-Clause (1) shall hold office for the un-expired
portion of the term of his predecessor.
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Punjab & Sind Bank

Disclosure of Interest by Directors:

Clause 12 (8): A Director who is directly or indirectly concerned or interested in any contract, loan, arrangement or
proposal entered into or proposed to be entered into by or on behalf of the Nationalized Bank shall, as soon as possible
after the relevant circumstances have come to his knowledge, disclose the nature of his interest to the Board and shall
not be present at the meeting of the Board when any such contract, loan, arrangement or proposal is discussed unless
his presence is required by the other Directors for the purpose of eliciting information and no Director so required to be
present shall vote on any such contract, loan, arrangement or proposal.

Provided that nothing contained in this Sub-Clause shall apply to such Director by reason of his being:

i) A shareholder (other than a Director) holding not more than two percent of the paid up capital in any
public company as defined in the Companies Act, 1956 (1 of 1956), or any corporation established by or
under any law for the time being in force in India or any Co-operative Society, with which or to which the
nationalized Bank has entered into or made or proposes to enter into or make, a contract, loan, arrangement
or proposal, or

ii) An officer or other employee of the nationalized bank, if he is a Director referred to in Clause (e) or Clause
(f) of Sub-Section (3) of Section 9 of the Act.

PUNJAB & SIND BANK (SHARES AND MEETINGS) REGULATIONS, 2008

Regulation 10. Exercise of Rights of Joint Holders:

If any share stands in the names of two or more persons, the person first named in the register shall, as regards voting,
receipt of dividends, service of notices and all or any other matters connected with Punjab & Sind Bank except the
transfer of shares, be deemed to be sole holder thereof.

MEETING OF SHAREHOLDERS

Regulation 61. Voting at General Meeting.

i) At any general meeting, a resolution put to the vote of the meeting shall, unless a poll is demanded, be decided
on a show of hands.

ii) Save as otherwise provided in the Act, every matter submitted to the general meeting shall be decided by a
majority of votes.

iii) Unless a poll is demanded under sub-regulation (i), a declaration by the Chairman of the meeting that a resolution
on show of hands has or has not been carried either unanimously or by a particular majority and an entry to
that effect in the books containing the minutes of the proceedings, shall be conclusive evidence of the fact,
without proof of the number or proportion of the votes cast in favour of, or against such resolution.

iv) Before or on the declaration of the result of the voting on any resolution on a show of hands, a poll may be
ordered to be taken by the Chairman of the meeting of his own motion, and shall be ordered to be taken by
him on a demand made in that behalf by any shareholder or shareholders present in person or by proxy and
holding shares in the Bank which confer a power to vote on the resolution not being less than one fifth of the
total voting power in respect of the resolution.

v) The demand for a poll may be withdrawn at any time by the person or persons who made the demand.
vi) A poll demanded on a question of adjournment or election of Chairman of the meeting shall be taken forthwith.

vii) A poll demanded on any other question shall be taken at such time not being later than forty-eight hours from
the time when the demand was made, as the chairman of the meeting may direct.

viii) The decision of the Chairman of the meeting as to the qualification of any person to vote, and also in case of
a poll, as to the number of votes any person is competent to exercise shall be final.
Regulation 63. Directors to be elected at General Meeting:

i) A Director under Clause (i) of Sub-Section (3) of Section 9 of the Act shall be elected by the Shareholders on
the register, other than the Central Government, from amongst themselves in the General Meeting of Punjab &
Sind Bank.
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i) where an election of a Director is to be held at any General Meeting, the notice thereof shall be included in
the notice convening the meeting. Every such notice shall specify the number of Directors to be elected and
the particulars of vacancies in respect of which the election is to be held.

Regulation 64. List of Shareholders:

i) For the purpose of election of a Director under Sub-Regulation (i) of Regulation 63 of these regulations, a list
shall be prepared of shareholders on the register by whom the Director is to be elected.

ii) The list shall contain the names of the shareholders, their registered addresses, the number and denoting numbers
of shares held by them with the dates on which the shares were registered and the number of votes to which
they will be entitled on the date fixed for the meeting at which the election will take place and copies of the
list shall be available for purchases atleast three weeks before the date fixed for the meeting at a price to be
fixed by the Board or the Management Committee, on application at the Head Office.

Regulation 67. Election Disputes:

i) If any doubt or dispute shall arise as to the qualification or disqualification of a person deemed or declared
to be elected, or as to the validity of the election of a director, any person interested, being a candidate or
shareholder entitled to vote at such election, may, within seven days of the date of the declaration of the result
of such election, give intimation in writing thereof to the Chairman and Managing Director/Executive Director of
Punjab & Sind Bank and shall in the said intimation give full particulars of the grounds upon which he doubts
or disputes the validity of the election.

i) On receipt of an intimation under Sub-Regulation (i), the Chairman and Managing Director or in his absence,
the Executive Director of Punjab & Sind Bank shall forthwith refer such doubt or dispute for the decision of a
committee consisting of the Chairman & Managing Director or in his absence, the Executive Director and any
two of the Directors nominated under Clause (b) and (c) of Sub-Section (3) of Section 9 of the Act.

iii) The committee referred to in Sub-Regulation (ii) shall make such enquiry as it deems necessary and if it finds
that the election was a valid election, it shall confirm the declared result of the election or, if it finds that the
election was not a valid election, it shall, within 30 days of the commencement of the enquiry, make such order
and give such directions including the holding of a fresh election as shall in the circumstances appear just to
the committee.

iv)  An order and direction of such committee in pursuance of this regulation shall be conclusive.

VOTING RIGHTS OF SHAREHOLDERS
Regulation 68. Determination of Voting Rights:

i) Subject to the provisions contained in Section 3 (2E) of the Act, each shareholder who has been registered as a
shareholder on the date of closure of the register prior to the date of a General Meeting shall, at such meeting,
have one vote on show of hands and in case of a poll shall have one vote for each share held by him.

i)  Subject to the provisions contained in Section 3 (2E) of the Act, every shareholder entitled to vote as
aforesaid who, not being a company, is present in person or by proxy or who being a company is present
by a duly authorized representative, or by proxy shall have one vote on a show of hands and in case
of a poll shall have one vote for each share held by him as stated hereinabove in Sub-Regulation (i).
Explanation — for this Chapter, “Company” means any body corporate.

iii) Shareholders of the Bank entitled to attend and vote at a general meeting shall be entitled to appoint another person
(whether a shareholder or not) as his proxy to attend and vote instead of himself; but a proxy so appointed shall
not have any right to speak at the meeting.

Regulation 69. Voting by Duly Authorised Representative:

i) A shareholder, being the Central Government or a company, may by a resolution, as the case may be, authorize
any of its officials or any other person to act as its representative at any General Meeting of the shareholders
and the person so authorized (referred to as a ‘duly authorized representative’ in these regulations) shall be
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ERE

entitled to exercise the same powers on behalf of the Central Government or company which he represents,
as if he were an individual shareholder of Punjab & Sind Bank. The authorization so given may be in favour
of two persons in the alternative and in such a case any one of such persons may act as a duly authorized
representative of the Central Government / Company.

No person shall attend or vote at any meeting of the shareholders of Punjab & Sind Bank as the duly authorized
representative of a company unless a copy of the resolution appointing him as a duly authorized representative
certified to be a true copy by the Chairman of the meeting at which it was passed shall have been deposited
at the Head Office of the Punjab & Sind Bank not less than four days before the date fixed for the meeting.

Regulation 70. Proxies:

i)

i)

iii)
iv)

V)

vi)

vii)

No instrument of proxy shall be valid unless, in the case of an individual shareholder, it is signed by him or
by his attorney duly authorized in writing or in the case of joint holders, it is signed by the Shareholder first
named in the register or his attorney duly authorized in writing or in the case of the body corporate signed by
its officer or an attorney duly authorized in writing;

Provided that an instrument of proxy shall be sufficiently signed by any shareholder, who is, for any reason,
unable to write his name, if his mark is affixed thereto and attested by a Judge, Magistrate, Registrar or Sub-
Registrar of Assurances or other Government Gazetted Officer or an Officer of Punjab & Sind Bank.

No proxy shall be valid unless it is duly stamped and a copy thereof deposited at the Head Office of Punjab &
Sind Bank not less than four days before the date fixed for the meeting, together with the power of attorney or
other authority (if any) under which it is signed or a copy of that power of attorney or other authority, certified
as a true copy by a Notary Public or a Magistrate, unless such a power of attorney or the other authority is
previously deposited and registered with Punjab & Sind Bank .

No instrument of proxy shall be valid unless it is in Form ‘B’.
An instrument of proxy deposited with Punjab & Sind Bank shall be irrevocable and final.

In the case of an instrument of proxy granted in favour of two grantees in the alternative, not more than one
form shall be executed.

The grantor of an instrument of proxy under this regulation shall not be entitled to vote in person at the meeting
to which such instrument relates.

No person shall be appointed as duly authorized representative or a proxy who is an officer or an employee
of Punjab & Sind Bank.
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Punjab & Sind Bank

e-Voting
e-Voting for the Fourth Annual General Meeting of Punjab & Sind Bank

Pursuant to section 108 of the Companies Act 2013 read with Rules 20 of Companies (Management and Administration)
Rules, 2014 new provisions has been introduced whereby every listed company or a company having not less than
one thousand shareholder is required to provide to its members facility to exercise their right to vote at general
meetings by electronic means. The Bank shall provide facility of e-Voting, through CDSL, to the shareholders for the
Fourth Annual General Meeting., in terms of Companies (Management and Administration) Rules, 2014.

The instructions for members for voting electronically are as under:-

(A)

In case of members receiving e-mail:

i)

If you are holding shares in Demat form and had logged on to www.evotingindia.com and casted your vote
earlier for EVSN of any Company, then your existing login id and password are to be used.

ii) Log on to the e-voting website www.evotingindia.com.

iii) Click on “Shareholders” tab to cast your votes.

iv) Now, select the Electronic Voting Sequence Number - “EVSN” along with “Punjab and Sind Bank” from the

drop down menu and click on “SUBMIT”

v) Now, fill up the following details in the appropriate boxes:

For Members holding shares For Members holding shares
in Demat Form in Physical Form

User ID For NSDL: 8 Character DP ID Folio Number registered
followed by 8 Digits Client 1D with the Company
For CDSL: 16 digits beneficiary 1D

PAN* Enter your 10 digit alpha-numeric *PAN issued by Income Tax Department when prompted by the

system while e-voting (applicable for both demat shareholders as well as physical shareholders)

DOB# Enter the Date of Birth as recorded in your demat account or in the company records for the said

demat account or folio in dd/mm/yyyy format.

Dividend Bank | Enter the Dividend Bank Details as recorded in your demat account or in the company records for the
Details# said demat account or folio.

* Members who have not updated their PAN with the Company/Depository Participant are requested to use

the default number: <ABCDE1234F> in the PAN field.

# Please enter any one of the details in order to login.

Vi

vii)

After entering these details appropriately, click on “SUBMIT” tab.

Members holding shares in physical form will th en reach directly the EVSN selection screen. However,
members holding shares in demat form will now reach ‘Password Creation” menu wherein they are required
to mandatorily change their login password in the new password field. The new password has to be minimum
eight characters consisting of at least one upper case (A-Z), one lower case (a-z), one numeric value (0-9) and
a special character(@ # $ %& *). Kindly note that this password is to be also used by the demat holders for
voting for resolutions of any other company on which they are eligible to vote, provided that company opts
for e-voting through CDSL platform. It is strongly recommended not to share your password with any other
person and take utmost care to keep your password confidential. Kindly note that this changed password
is to be also used by the Demat holders for voting for resolutions for the Company or any other Company
on which they are eligible to vote, provided that Company opts for e-voting through CDSL platform.

viii) Click on the relevant EVSN on which you choose to vote.

iX)

On the voting page, you will see Resolution Description and against the same the option “YES/NO” for
voting. Select the option YES or NO as desired The option YES implies that you assent to the Resolution
and option NO implies that you dissent to the Resolution.
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x) Click on the “Resolutions File Link” if you wish to view the entire Resolutions.

xi) After selecting the resolution you have decided to vote on, click on “SUBMIT”. A confirmation box will be
displayed. If you wish to confirm your vote, click on “OK”, else to change your vote, click on “CANCEL”
and accordingly modify your vote.

xii) Once you “CONFIRM” your vote on the resolution, you will not be allowed to modify your vote.

(I) In case of members receiving the physical copy of Notice of AGM [for members whose e-mail IDs are not

registered with the company/ depository participant(s) or requesting physical copy]l:

Please follow all steps from sl. no. (ii) to sl. no. (xii) above, to cast vote.

Institutional shareholders (i.e. other than individuals, HUF, NRI etc.) are required to log on to https:/www.
evotingindia.co.in and register themselves, link their account which they wish to vote on and then cast their
vote. They should upload a scanned copy of the Board Resolution in PDF format in the system for the scrutinizer
to verify the vote.

The electronic voting period commences on 24th June, 2014 (9:00 am) and ends on 25th June, 2014 (6:00 pm).
The electronic voting facility will be disabled by CDSL for voting thereafter. During this period the shareholders
of the Bank, holding shares either in physical form or in dematerialized form, as on the cut-off date of 30th
May, 2014, may cast their vote electronically.

The voting rights of shareholders shall be in proportion to their shares of the paid up equity share capital of
the Bank as on the cut-off date of 30th May, 2014;

Members may cast their votes separately for each business to be transacted in the Annual General Meeting. For
example, a member may cast his vote in favour of some resolution and may cast not in favour/ against some
resolution. A member may also elect not to vote on some resolution. However, in case of item no. 3 (election
of two directors), vote be casted for not more than two directors otherwise the votes casted shall be treated as
invalid.

(F) Once the vote on a resolution is casted by the member, he shall not be allowed to change or modify it subsequently;

(G) Member can log in any number of times till he has voted on all the resolutions or till the end of the voting period

(H)

(i.e. till the last date of receipt of e-votes), whichever is earlier.

Members can opt only one mode for voting i.e. either by Physical Ballot or e-voting. If member opts for e-voting,
then he does not vote by Physical Ballot also and vice versa. However, in case member(s) cast their vote both via
Physical Ballot and e-voting, then voting done through e-voting shall prevail and voting done by Physical Ballot
will be ignored.

Mr. Ramesh Kumar Kochar, Practicing Company Secretary (CP No. 10818) has been appointed as the scrutinizer to
the electronic voting process, who shall prepare and submit its report of the votes cast in favour or not in favour/
against, to the Chairman of the Annual General Meeting within 3 business days from the date of conclusion of
the electronic voting period;

The results declared along with the scrutinizer’s report shall be placed on the website of the Bank and on the
website of CDSL within 2 business days of the decision on the resolution at the AGM;

Subject to receipt of the sufficient votes, the resolution shall be deemed to be passed on the date of the Annual
General Meeting;

Notice of the meeting is also displayed at www.psbindia.com

In case you have any queries or issues regarding e-voting, you may refer the Frequently Asked Questions (“FAQs”)
and e-voting manual available at www.evotingindia.com under help section or write an email to helpdesk.
evoting@cdslindia.com or call CDSL Toll free No. 022-30249561 or to the Registrar & Share Transfer Agent,
Link Intime India Pvt. Ltd. at 011-41410592, 41410593 or write an email to delhi@linkintime.co.in.
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT 2013-14

The Board of Directors have pleasure in presenting Annual Report of the Bank alongwith the Balance Sheet & Profit
and Loss Account for the year ended 31 March, 2014.

ECONOMIC OUTLOOK

Indian economy continued to face challenging times during 2013-14. The slowdown of the economy that began in
2011-12 continued during this year. The sluggish growth and inflationary pressure remained serious concern of the
economy throughout the year. In fact, since Sep 2009 the state of the world economy has been the most decisive
factor impacting the economy of every developing country including India. Among India’s major trading partners,
USA is showing signs of recovery from a long recession, Japan’s economy is responding to stimulus, Euro zone is
reporting a fractional growth of 0.2% and China’s growth slowed during 2013-14. The challenges faced by India
are common to all emerging economies. However, India coped with these challenges in a better way than other
emerging economies during 2013-14.

The Govt. of India had declared fiscal consolidation, price stability, self sufficiency in food, revival of good environment
in investment, promotion of manufacturing, encouragement to exports, quicker implementation of projects as its
objectives. However, infrastructure, petroleum, power, coal and textiles continued to remain stressed sectors of the
economy.

While the Government successfully contained the Current Account Deficit , controlling inflation proved to be difficult.
However, economy once again proved its resilience.

The performance of Indian agriculture was better than industry. The industry continued to be a stressed sector of the
economy. The deceleration in investment in manufacturing has remained particular area of concern. Though exports
recovered sharply, however, imports remained down which did not augur well either for manufacturing or domestic
trade.

The exchange rate affected the Rupee adversely. However, the Government, RBI and other concerned agencies
undertook number of measures to improve capital inflow and stabilize foreign exchange market.

However, the state of the economy improved during Q3-Q4 of 2013-14 and growth is expected to be at least 5.2%
against growth in Q1 and Q2 of 2013-14 at 4.4% and 4.8% respectively. The economy is more stable today. The
fiscal deficit is declining, CAD has been contained, inflation has moderated, the exchange rate is stable, exports have
increased and growth rate is on the rise.

In the given scenario of the economy, Bank faced the challenges bravely, even though the asset quality remained a
serious cause of concern throughout the year and there has been pressure on the profitability of the Bank with high
cost of deposit, rise in NPAs, low income and lower Net Interest Income.

WORKING RESULTS

TOTAL BUSINESS

During the year ended 31.03.2014, total Business of the Bank recorded an increase of 16.41% at Rs.142588 crore
as compared to Rs.122485 crore as on 31.03.2013.

HIGHLIGHTS OF RESULTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 315" MARCH 2014
(Rs in Lacs)
Year Ended
31.03.2014 31.03.2013 %age change
Interest Income 797271 734012 8.62
Other Income 42728 39422 8.39
Total Income 839999 773434 8.61
Total Expenditure 759945 679549 11.83
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Operating profit 80054 93885 (14.73)
Net Profit 30063 33922 (11.38)
Return on Assets (ROA) 0.35% 0.44% —
Net Interest Margin (NIM) 1.88% 2.15% —
Gross NPA% 4.41% 2.96% -
Net NPA(%) 3.35% 2.16%
Capital Adequacy Ratio (%) (Basel 1) 12.10% 12.91% -
Capital Adequacy Ratio(%) (Basel ) 11.04% NA -
EPS 10.69 13.49 -
PROFIT

The Bank recorded a Net Profit of Rs.300.63 crore for the year 2013-14 as compared to that at Rs.339.22 crore during
the FY 2012-13.

CAPITAL AND RESERVE

During the year, Bank has issued 2,12,63,023 Equity Shares of Rs.10/ each to Government of India by way of Preferential
Issue at a price of Rs.47.03 per share determined as per ICDR Regulation of SEBI after taking necessary approval from
RBI/ MOF. Accordingly, the Equity Share Capital of the Bank has increased by Rs.21.26 crore to Rs.275.28 crore and
Share Premium has increased by Rs.78.52 crore (Share Premium Received Rs.78.74 crore minus Share Issue Expenses
Rs.0.22 crore) to Rs.703.98 crore.

The Net Worth of the Bank has improved from Rs.3897.25 crore as on 31.03.2013 to Rs.4180.40 crore as on
31.03.2014.

The Capital Adequacy Ratio (Basel Ill) of the Bank is 11.04% as on 31.03.2014 against the minimum stipulated
requirement of 9%.

UNSECURED REDEEMABLE BONDS: (Subordinated Debts for Tier —Il Capital)
Total outstanding of Tier 1l Bonds as on 31.03.2014 remains unchanged at Rs.1,365 crore .

DEPOSITS

The total deposit of the Bank registered a growth of 19.94% with Net accretion of Rs.14088.66 crore to reach
Rs.84730.16 crore as on March 31, 2014 from Rs.70641.50 crore as on March 31, 2013. The average cost of deposits
of the bank stood at 8.22% as compared to 8.32% in previous year.

ADVANCES

The Bank has registered qualitative credit growth of 11.60% during the FY 2013-14. The Gross Advances of the Bank
increased from Rs.51843.35 crore as on 31.03.2013 to Rs.57857.74crore as on 31.03.2014. The average Yield on
Advances stood at 11.34% as on 31.03.2014 as compared to 11.86 % as on 31.03.2013.

Non Fund Advances business of the bank stood at Rs.3433.42 crore as on 31.03.2014 as against Rs.3578.73 crore
as on 31.03.2013.

The Bank has a diversified portfolio of Advances and has extended credit to all sectors i.e Industry, Services, Agriculture,
Retail Lending etc; as per vibrant Loan Policy of the Bank. There was notable credit growth to preferred sectors like
Agriculture, Construction, Housing sector, Education, Small & Medium Enterprises (MSME) etc. Advances to Housing
Sector increased by 18.40% (from Rs.2360.33 crore as on 31.03.13 to Rs.2795.18 crore as on 31.03.14). Credit
growth in MSME Sector was 39.50% (from Rs.10113.01 crore as on 31.03.13 to Rs.14107.89 crore as on 31.03.14).
Credit exposure to industry other than infrastructure increased by 8.58% (from Rs.9000.80 crore on 31.03.2013 to
Rs.9773.05 crore on 31.03.2014) which mainly comprised of sectors viz: Food processing (28.10%) from Rs.683.98
crore to Rs.876.19 crore etc. growth of credit to Textiles during FY 2013-14 was (3.17%) from Rs.1369.15
crore on 31.03.2013 to Rs1412.67 crore on 31.03.2014. Credit growth to infrastructure sector was in Energy (2.21%)
(Earlier Power & Electricity) from Rs.12164.55 crore to Rs.12433.73 crore. Exposure in Energy Sector has increased
due to restructuring of accounts of DISCOMS with additional funding.
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To strengthen its credit appraisal, the Bank has recruited Chartered Accountants and Technical personnel i.e; Engineers.
For improving credit off-take and expeditious disposal of loan proposals, Bank has introduced concept of New Business
Proposal Committee, where all proposals of High Value are given in principle sanction /expression of interest for
ensuring expeditious processing.

PRIORITY SECTOR ADVANCES
Bank continues to accord importance to varied goals under National priorities, including Agriculture, Micro & Small
Enterprises, Housing, Education, Micro-credit, Weaker sections, SC/STs and Minority communities.

Priority Sector advances of the Bank increased by Rs.4096 crore, up from Rs.13605 crore as on 31.3.2013 to Rs 17701
crore as on 31.3.2014 thereby registering a growth of 30% on year to year basis.

AGRICULTURE ADVANCES

Bank’s advances under agriculture portfolio stood at Rs.7919 crore as on 31.3.2014 registering a growth of Rs.3007
crore. The major accretion under Agriculture has been under Direct Agriculture and these advances increased to
Rs.5537 crore with an absolute growth of Rs.1151 crore registering a growth rate of 26 % over the previous year.

SPECIAL AGRICULTURAL CREDIT PLAN (SACP)

Bank maintained credit flow to Agriculture achieving more than 100%. Bank has disbursed Rs.7271 crore under
Special Agriculture Credit Plan (SACP) against the target of Rs.7055 crore, achieving 103% during the FY 2013-14,

KISAN CREDIT CARD (KCC)

During the year 2013-14, the total number of KCCs of the Bank increased by 19125 showing growth rate of 14%. As
at March 2014, the credit outstanding under KCCs was Rs.4503 crore. As at March 2014, 99265 KCC holders have
been provided with ATM enabled ‘RuPay Kisan Debit Cards’ covering 86% of eligible KCC holders.

MICRO, SMALL & MEDIUM ENTERPRISES (MSMESs)

Micro, Small & Medium Enterprises is a thrust area of the Bank in credit dispensation. Advances to MSME sector
increased by Rs.3996 crore registering a growth rate of 40% in 2013-14 and stood at Rs.14108 crore as on 31.03.2014.

WELFARE OF MINIORITY COMMUNITY

As at March 2014, advances to specified minority communities aggregated to Rs.6737 crore, registering a growth of
18% and accounting for 38% of the total priority sector advances against the stipulated level of 15%.

CREDIT TO WOMEN ENTREPRENEURS:

Bank'’s credit to women entrepreneurs stood at Rs.2414 crore as on 31.03.2014 registering a growth of Rs.231 crore
accounting for 5% of ANBC.

ADVANCES TO SC/ST BORROWERS

In support of the underprivileged sections of the society, the Bank’s advances to SC/ST beneficiaries reached Rs.357
crore as at March 2014 from Rs.327 Crore as at March-2013.

ADVANCES TO ECONOMICALLY WEAKER SECTIONS

Advances to weaker sections aggregated to Rs.5578 crore, with a y-o-y growth of 17%. Advances to weaker sections
formed 11% of ANBC against the minimum norm of 10%.

Special thrust was laid by the Bank in financing weaker sections including SC/STs under various Government sponsored
schemes namely Ajeevika under National Rural Livelihood Mission (NRLM), Rajiv Rinn Yojana, Swarna Jayanti Shahari
Rojgar Yojana (SJSRY) and Prime Minister Employment Generation Programme (PMEGP).
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CREDIT MONITORING

The Bank through its well-established Credit policy Department continues to give directions to its Advances Portfolios
by preparing vibrant Loan Policy of the Bank and also monitor its Advances portfolio to maintain its quality and
performance.

In order to have proper and effective monitoring to check fresh slippages and devise a strategy for their minimization,
the department has started monitoring individual High Value Accounts at HO level.

Towards this end Bank has set up a control room at HO Credit Monitoring Department for monitoring of Credit
Portfolio which is manned by a team of CAs and experienced officials. The team identifies emerging credit related
issues in borrowal accounts and puts up the position before Top Management on daily basis for taking proactive
corrective steps.

NEW INITIATIVES

= Bank has opened 202 new branches during the year 2013-14 as against 101 new branches opened in last
fiscal. Out of these, 72 branches were opened in unbanked rural centers including 40 Ultra Small Branches.

= To widen the spread of Electronic Delivery Channels, Bank installed 829 additional ATMs during the year.
Total number of ATMs of the Bank as on 31.03.2014, stood at 1008 as compared to 179 as on 31.03.2013.

®  Government Business Modules (PPF, NPS & SCSS) have been made operational.
®m  To facilitate customers, Bank has introduced 24*7 Call Center facility through Toll free number.
®m  Bank has launched Debit Card in tie up with Master Card during the year 2013-14.

= |n order to outreach masses, Bank has opened 115 rural branches and recruited 37 Agriculture Field Officers
in 2013-14 in addition to existing 97 Agriculture Field Officers.

®m  Bank has introduced new scheme for Financing Seed production and processing units and scheme for
Financing of Agriculture Input dealers (Seeds, fertilizers, pesticides etc).

= Ason 31.03.2014, Bank has 29 MSME branches as against 11 MSME branches as on 31.03.2013.

= To give boost to MSE credit, Bank signed a MOU with CRISIL for credit rating of MSE units at concessional
rate to have rationalized mechanism of rate of interest on MSME advances.

®  There has been a quantum jump in lending under Priority Sector through special drives. An amount of
Rs.3851 crore was disbursed in 43152 accounts under Priority Sector during the Special Drives / Mega
Credit Campaign/ Core Credit plus campaign held from 1% September, 2013 to 31 March, 2014.

RRB SPONSORED BY THE BANK

Sutlej Gramin Bank, Bhatinda, the RRB sponsored by the Bank, covers six districts of Punjab viz. Bhatinda, Faridkot,
Mansa, Muktsar, Moga and Ludhiana and is in profit since its inception. The progress made by the RRB in various
parameters is as under:

(Amount in Crore)

Parameter 31.3.2013 31.03.2014
Deposits 264.73 306.46
Advances 203.56 256.14
Priority Sector Advances 194.81 198.23
Agriculture Advances 175.28 181.79
Net Profit 1.55 2.36

LEAD BANK RESPONSIBILITY/SETTING UP OF FINANCIAL LITERACY AND CREDIT COUNSELLING CENTRES
(FLCCs)

Bank has lead bank responsibilities in 3 districts of Punjab viz., Moga, Faridkot and Ludhiana. Pursuant to the
directions of Reserve Bank of India, Bank has set up FLCCs in the name of “PSB Suvidha Centres” in all three lead

ANNUAL REPORT 2013-14 39



v ws e o
1 PR 3 T AR B PRI AT AR AT BT BRI Gl U FRAM TG S Al el
# qIoHdl igur de’ @ T § YU B TIIAT Bl TS T

amaftor e & <frorerer :

9% 1 N gd wrT faer fumT Bq dowe) ge nfud fhar € aifd fhami & giierr e o+ & forg ufrero
HRRATH T FRATYHT TAT UTHI0T JaT31i / AT / M1d o § HHAGIR aTll o &7 [dH™ 9 ¢dex [—@Td, Ty BTl
S HATe NS I DI IR fHar 51 | |

IR ERER, TV fAHTH A3Ted (THRIRIRS!) & YAl @ S9R §% 4 §f¥ gd IriT IR & divdd) g &
JaraeT= H goie & o ol Rai—AnT, BRIgdie, R § U0 Jarsii & 7e Iefadl e Sl 9erar o o
TW—IOR SR BT Wedred &4 @ oy UTHIvT I—IISHTR YR SR ((TRUHg)) woI1fud fey &1 9 Ui
T—ISATR URIE HIHl ((IRUHEE]) & o1y uReTe- i @0, Iednil SHaTRaAl ST 9o+ a2 o9 giaerg I |+
S v T fIBTH fO9TT §RT SUSTeS HRaTs T € | 99 2013—14 & QIR S YIRIET0T GeeIr=l H 1410 UfRieqonfiar o
gRferT forar T, Ry o1d T 4729 SRISTTR URIET0r U o) g € |

YTAIT fAHTE HATE (THIAIRIRS) & faen—dell & IER IS SR o YT T—IIGHTR YiRIeTr SReq= Forrfud
fhu oM & forg 9% smefed o= <1 & | ImioT faere w3Tera & U fawia |emdr | A0 § Ui [9—IIoHTR |eei=

& forg wafemior &/ @1 81 T 7 | wEde | i SRf uwfa w g qen gt § fyafor s ufear # 2

frfer—amdarer
fai—aHaee ®da U Ufhar &) 81 ®, afcd 9% &1 T A9 & dife SH—4’IR & dferd dom SRy el &
TIRh fhar ST e & &1 9 8 {6 98 39 Al 99 F muafsid &1 gaae o $fh yunel 9 oS iR S
AT BT U SIS IR 919 | 39 forg §& g1 oy M0 o e g
® §6 BT 2000 T THY D IMTETST dTet 400 AT 2000 F HH IETST ATl 2316 IR b 719 a&fed fou e
2| 39 Tfal BT §% o SR @I AT I JGH™ iy (=) Afsat mnRa @+ v Far geifier &
AeId F HaR [Har 2| A6 31.03.2014 T 2000 ¥ STf&d ATETET ATl 400 Tfa H & 359 719 G yfaffer
@ T Par BT S &b & TAT 3AST AHISA 1 URH 81 gHI 2, 38 Tfdl § WAV AN WIAPR I8 D%
forar war & qen AR # 3 TifdT # fasiE & HRUT AHG Yo TET & UTAT | 2000 ¥ HH ATETET dTel 2316 Tiat
H ¥ 334 7191 H 193 oy Ul 9910 PR S Hax fhar W B |

B §& 39Nl H 120 AT TG ARGY (FH: 2013—14, 2014—15 T 2015—16 TS aY H 40) Wil DI AT I18
2| a9 I 99 & 40 310 o7 ¥RE @ieH @ J&d Bl a4 ° UTd &R forT 2 | 391 ARIRA &l 98 &
HTE IehiH IR @il T € TAT 5% 46 & 8 W6 gal gRT Garferd faar S <&r 2 |

 §% ¥ fowig FHaeE Ted (Twasiied) & Ahadigdd Hraff~ad & faar Tar & o faqiad 31.03.2014 &1
FRA! (GST9) # §& &7 fHaRE A1Ea IR YTH UTed |aT S5 a4 47 2 |

» g gfafafedl & A 65,000 A% WA @il U T2AT AT, 2014 TH 0.26 HIAS DI IHRAT AR &
1T Bl Afbel @Il I GAT 1.45 ARG @iet Q| A1 et @i § Fo AR 10.86 ARG wW, B THRAT

3T 61.84 PRIS 2 |
B 4503.31 RIS BUU BT IHIAT 3T AR 154570 fha Bfec Hre ORI fhy M7 |

B §F q 1272 FRIS 6. DI AR AT 2.88 ARG WAl H 500/ —%. DI AR $IHBe BI, URT @raT aar &1 a4
fear g1

Tt TwenE wral ®T HEeE Fav H Haka w) fear war g aer . ufegar gRenferd ¥

e dder siaeur (S gider o Frefage -

O HA & RS 16.11.2012 & feenfcen & AR 43 Tl # faid 01.01.2013 § YIeT Fdhal HaRul
Giaem &1 Srifad R a7 a1 & q2O1 f&H1% 1.07.2013 F gTdT fgaiig ==or # 78 3R wRamell # s9aT fIeR
foram T B | yger Al SfaRur 121 Rttt § ugd € ¥ wrifad 2|

m gl ARl & forg SIidiva AT S 289 fTell # FHtfad far ST gar & T <= & =T W A
W 39 IWUEE WU ¥ HFd IR & Q| g9RT % KTl g, wiedie 1 46 H o 9% 2

40 arffe RuXé 2013-14



Punjab & Sind Bank e

g
districts to impart free Financial Literacy/Credit Counseling Services to the needy persons to help them avail financial
services from Banking system and also to provide counseling services to those who are under financial distress due
to debt burden.

CONTRIBUTION TO RURAL DEVELOPMENT

‘PSB Trust for Development of Agriculture and Rural Employment ‘(PSB Trust for DARE) has been established with
the objectives of setting up training institutes for imparting trainings to farmers and for capacity building of the rural
youth/women/economically weaker sections and also organizing tractor maintenance, animal welfare camps etc.
through Rural Development Centres.

As per initiative of Ministry of Rural Development (MoRD), Govt. of India, Bank under the aegis of ‘PSB Trust for
Development of Agriculture and Rural Employment has established ‘Rural Self Employment Training Institutes
(RSETIs)’ in three of its lead districts Moga, Faridkot and Ludhiana in Punjab to promote entrepreneurship development
among rural youth and encourage them taking up self-employment activities. The operational expenditures, salary
to support staff and infrastructure facility of these RSETIs are fully met by Trust for Development of Agriculture and
Rural Employment (DARE). During 2013-14, these training institutes have trained 1410 unemployed candidates, taking
the tally to 4729 trained youths since inception.

As per MoRD guidelines, Government of Punjab allotted land for setting up Rural Self Employment Training Institutes
(RSETIs). With the financial assistance of MoRD/Bank’s CSR fund assistance, the construction of RSETI Building at
Moga is completed. The construction work at Faridkot is in full swing and at Ludhiana the work is under progress.

FINANCIAL INCLUSION

Financial Inclusion is not only a process but a Mission for the Bank to empower deprived and underserved sections
of the population and the endeavor of the bank has been to connect these people with the banking system i.e.
“inclusion of the excluded” and make them a productive asset of the society. Key initiatives of the bank are as under:

= Bank has been allotted 400 unbanked villages with population above 2000 and 2316 unbanked villages
with population below 2000. These villages have been covered by the bank either by opening regular
Brick and Mortar Branches or through Information Communication Technology (ICT) based Business
Correspondent (BC) model. As on 31.03.2014, out of the 400 villages with population above 2000, 359
villages have been covered by deployment of BCAs and enrolment have already been started, 38 villages
have been covered by opening Rural Branches. Out of 2316 villages with population less than 2000, 334
villages have been covered by deployment of 193 BCAs.

®  Bank has planned to open 120 USBs over a period of 3 years i.e. 40 each in 2013-14, 2014-15 and 2015-
16. Bank has achieved the 2013-14 targets for opening of 40 USBs. These branches have been opened
on CBS platform of the bank and are managed by permanent staff of the bank.

= Fl Gateway has been successfully implemented and Bank has made Ist CSC Kiosk live on 31.01.2014 at
Kurali (Punjab).

= During the year, Bank has opened 65,000 additional No-Frill Accounts through BCs and total No-frill
accounts opened up to March 2014 are 1.45 Lacs with total outstanding of Rs. 0.26 crore. The Cumulative
figure of No Frill Account is 10.86 Lac with total outstanding of Rs.61.84 Crore.

= Bank has issued 154570 KCCs with a total outstanding of Rs. 4503.31 crore.

= Bank has provided Over Draft facility of Rs. 500/~ per account availed in 2.88 lacs No-frill Accounts with
overdraft amount of Rs. 12.72 crore.

All FI accounts have been migrated to CBS Server and total system has since been operationalised.

IMPLEMENTATION OF DIRECT CASH TRANSFER (DCT) & DBTL

= |n terms of the directions of Ministry of Finance, Direct Cash Transfer (DCT) has been implemented in
43 districts in a phased manner w.e.f. 01.01.2013 and has been extended to 78 more districts in Phase Il
w.e.f. 01.07.2013. The DCT Scheme is already implemented in 121 districts.

= The DBTL scheme for LPG beneficiaries has already been implemented in 289 districts and it will be rolled
out in rest of the country in phased manner. Our Bank has a lead role in District Ludhiana, Faridkot and
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Moga. Bank is in the process of seeding Aadhaar number of LPG beneficiaries in their Bank accounts. District
wise details of number of beneficiaries and Aadhaar seeding as on 31% March2014 is appended below :

Name of District Total beneficiaries Aadhaar seeded by OMCs Aadhaar seeded by bank
Faridkot 116811 88853 (76.07%) 82116 (70.30%)
Ludhiana 958241 647610 (67.58%) 554230 (57.84%)
Moga 181195 89654 (49.48%) 63981 (35.31%)

RETAIL MARKETING_

The Bank aggressively pursued Retail Lending through liberalization of policy for products under the Retail segment,
rationalized the interest rates to make the products most competitive in the market and undertook specific marketing
initiatives to provide depth to the Loan book of the Bank.

Further, Special Festival Bonanza Scheme was launched for providing Housing Loan, Auto Loan and Consumer Loan
to existing and new customers. New innovative Retail products were also launched during the year. The growth in
fresh Retail lending was above 6% over previous year.

The percentage of Retail loans to gross advances was 6.91% as on 31-03-14.

Further, the Bank participated in the booking schemes launched by various Housing Development Authorities of
State Governments for financing of the earnest money.

The Bank has introduced a facility of online submission of application form by prospective borrowers for Retail Loans
with a facility to track the status online.

The Bank also initiated the process for entering into MOU with major commercial and passenger car manufactures
to boost Auto lending.

ASSETS QUALITY

The Bank continued to make concerted efforts to contain NPAs and has used all available tools of recovery including
negotiated settlements and legal means. The provisions of “The Securitization & Reconstruction of Financial Assets
& Enforcement of Security Interest Act — 2002” were used effectively. The Bank also organized Recovery Camps
during the year at various centers. During the year, two short term schemes for settlement of NPAs were formulated
under Agriculture Sector and unsecured T.W.O accounts apart from Bank’s Recovery Management Policy. In all 1554
cases were settled at Rs.85.87 Crore.

The performance of the Bank under recovery of NPAs during the year continued to be good. The aggressive and
focused efforts could result in the total recovery of over Rs.493.72 Crore including recovery of Rs.95.21 crore in
Technically Written Off accounts.

However, despite higher slippage, the gross and net NPAs as on 31.03.2014 have been contained at Rs.2553.52
crore and Rs.1918.60 crore as against Rs. 1536.90 crore and Rs. 1110.38 crore as on 31.03.2013 respectively.

The position of Gross and Net NPAs as on 31.03.2014 vis-a-vis previous year is as under:

(Amount in crore)

NPA As on 31.03.2013 As on 31.03.2014
GROSS 1536.90 2.96% 2553.52 4.41%
NET 1110.38 2.16% 1918.60 3.35%

The Provisioning Coverage Ratio of the Bank (including T.W.O a/cs), as on 31.03.2014 stood at 45.51%.

INVESTMENT & FOREIGN EXCHANGE

The Bank’s total investment increased by 25.48% during current financial year to Rs.28346.61 crore with a portfolio
composition consistent with the corporate requirement, risk perception and investment policy of the Bank.

The profit on sale of securities for the year increased from Rs. 62.98 crore for year ended March 2013 to Rs. 125.37
crore for the year ended 31.03.2014 on account of trading activities in G-sec and Non-SLR securities.
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Exchange profit in Forex transactions for the year 2013-14 was Rs 26.91crores (Forex Treasury).

RISK MANAGEMENT

The Bank has put in place a robust and integrated Risk Management system to ensure that the risks assumed by the Bank
are within the defined risk appetites and are adequately monitored. The overall responsibility of setting the Bank’s risk
appetite and effective risk management rests with the Board and apex level management of the Bank. The implementation
of Integrated Risk Management System in the Bank is monitored by HO Risk Management Department (RMD) which
is headed by General Manager.

Risk is managed through following Apex committees viz.
= Risk Management Committee (RMC)- a Board level Committee
= Credit Risk Management Committee (CRMC)
®m  Asset and Liabilities Management Committee (ALCO)
= Operational Risk Management Committee (ORMC) and
= (Capital Planning Committee as per ICAAP

These committees work within the overall guidelines and policies approved by the Risk Management Committee
(RMQ) / Board.

POLICY FRAMEWORK

The Bank has Board approved policies and procedures in place to measure, manage and control various risks that
the Bank is exposed to.

Integrated Risk Management Policy has been formulated with the objective of analyzing the overall risk profile
of the bank and to integrate all the risks of the Bank. The other important risk policies comprise of Asset-Liability
Management (ALM) Policy, Investment Policy, Loan Policy, Risk Based Internal Audit (RBIA), Credit Audit, Country
Risk Management Policy, Derivatives Policy, Operational Risk Management Policy, Business Continuity Planning (BCP)
& Disaster Recovery Management (DRM) Policy, Stress Testing Policy, Policy on Utilization of Credit Risk Mitigation,
ICAAP Policy. The policies are reviewed annually by the RMC / Board.

BANK'S COMPLIANCE WITH BASEL-II

In terms of Regulatory Guidelines of Reserve Bank of India, the Bank has adopted the New Capital Adequacy
Framework w.e.f. 31.03.2009. Based on Basel Il norms, the Bank has adopted Standardized Approach for Credit
Risk, Modified Duration approach for Market Risk and Basic Indicator approach for Operational Risk for computing
the capital charge. The Bank has also implemented Basel 11l Guidelines and has started computing CRAR w.e.f. June
2013. The CRAR position of the Bank is reviewed by the Board on a quarterly basis. Bank is geared for moving
towards advanced approaches under BASEL Il as suggested by RBI. Bank has also appointed a Consultant for setting
up Enterprise Wide Integrated Risk Management System (EIRMS) in the Bank for moving to Advance approaches of
Basel 1l and implementation of Basel 11l Guidelines.

ICAAP POLICY

In compliance with the Reserve Bank of India guidelines on Basel Il & Basel Ill — Pillar 2- Supervisory Review and
Evaluation Process (SREP), the Internal Capital Adequacy Assessment Process (ICAAP) Policy has been formulated to
assess the capital requirement commensurate with the size, level of complexity, risk profile and scope of operations
of the Bank. Various residual risks are assessed and additional capital is provided for wherever required. The capital
adequacy of the Bank is assessed based on the analysis of current and projected financial/capital position as well as
the headroom available.

Stress Testing exercises are also undertaken to assess the likely impact of various stress situations in relation to capacity
of Bank’s profitability to absorb the shock and consequent impact on Bank’s capital. The ICAAP outcome is prepared
on half yearly basis and is reviewed by RMC.

DISCLOSURE

In compliance with the Reserve Bank of India guidelines on Basel Il & Basel Ill — Pillar 3 — Market Discipline, the
Bank has put in place a Disclosure Policy duly approved by the Board and the disclosures on quarterly / Half yearly
/ Annual basis, as per the policy, are displayed on the Bank’s Website / Annual Report.
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CREDIT RISK

Credit risk management processes involve identification, measurement, monitoring and control of credit exposures.
Credit risk and its policy formulation is managed by Credit Risk Management Committee (CRMC). The Committee
regularly monitors prudential caps in different loan segments including industry, corporate, retail and individual/
group borrowers.

Comprehensive credit rating framework comprising of Credit Risk Rating Models for Corporate and Retail Loans,
pricing of loans linked to risk assessment and credit rating, study & analysis of industries/portfolio, migration of credit
ratings is undertaken.

MARKET RISK
The Bank’s portfolio is exposed to Market Risk on account of change of Interest rates and Currency rates.

The Asset and Liabilities Management Committee (ALCO) is overseeing the functions relating to market risk. The
Bank has put in place a variety of market risk measurement systems and tools including a Mid office in Treasury
Department. Strict adherence to various limits and proper escalation of breaches, if any, are followed.

The Liquidity Management Framework is well established, which safeguards the ability of the Bank to meet all payment
obligations when they become due. It is designed to identify measure and manage the liquidity risk position of the Bank.

The Bank is computing the Market Risk Capital charge as per the Modified Duration approach, by using Modified
duration method, as per the guidelines received from the regulator. The Bank also calculates Value at Risk (VaR) on
its foreign exchange portfolio at prescribed intervals.

The Bank periodically undertakes stress test exercise to highlight the potential risks, on account of liquidity and Interest
rate risk that may arise due to events that are rare but conceivable. The impacts of shock on account of different risk
factors that may generate worst case scenario are studied and to counter the impact possible solutions are derived.

OPERATIONAL RISK

The Operational Risk Management Committee (ORMC) oversees on matters relating to risks associated with operations
and ensures the continuity / restoration of business in the event of contingency / exigencies. Presently, capital charge
on operational risk is calculated as per Basic Indicator Approach. The Bank is in the process of strengthening its ORM
Framework & ORM systems to migrate to advance approaches for calculation of Operational Risk Capital.

Bank has posted Risk Managers in all the Zonal Offices and also at Top 10 branches for ensuring compliance of Basel
norms at the operating level and with the aim of conservation and optimum use of capital.

HUMAN RESOURCE DEVELOPMENT
The cadre wise staff strength as on 31.03.2014 is as under:-

Category 31st March 2013 31st March 2014

Officers 5932 6062
Clerks 1640 2029
Sub-staff 961 779
Total 8533 8870

WOMEN IN EMPLOYMENT:- Out of the total strength of 8870 as on 31.03.2014, the women employees are 1738
constituting 19.60% of the total strength.
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EMPLOYMENT TO RESERVED CATEGORY EMPLOYEES:- Bank is committed to the constitutional safeguard and social
objectives for the development and welfare of persons belonging to SC, ST and other backward classes of the society.
The Bank observes all guidelines stipulated by the Govt. of India in respect of Reservation Policy for reservation of
Posts in all India and local recruitments.

A special SC/ST cell has been set up in the Bank to monitor the Reservation and other provisions for SC/ST employees.
An executive at the rank of General Manager has been designated as Chief Liaison Officer for SC/ST employees who
ensures compliance of various guidelines pertaining to SC/ST employees and takes care of all matters of grievance
redressal of SC/ST employees of the Bank.

The staff strength of SC/ST employees stood at 1382 and 436 respectively on 31.03.2014. The staff strength under
various reserved categories viz OBC/EX-SM/PH is as under:-

CATEGORY SC ST OBC EX-SM PH

OFFICERS 813 348 692 43 71
CLERKS 342 60 334 121 44
SUB-STAFF 227 28 32 173 15
TOTAL 1382 436 1058 337 130

FINANCIAL ASSISTAN CE TO THE DEPENDENTS OF DECEASED EMPLOYEES

During the Financial year 2013-14 the Bank made total payment of Rs.55,06,108/- in 9 cases received from the
dependants of the deceased employees under the scheme for the payment of ex-Gratia in lieu of appointment on
compassionate grounds.

PROMOTIONS

Bank is regularly promoting employees almost in all cadres year after year to keep rewarding its top performers and
make them assume higher responsibilities. Special drive was made during the year under review to fulfill the growing
aspirations of the employees for fast career progression thereby motivating employees for higher productivity.

Following promotions have been effected during the year:

Promotions from DGM to GM AGM to CM to AGM | SRM to CM | MGR to SRM OFFICER to Total
DGM MGR
General 6 5 3 95 59 128 296
Specialist - - 1 4 2 5 12
Total 6 5 4 99 61 133 308
TRAINING

Training is an integral part of Human Resource development. In the current competitive environment in the Banking
Industry, it is all the more important to keep the staff abreast of the latest developments in technology, system and
procedures, legal aspects etc., especially amongst the peers.

The training programs organized by the Bank are focused towards integrating the new recruits into the Bank and in
enhancing the skills, knowledge and for reorienting the attitude of its existing work force to achieve the organizational
objectives.

The Bank endeavoured to provide training to 50% of its employees during the Financial Year 2013-14. With this in
view, 236 programmes were conducted by PSB Centre for Banking Research & Training at Chandigarh in General
Banking & Computer related programmes at NIBSCOM, NOIDA in various fields from 1%t April 2013 to 31 March
2014, in which training was imparted to 4654 employees of different cadres.
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7 Special Training Programmes were conducted at NIBSCOM on Credit Appraisal, Foreign Exchange and Security
Workshop in which 219 officials were imparted training.

Besides 213 officers were also imparted training at Apex Level. Bank also deputed four officials in various cadres
for overseas trainings.

INDUSTRIAL RELATIONS:- The industrial relations in the Bank remained cordial throughout the year. The
representatives from Workers and Officers unions participated in various discussions on developmental and other
issues with the management at various levels and efforts were made to resolve the same.

DIRECT RECRUITMENT:- The Bank launched a special recruitment drive to cater to the challenges of superannuation,
sustained business growth and rapid branch expansion in the FY 2013-14. Recruitment of both the Specialist Officers
and Probationary Officers was done to address the diverse manpower requirement of the Bank.

During the year, 1 Chief Security Officer in Scale -V, 3 CAs in Scale -llI, 22 CAs in Scale Il, 8 Law Officers in Scale
—I1,772 Probationary Officers, 38 AFO in Scale —I, 10 HR/IR Officers in Scale | and 495 Single Window Operators-A
in Clerical cadre have joined the Bank under Bank’s Recruitment Projects.

STAFF WELFARE

In order to motivate and encourage the staff for effective participation in development activities, the Bank is maintaining
various welfare schemes for the staff.

During 2013-14, Bank introduced new schemes for the welfare of staff. Also improvement / betterment in the existing
schemes of Housing Loans, Mediclaim Policy for retired employees etc. have been made for the welfare of staff.

INFORMATION TECHNOLOGY
®  Ason 31.03.14, all 1330 branches of the Bank are on Core Banking Solution.

®  Bank has implemented Anti Money Laundering Solution which facilitates generation of Cash Transaction
Report (CTR), Suspicious Transaction Reports (STR) and Non-profit Transaction Report (NTR).

®  Cheque Truncation System has been implemented across the country and bank is participating in all the
grids i.e. Southern, Western and Northern Grids.

®  Biometric based Authentication for employees’ login into CBS application has been introduced to prevent
the incidence of frauds taking place on account of password theft/sharing of password. As on 31.03.2014,
rollout in 445 branches has been completed. Rollout in the remaining branches shall be completed by
June 2014.

®  Video Conferencing Facility has been extended to 74 centers, which includes Head Office, Zonal Offices
and top Business Branches.

INTERNAL CONTROL

The Internal control function like many other functions of the management is carried out in the Bank through a well-
established Inspection & Audit Dept.(IAD), which ensures examination & verification of adherence to systems, policies
and procedures of the Bank. The IAD constantly aims at checking the inherent risks through its effective control
mechanism, enforced through five Zonal Inspectorates, to protect Bank’s interest and endeavours to prevent frauds
by conducting RBIA and Inspection of branches/ offices as per risk prioritised Annual Audit Plan (AAP) approved by
the Audit Committee of the Bank.

The Audit Committee of the Board (ACB) oversees the internal Audit function of the Bank for improving the efficiency
of systemic controls. The ACB, which met 8 times during FY 2013-14, also monitors the functioning of the Audit
Committee of Executives (ACE), which is a first tier Committee to oversee Inspection and Audit function in the bank.

During FY 2013-14, Risk Based Internal Audit was conducted in 876 branches of the Bank; 496 branches were
brought under Concurrent Audit System; the Information System audit was conducted in 288 branches; Post migration
audit was conducted in 600 branches, and Zonal Offices and Departments at Head Office have been subjected to
Management Audit & Inspection.
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The Inspection and Audit Department is also assigned the responsibility of monitoring redressal of the customer
grievances/ complaints. The Bank has implemented Standardized Public Grievances Redressal System (SPGRS), a
web-based customer complaint redressal module. During FY 2013-14, 1810 complaints were received, of which
1775 complaints have been disposed off. The Banking Ombudsman passed 5 awards against the Bank out of which
against 2 awards bank has gone into appeal.

During the year, the Inspection and Audit Department formulated ‘Risk Based Internal Audit Policy’ and revised &
devised computer aided reporting formats of Risk Based Internal Audit & Concurrent Audit.

To summarize, Bank’s Inspection and Audit Dept. has been effectively monitoring the compliance of systems and
procedures laid down by Board, the Regulator and the Government of India.

COMPLIANCE FUNCTION

During the financial year 2013-14, Bank reviewed the Compliance-policy. Compliance Manuals of Zonal Offices
and various HO Departments were drafted /updated during the year. Functional Manual of the bank has also been
placed on the Intranet site of the bank.

Bank complied with the various guidelines issued by the RBI on Compliance functions. The Compliance Department
ensures that the functioning of Zonal Offices, Branches and Departments is synchronized with their Functional Manuals.
Annual Compliance Audits of branches/offices are conducted at regular intervals.

PR and PUBLICITY

During the financial year 2013-14, the Bank adopted a multi-media strategy to build up its image in Public and at the
corporate level and accordingly publicity was made through the print media by release of its product, tender, financial
and other display/notice ads in different newspapers, magazines and souvenirs targeting various audiences all over the
country.

Bank also used effective outdoor media signifying display of Balloon at Chandigarh and Amritsar Airports. Bank’s
banners, hoardings displayed on events of high publicity value facilitated extension of outreach of the Bank.

Bank also received immense publicity through Bank’s Wall Calendar & Table Calendar 2014 which was widely
distributed among clients and well wishers of Bank.

Bank got huge publicity by way of coverage of its press releases by the print media.

All these activities facilitated the Bank to rededicate itself to the service of the Nation and enabled it to earn a well
deserved mileage on the publicity front.

VIGILANCE
PREVENTIVE VIGILANCE

During the year, the Vigilance Department has taken number of initiatives on Preventive as well as on Punitive
Vigilance to strengthen the vigilance administration and also to instill compliance culture within the organization.

To educate staff across the organization to work with utmost sincerity, honesty and uniformity in a most transparent
manner and to spread awareness about stronger compliance culture and strengthening vigilance administration, series
of programmes, conferences and workshops were organized. These programmes were participated by senior officials
of the Bank and also presided over by the Top officials of the Central Vigilance Commission and CBI.

VALUE ADDITION TO THE ORGANIZATION

In line with this year’s theme observing Vigilance Awareness Week by Hon’ble CVC “Promoting Good Governance —
Positive Contribution of Vigilance” and on the basis of information received from various sources, quarters regarding
Revenue Leakages in Big Borrowal Accounts, Bank started a special drive under the name “Mission Compliance” i.e.
checking of the compliance of terms and conditions of sanction in big borrowal accounts on sample basis.
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OBSERVANCE OF VIGILANCE AWARENESS WEEK FROM 28.10.2013 TO 02.11.2013

As desired by Hon’ble Commission, the Bank undertook number of initiatives during “Vigilance Awareness Week"
w.e.f. 28.10.2013 to 02.11.2013 for observing the same in a befitting manner. Besides, a programme for all the senior
functionaries of Delhi based Zones was also organized.The programme was inaugurated by Vigilance Commissioner,
Central Vigilance Commission.

SECURITY ARRANMGEENT

The Bank has a well established Security set-up within the Bank’s organizational structure. Security department of the
Bank has been regularly reviewing the security arrangements at all Currency Chests and branches and accordingly
strengthening the security arrangements to meet prevailing security scenario with effective, modern and unobstructed
Security Systems. All the essential and mandatory security arrangements in terms of RBI/ IBA guidelines are provided
at most of the branches.

The Zonal Security Officers periodically carry-out Security audit of branches to assess the security arrangements in
vogue and recommend implementation of additional preventive security measures wherever desired. They maintain
close liaison with the law enforcing and administrative authorities. Besides, the Chief Security Officer, other officials
from Head Office are also carrying out the security audit of the Currency Chests and also undertake random visits of
the vulnerable branches of the Bank.

The Access Control System at all Banks’ Currency Chests has been strengthened in terms of RBI guidelines. Security
Alarm Systems are installed at all branches and currency chests.

All the branches of Bank are provided armed guards and all the cash remittances are escorted by armed guard. Training,
including firing practice, for Armed Guards deployed at currency chests / branches is imparted on an annual basis.
Also, all the security officers undergo refresher training on security once in a year.

CCTV Surveillance System has been installed at all the Currency chest branches and 237 identified High Risk and
vulnerable branches in the first phase, keeping in view the threat perception, volume of cash and valuables handled
and need for continuous surveillance. CCTV systems shall be installed at remaining branches in a phased manner.

IMPLEMENTATION OF OFFICIAL LANGUAGE

During the financial year 2013-14, Bank made significant progress in implementation of Official Language Policy for
promoting and propagating the use of Official Language in the Bank. During the year 2013-14, a total of 84 workshops
were organized, in which 1039 personnel were trained. Besides, 3203 personnel were trained during 705 Hindi Desk
Training Programmes and 286 personnel were imparted training for using Unicode on Computers. With the aim of
reviewing the progress of Official Language, inspections were conducted in 705 Branches/Offices.

This year ‘Delhi Town Official Language Implementation Committee’ (TOLIC), awarded ‘Consolation Prize’ to our
Bank In-House Hindi Magazine ‘Rajbhasha Ankur’. Apart from this five employees of our Bank won eight prizes in
various competitions organized by different banks under the auspices of Delhi Bank TOLIC.

SPORTS
The Bank has a Sports Academy which nurtures Bank’s Hockey Team at National Level, besides Hockey Academy
for age group of 15-18 years. During the year, Bank’s Hockey Team won the following three National Tournaments:
= All India Gurmit Hockey Tournament
= All India Surjit Hockey Tournament
= All India Nehru Hockey Tournament
The Bank’s Hockey Academy also brought laurels to the Bank by winning All India Level Tournaments.

The following players of the Bank’s Hockey Team and Hockey Academy have represented Indian Hockey Team in
various International Tournaments during the year 2013-14:
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Sh. Harbir Singh Sh. Harjot Singh Sh. Satbir Singh Sh. Ramandeep Singh
Sh. Gurmail Singh Sh. Prabhdeep Singh Sh. Talwinder Singh

Sh. Baljit Singh Saini Olyampian was appopinted as coach of the Indian Hockey Team and
Sh. Rajinder Singh Olyampian was appointed as coach of Indian University Team.

In addition to the above said achievements, the officials attached with Bank’s Hockey Team have also worked for
the deposit mobilization during this financial year.

RECONCILIATION

Total outstanding in Inter Bank Reconciliation (IBR) & Demand Draft as on 31.03.2014 has been reduced by 99%
from the level as on 31-03-2013.

GENERAL ADMINISTRATION

Various building projects viz Staff Training College, Delhi, Fort Mumbai, Gurgaon, Noida etc. are in progress and
are likely to be completed this year. During the year, Bank has gone for revaluation of Bank owned properties after
a gap of three years.

CONSTITUTION OF BOARD OF DIRECTORS

As on 31 March 2014, the Board comprised of three Whole time Directors viz Chairman & Managing Director
and two Executive Directors besides ten other Directors including representatives from Ministry of Finance, Reserve
Bank of India, Non Official Director (Chartered Accountant Category), two Share Holders Directors and five Part
Time Non Official Directors.

Various Committees constituted under the Board as listed below, oversee the functioning and control the affairs of
the bank:

= Management Committee

Audit Committee

Risk Management Committee

Committee for Monitoring of Large Value Frauds
Vigilance Committee

Customer Service Committee
Shareholders’/Investors Grievance Committee

IT Strategy Committee

Nomination Committee

HR Committee

Appellate Committee

Remuneration Committee

Committee of Directors on Executives’ Promotion
Committee for Monitoring of Recovery
Concurrent Audit Committee

During the year 2013-14, sixteen meetings of the Board of Directors, twenty one meetings of the Management
Committee and eight meetings of the Audit Committee of the Board were held besides meetings of other
Committees of the Board.

The constitution of Bank’s Board of Directors underwent following changes during the year 2013-14:
INCLUSIONS

n Sh. Pradipta K Jena was nominated as RBlI Nominee Director of the Bank vide Government of India,
Ministry of Finance, Department of Financial Services, New Delhi Notification No.F.No. 6/34/2013-BO.1
dated 31.05.2013.

®m  Sh. Kishore Kumar Sansi was appointed as Executive Director of Punjab & Sind Bank, vide Government of
India, Ministry of Finance, Department of Financial Services, New Delhi Notification No.F.No. 4/5/2012-
BO.1 dated 05.08.2013.
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Sh. Mukesh Kumar Jain was appointed as Executive Director of Punjab & Sind Bank, vide Government of
India, Ministry of Finance, Department of Financial Services, New Delhi Notification No.F.No. 4/5/2012-
BO.1 dated 05.08.2013.

®  Sh. Sanjay Verma was nominated as Non-official Director of the Bank vide Government of India, Ministry
of Finance, Department of Financial Services, New Delhi Notification No.F.No. 6/16/2011-BO.1 dated
12.08.2013.

®  Sh. S C Das was nominated as Ministry of Finance Nominee Director of the Bank vide Government of
India, Ministry of Finance, Department of Financial Services, New Delhi Notification No.F.No. 6/3/2012-
BO.1 dated 22.10.2013.

®  Smt. Anita Karnavar was nominated as Non-official Director of the Bank vide Government of India, Ministry
of Finance, Department of Financial Services, New Delhi Notification No.F.No. 6/56/2013-BO.1 dated
30.01.2014.

Sh. Jatinderbir Singh-IAS was appointed as Chairman & Managing Director of Punjab & Sind Bank vide Government
of India, Ministry of Finance, Department of Financial Services, New Delhi Notification No.F.No. 4/7/2013-BO.1
dated 31.01.2014.

CESSATIONS
Sh. Devinder Pal Singh, Chairman & Managing Director attained the age of superannuation and thus retired on
31.01.2014.

Sh. Rajat Sachar, MOF Nominee Director was on the Board of the Bank up to 21.10.2013.
Sh. Karanpal Singh Sekhon completed his term as Non-Official Director on the Board of the Bank on 04.07.2013.
Sh. B P Kanungo, RBI Nominee Director was on the Board of the Bank up to 30.05.2013.

Sh. P K Anand, Executive Director attained the age of superannuation and thus retired from the service of the bank
on 31.05.2013.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Bank is committed to good Corporate Governance and is constantly striving to further strengthen the same
to ensure greater transparency and better coordination at all levels in the Organization. The working of the Bank
reflects transparent ownership structure, improved risk management practices, well defined delegation of powers,
accountability and an elaborate audit function carried out by both its Inspection & Audit Division and by independent
Statutory Central Auditors.

Bank has complied with the guidelines of RBI and SEBI on the matters relating to Corporate Governance which have
been examined by the Statutory Central Auditors.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENTS
®  The Directors confirm that in the preparation of the Annual Accounts for the year ended 31 March, 2014:

®m  The applicable accounting standards have been followed along with proper explanation relating to material
departures, if any.

®  The accounting policies framed in accordance with the guidelines of the Reserve Bank of India, were
consistently applied.

®  Reasonable and prudent judgment and estimates were made so as to give a true and fair view of the state
of affairs of the Bank at the end of the financial year and of the profit of the bank for the year ended on
31 March, 2014

®  Proper and sufficient care was taken for the maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance
with the provisions of applicable laws Governing Banks in India and the accounts have been prepared on
going concern basis.

STATUTORY AUDIT

As approved by Reserve Bank of India, Bank has appointed M/s.R.M.Lall & Co., Lucknow, M/s.O.P Tulsyan & Co,
New Delhi; M/s B K Shroff & Co., Kolkata; and M/s R Kothari & Co., Kolkata as Statutory Central Auditors for the
accounting year ended March 2014.
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ACKNOWLEDGEMENTS

The Board of Directors of the Bank thanks valued customers, shareholders, well-wishers and correspondents of the
Bank in India and abroad for their goodwill, patronage and continued support.

The Directors also acknowledge with gratitude the valuable and timely advice, guidance and support received from
Government of India, Reserve Bank of India, Securities and Exchange Board of India (SEBI), Stock Exchanges, various
State Governments, Financial Institutions and the Statutory Central Auditors of the Bank in the functioning of the Bank.

The Directors place on record their deep appreciation for the valuable contribution of the members of the staff at all
levels for the progress of the Bank during the year and look forward to their continued co-operation in realization of
the Corporate goals in years ahead.

For and on behalf of Board of Directors

Sd/-
Place: New Delhi (Jatinderbir Singh)
Dated:10.05.2014 Chairman & Managing Director
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Punjab & Sind Bank
Report on Corporate Governance (2013-14)

BANK’S PHILOSOPHY ON CODE OF GOVERNANCE :

The Bank shall continue its endeavor to enhance its shareholders’ value by protecting their interest by ensuring
performance at all levels, and maximizing returns with optimal use of resources in its pursuit of excellence.
The Bank shall comply with not only the statutory requirements, but also voluntarily formulate and adhere to
a set of strong Corporate Governance practices. The Bank believes in setting high standards of ethical values,
transparency and a disciplined approach to achieve excellence in all its sphere of activities. The Bank is also
committed to follow the best practices. The Bank shall strive hard to best serve the interests of its stakeholders
comprising shareholders, customers, Government and society at large.

The Bank is a listed entity, which is not a company but body corporate under the Banking Companies (Acquisition
and Transfer of Undertakings) Act, 1980 and is regulated by Reserve Bank of India. Therefore, the Bank shall
comply with the provisions of Revised Clause 49 of the Listing Agreement entered into with Stock Exchanges to
the extent it does not violate the provisions of the Banking Companies (Acquisition and Transfer of Undertakings)
Act, 1980 and the Guidelines issued by Reserve Bank of India in this regard.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Composition of the Board:

The composition of Board of Directors of the Bank is governed by the provisions of the Banking Regulation
Act, 1949, the Banking Companies (Acquisition and Transfer of Undertakings) Act, 1980, as amended and the
Nationalized Banks (Management and Miscellaneous Provisions) Scheme, 1980, as amended.

The composition of Board of Directors of the Bank as on 31st March, 2014 is as under:

Sr. Name Position Held No. of No. of No. of No of Remarks
No equity member- | Directorship Membership/ (nature of
shares of | ship in Sub [ held in other | Chairmanship appointment
the Bank | Committees | Companies held in Sub in the Bank
held as on | of the Bank [ i.e. Other Committees of | other
31.03.2014 than the the Board in Companies)
Bank. Other Companies
1 Sh. Jatinderbir Chairman & Managing NIL 10 NIL NIL +
Singh, IAS Director
2. Sh K.K. Sansi Executive Director NIL 9 NIL NIL *
3. Sh M.K.Jain Executive Director NIL 10 NIL NIL *
4., Sh S.C.Das Director —-MOF NIL 9 NIL NIL i
Nominee Director
5. Sh P.K. Jena Director — RBI NIL 6 NIL NIL @
Nominee Director
6. Sh. S.P.S. Virk Workmen Employee NIL 2 NIL NIL +++ 4+
Director
7. Sh.Mahesh Kumar |Non-Official Director NIL 4 NIL NIL DS
Gupta (CA-Cat)
8. Sh.Sukhen Pal Non-Official Director 499 5 2 NIL $
Babuta (Shareholder Director)
9. Sh. Sanjiv Kumar Non-Official Director | NIL 5 NIL NIL #
Arora
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Sr. Name Position Held No. of No. of No. of No of Remarks
No equity member- | Directorship Membership/ (nature of
shares of | ship in Sub [ held in other | Chairmanship appointment
the Bank | Committees | Companies held in Sub in the Bank
held as on | of the Bank | i.e. Other Committees of / other
31.03.2014 than the the Board in Companies)
Bank. Other Companies

10. |Sh. Sanjay Verma | Non-Official Director |NIL 5 NIL NIL ++

11. | Sh. Suresh Thakur | Non-Official Director |NIL 3 2 NIL +++

12. |Sh.N. Rajendran Non-Official Director |500 3 NIL NIL +4++

(Shareholder Director)

13. | Smt. Anita Non-Official Director |NIL NIL NIL NIL +4+++++
Karnavar

+  Appointed in terms of GOl MOF letter No F.N0.4/7/2013-BO-I dated 31st January 2014 as a whole time
Director (designated as Chairman & Mg. Director) w.e.f. the date of taking charge on or after 01.02.2014 and
upto 31.12.2017 i.e. the date of his attaining the age of superannuation or until further orders, whichever is
earlier.

* Appointed in terms of GOl MOF letter No F.N0.4/5/2012-BO-I dated 5th August 2013 as Executive Director
w.e.f. the date of his taking over charge of the post and upto 31.08.2017 i.e. the date of his attaining the age
of superannuation or until further orders, whichever is earlier.

* Appointed in terms of GOl MOF letter No F.N0.4/5/2012-BO-I dated 5th August 2013 as Executive Director for
a period of five years from the date of his taking over charge of the post, or until further orders, whichever is
earlier.

**  Appointed as Director in terms of GOl MOF letter No F.N0.6/3/2012-BO-I dated 22nd October 2013 under
clause (b) of sub section (3) of section 9 of the The Banking Companies (Acquisition & Transfer of Undertakings)
Act, 1970/1980 with immediate effect and until further orders.

@ Appointed as Director in terms of GOl MOF letter No F.N0.6/34/2013-BO-I dated 31st May 2013 under clause

(c) of sub section 3 of Section 9 of Banking Companies (Acquisition & Transfer of Undertakings) Act, 1970/1980
with immediate effect and until further orders.

++ + + + Appointed as Workmen Employee Director in terms of GOl MOF letter No F.No0.9 /35/2009-BO-I dated

23rd November 2011under Clause (e) of sub section 3 of Section 9 of The Banking Companies (Acquisition
& Transfer of Undertakings) Act, 1970/1980 for a period of three years from the date of notification or till he
ceases to be a Workmen employee of Punjab &Sind Bank or until further orders, whichever is earlier.

Appointed as part-time non-official Director under chartered accountant category in terms of GOl MOF letter
No F.No 6/16/2013-BO-I dated 30th January 2013 under of sub section (3g) of Section 9 of The Banking
Companies (Acquisition & Transfer of Undertakings) Act, 1970/1980 for a period of three years from the date
of notification and / or until further orders, whichever is earlier.

Elected from amongst the shareholders, other than the Central Government, in terms of Section 9 (3) (i) of
The Banking Companies (Acquisition & Transfer of Undertakings) Act, 1980 read with Clause 9 (4 ) of the
Nationalised Banks (Management & Miscellaneous Provisions) Scheme 1980 and Regulation 66 (i) of Punjab &
Sind Bank (Shares & Meetings) Regulations,2008 for a period of 3 years, i.e. from 03.06.2011.

Appointed as part-time non-official Director in terms of GOl MOF letter No F.N0.6/59/2010-BO-I dated 15th
July 2011 under of sub section (3h) and (3-A) of Section 9 of The Banking Companies (Acquisition & Transfer
of Undertakings) Act, 1970/1980 for a period of three years from the date of notification of his appointment
or until further orders, whichever is earlier.
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Punjab & Sind Bank
++ Appointed as part-time non-official Director in terms of GOl MOF letter No F.N0.6/16/2011-BO-I dated 12th
August 2013 under of sub section (3h) and (3-A) of Section 9 of The Banking Companies (Acquisition & Transfer
of Undertakings) Act, 1970/1980 for a period of three years from the date of notification of his appointment
or until further orders, whichever is earlier.

+ + +Appointed as part-time non-official Director in terms of GOl MOF letter No F.N0.6/57/2010-BO-I dated 13th
July 2011 under of sub section (3h) and (3-A) of Section 9 of The Banking Companies (Acquisition & Transfer
of Undertakings) Act, 1970/1980 for a period of three years from the date of notification of his appointment
or until further orders, whichever is earlier.

+ + + + Elected from amongst the shareholders, other than the Central Government, in terms of Section 9 (3) (i)
of The Banking Companies (Acquisition & Transfer of Undertakings) Act, 1980 read with Clause 9 (4) of the
Nationalised Banks (Management & Miscellaneous Provisions) Scheme 1980 and Regulation 66 (i) of Punjab &
Sind Bank (Shares & Meetings) Regulations, 2008 for a period of 3 years, i.e. from 03.06.2011.

+ + + + + + Appointed as part-time non-official Director in terms of GOl MOF letter No F.No0.6/56/2013-BO-I dated
30th January 2014 under of sub section (3h) and (3-A) of Section 9 of The Banking Companies (Acquisition
& Transfer of Undertakings) Act, 1970/1980 for a period of three years from the date of notification of her
appointment or until further orders, whichever is earlier.

2.2 Appointment / Cessation of Directors During The Year
The constitution of Bank’s Board of Directors underwent the following changes during the year 2013-2014:

[A] Appointment:

= Sh. Jatinderbir Singh, IAS was appointed as Chairman & Managing Director of Punjab & Sind Bank vide
Government of India, Ministry of Finance, Department of Financial Services, New Delhi Notification No.F.No.
4/7/2013-BO.1 dated 31.01.2014.

= Smt. Anita Karnavar was nominated as Non-official Director of the Bank vide Government of India, Ministry
of Finance, Department of Financial Services, New Delhi Notification No.F.No. 6/56/2013-BO.1 dated
30.01.2014.

= Sh. S C Das was nominated as Ministry of Finance Nominee Director of the Bank vide Government of India,
Ministry of Finance, Department of Financial Services, New Delhi Notification No.F.No. 6/3/2012-BO.1
dated 22.10.2013.

= Sh. Mukesh Kumar Jain was appointed as Executive Director of Punjab & Sind Bank, vide Government of
India, Ministry of Finance, Department of Financial Services, New Delhi Notification No.F.No. 4/5/2012-
BO.1 dated 05.08.2013.

®  Sh. Kishore Kumar Sansi was appointed as Executive Director of Punjab & Sind Bank, vide Government of
India, Ministry of Finance, Department of Financial Services, New Delhi Notification No.F.No. 4/5/2012-
BO.1 dated 05.08.2013.

®  Sh. Sanjay Verma was nominated as Non-official Director of the Bank vide Government of India, Ministry
of Finance, Department of Financial Services, New Delhi Notification No.F.No. 6/16/2011-BO.1 dated
12.08.2013.

= Sh. Pradipta K Jena was nominated as RBI Nominee Director of the Bank vide Government of India, Ministry
of Finance, Department of Financial Services, New Delhi Notification No.F.No. 6/34/2013-BO.1 dated
31.05.2013

[B] Directors out going / resigned during the year:

®  Sh. Devinder Pal Singh completed his term as Chairman & Managing Director of the Bank on 31.01.2014
i.e. the last day of the month in which he attained the age of superannuation.
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Punjab & Sind Bank

Sh. Rajat Sachar MOF Nominee Director was on the Board of the Bank up to 21.10.2013.

Sh. Karanpal Singh Sekhon completed his term as Non-Official Director on the Board of the Bank on
04.07.2013.

Sh. B P Kanungo RBI Nominee Director was on the Board of the Bank up to 30.05.2013.

Sh. P K Anand completed his term as Executive Director of the Bank on 31.05.2013 i.e. the last day of the
month in which he attained the age of superannuation.

2.3 Profiles of Directors appointed during 2013-14:
[A] Shri Jatinderbir Singh-1AS

SNO. PARTICULARS DETAIL

1. FULL NAME SHRI JATINDERBIR SINGH

2. FATHER’S NAME SARDAR BALWANT SINGH

3. DATE OF BIRTH & AGE 12.12.1957 - 56YEARS
PUNJAB & SIND BANK, BANK HOUSE,21, RAJENDRA

4. PRESENT ADDRESS PLACE,NEW DELHI

5. EMAIL ADDRESS CMD@PSB.ORG.IN

6. EDUCATIONAL QUALIFICATION MBA, PG-ENGLISH, GRADUATION

7. NATURE OF APPOINTMENT AS DIRECTOR CHAIRMAN & MANAGING DIRECTOR, PUNJAB & SIND
BANK

8. EXPERIENCE DURING HIS 30 YEARS LONG SERVICE SPAN HE
HAD MANY PRESTIGIOUS ASSIGNMENTS IN ASSAM,
MEGHALAYA AND IN DIFFERENT CENTRAL GOVERNMENT
MINISTRIES SUCH AS HOME AFFAIRS, CHEMICALS &
FERTILIZERS, DEFENCE AND WATER RESOURCES.

9. PARTICULARS OF OTHER DIRECTORSHIP (if —

any)

[B] Shri Mukesh Kumar Jain

SNO. PARTICULARS DETAIL

1. FULL NAME SHRI MUKESH KUMAR JAIN

2. FATHER’S NAME LT. SHRI MADAN LAL JAIN

3. DATE OF BIRTH & AGE 01.08.1960 — 53 YEARS

4. PRESENT ADDRESS 501, TOWER 1, COMMONWEALTH GAMES VILLAGE,
AKSHARDHAM, NEW DELHI.

5. EMAIL ADDRESS MKJAIN@PSB.CO.IN

6. EDUCATIONAL QUALIFICATION POST GRADUATE, DELHI SCHOOL OF ECONOMICS;
CHARTERED ACCOUNTANT

7. NATURE OF APPOINTMENT AS DIRECTOR EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR, PUNJAB & SIND BANK

8. EXPERIENCE EX GENERAL MANAGER, DENA BANK

9. PARTICULARS OF OTHER DIRECTORSHIP (if any) —
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[C] Shri Kishore Kumar Sansi

Punjab & Sind Bank

SNO. PARTICULARS DETAIL
1. FULL NAME SHRI KISHORE KUMAR SANSI
22 FATHER’S NAME SHRI BHIM SAIN SANSI
3. DATE OF BIRTH & AGE 19.08.1957- 56 YEARS
4. PRESENT ADDRESS D-1/5, RAJOURI GARDEN, NEW DELHI
5. EMAIL ADDRESS KISHORESANSI@PSB.CO.IN
6. EDUCATIONAL QUALIFICATION M.SC, M.TECH.
7. NATURE OF APPOINTMENT AS DIRECTOR EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR, PUNJAB & SIND BANK
8. EXPERIENCE EX GENERAL MANAGER, OBC
9. PARTICULARS OF OTHER DIRECTORSHIP (if any) —

[D] Shri Sanjay Verma

SNO. PARTICULARS DETAIL

1. FULL NAME SHRI SANJAY VERMA

28 FATHER’S NAME LT. SHRI SHYAMLAL VERMA

3. DATE OF BIRTH & AGE 17.08.1968- 45 Years

4. PRESENT ADDRESS 425, 1IM VASTRAPUR, AHMEDABAD.

5. EMAIL ADDRESS SVERMA@IIMAHD.ERNET.IN

6. EDUCATIONAL QUALIFICATION PhD. , MBA, BSc.

7. NATURE OF APPOINTMENT AS DIRECTOR PART-TIME NON-OFFICIAL DIRECTOR

8. EXPERIENCE MORE THAN 22 YEARS TEACHING EXPERIENCE IN
PRESTIGIOUS EDUCATIONAL INSTITUTES. HAS BEEN
TEACHING IN IIM AHMEDABAD SINCE MAY-1999.

9. PARTICULARS OF OTHER DIRECTORSHIP (if any) —
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[E] Shri S C Das

Punjab & Sind Bank

SNO. PARTICULARS DETAIL

1. FULL NAME SHRI S C DAS

2, FATHER’S NAME SHRI RA) KRISHAN DAS

3. DATE OF BIRTH & AGE 01.05.1954 — 59 YEARS

4. PRESENT ADDRESS 23/177, TYPE IV FLATS, LODHI ROAD, NEW DELHI.

5. EMAIL ADDRESS SC.DAS@NIC.IN

6. EDUCATIONAL QUALIFICATION B.A.

7. NATURE OF APPOINTMENT AS DIRECTOR GOVERNMENT NOMINEE DIRECTOR, DY. SECTARY,
DEPARTMENT OF FINANCIAL SERVICES

8. EXPERIENCE 38 YEARS EXPERIENCE IN DIFFERENT CENTRAL
GOVERNMENT MINISTRIES.

9. PARTICULARS OF OTHER DIRECTORSHIP (if any) -

[F] Smt. Anita Karnavar

SNO. PARTICULARS DETAIL

1. FULL NAME SMT. ANITA KARNAVAR

2. FATHER’S NAME SHRI T K R KURUP

3. DATE OF BIRTH & AGE 09.10.1957- 56 YEARS

4. PRESENT ADDRESS PERUMPITTATHU HOUSE, NEDUVARAMCOD, P.O.
ALLEPPEY (DT), KERALA. PIN-689508

5. EMAIL ADDRESS ANITAKARNAVAR@GMAIL.COM

6. EDUCATIONAL QUALIFICATION DOUBLE POST GRADUATE

7. NATURE OF APPOINTMENT AS DIRECTOR PART-TIME NON-OFFICIAL DIRECTOR

8. EXPERIENCE ENTREPRENEUR, NEWS READER IN DOORDARSHAN AND
RUNNING A NGO.

9. PARTICULARS OF OTHER DIRECTORSHIP (if any) —

[G] Shri Pradipta Kumar Jena

SNO. PARTICULARS DETAIL
1. FULL NAME SHRI PRADIPTA KUMAR JENA
2. FATHER’S NAME SHRI DASARATHI JENA
3. DATE OF BIRTH & AGE 09.01.1959- 55 YEARS
4. PRESENT ADDRESS 26, MADHUSUDAN NAGAR,UNIT-4,

BHUBANESHWAR-751001

EMAIL ADDRESS

PKJENA@RBI.ORG.IN

ANNUAL REPORT 2013-14

73



e uony ws g §6

BH. | <RI farega faaxor
6. | fers dmgar HAdIR, T4
7. |FRTe & wu A FYfe o sy IR Rerd & gRy A1 e
8. | gIHd T FET Yaed &3 aerd, 9LR.d%, garewar
9. o= AR usl &1 faarur -
(afe @1g & @)
24 &Y Job

i 99 2013—14 & IRME dre @ frafeRea [AfRT &1 @ 16 968 g3 Sdld IEFRA  d9b
(v vd fafder yrawm) Ao, 1980 & @S 12 # FEiRT od & IR AT 6 Jo@ @ AfaR] 2 |

06.04.2013 01.05.2013 21.05.2013 31.05.2013 14.06.2013
26.06.2013 27.07.2013 19.08.2013 25.09.2013 05.10.2013
11.11.2013 21.12.2013 02.01.2014 16.01.2014 28.01.2014
26.02.2014

afafy @ mEIRTd gdaiYd doai # fewel @ SHe Gdfd sierd @ SR SuRufa &1 &k

TR 2

freee &1 ™ Jrafer ST FRiEd @ | dod o
IR mifea | gelEar a1
doa TS
s S Rig—qy— sreaer T e Frvrs 01.04.2013 ¥ 31.01.2014 15 14
s SIfcievaR ¥ 8— ofedet Ud yee fHeersd 04.02.2014 ¥ 31.03.2014 1 1
A NP g —FHHR Frewe 01.04.2013 ¥ 31.05.2013 4 4
5 &3 A—PRIGRI Fawd 05.08.2013 ¥ 31.03.2014 9 9
IR AT E S U EaN A EENEY 05.08.2013 ¥ 31.03.2014 9 9
2 Yo7 HeeaR— fdci—H=Terd gRT A1 e 01.04.2013 ¥ 21.10.2013 10 8
2 T SE— fac—Harery g1 A1 e 22.10.2013 ¥ 31.03.2014 6 4
£ AL HAN— ALRSS gRT A e 01.04.2013 ¥ 30.05.2013 3 1
£ NH o RIS gRT AT e 31.05.2013 ¥ 31.03.2014 13 7
# 7ARY FAR [aI— IR—MAFHIRS e 01.04.2013 ¥ 31.03.2014 16 15
£ AU g @ TIR—MEFBIRSG Aaers 01.04.2013 ¥ 04.07.2013 6 5
7 I UTel q9a— IR—3MAHIRS e 01.04.2013 ¥ 31.03.2014 16 16

74 arffe RuXé 2013-14




Punjab & Sind Bank

SNO. PARTICULARS

DETAIL

6. EDUCATIONAL QUALIFICATION

M.A. M.PHIL

7. NATURE OF APPOINTMENT AS DIRECTOR

RBI NOMINEE DIRECTOR

8. EXPERIENCE

CGM REGIONAL DIRECTOR, RBI, BHUBANESHWAR

9. PARTICULARS OF OTHER DIRECTORSHIP (if any)

2.4 Board Meetings:

During the Financial Year 2013-14, total 16 Board Meetings were held on the following dates as against minimum
of 6 meetings prescribed under Clause 12 of the Nationalized Banks (Management and Miscellaneous Provisions)

Scheme, 1980.

06.04.2013 01.05.2013 21.05.2013 31.05.2013 14.06.2013
26.06.2013 27.07.2013 19.08.2013 25.09.2013 05.10.2013
11.11.2013 21.12.2013 02.01.2014 16.01.2014 28.01.2014
26.02.2014

The details of attendance of the Directors at the aforesaid Board Meetings held during their respective tenure are

as under:
Name of the Director Period Meetings held Meetings
during their attended
tenure
Sh D.P. Singh — Ex.CMD 01.04.2013 to 31.01.2014 15 14
Sh Jatinderbir Singh-CMD 04.02.2014 to 31.03.2014 1 1
Sh P.K. Anand - Ex.ED 01.04.2013 to 31.05.2013 4 4
Sh. K.K.Sansi-ED 05.08.2013 to 31.03.2014 9 9
Sh M.K.Jain-ED 05.08.2013 to 31.03.2014 9 9
Sh Rajat Sachar — MOF Nominee Director 01.04.2013 to 21.10.2013 10 8
Sh S C Das— MOF Nominee Director 22.10.2013 to 31.03.2014 6 4
Sh B.P. Kanungo —RBI Nominee Director 01.04.2013 to 30.05.2013 3 1
Sh. P.K.Jena- RBI Nominee Director 31.05.2013 to 31.03.2014 13 7
Sh. Mahesh Kumar Gupta- Non-Official Diredtor 01.04.2013-31.03.2014 16 15
Sh. Karanpal Singh Sekhon- Non Official Director 01.04.2013 to 04.07.2013 6 5
Sh. Sukhen Pal Babuta- Non Official Director 01.04.2013 to 31.03.2014 16 16
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Name of the Director Period Meetings held Meetings
during their attended
tenure

Sh. N.Rajendran- Non Official Director 01.04.2013 to 31.03.2014 16 13
Sh Suresh Thakur -Non Official Director 01.04.2013 to 31.03.2014 16 13
Sh Sanjiv Kumar Arora -Non Official Director 01.04.2013 to 31.03.2014 16 16
Sh. S.P.S. Virk-Non Official Director 01.04.2013 to 31.03.2014 16 16
Sh. Sanjay Verma -Non Official Director 12.08.2013 to 31.03.2014 9 7

Smt. Anita Karnavar- Non-Official Director

30.01.2014 to 31.03.2014

2.5 Code of Conduct:

The Code of Conduct for Board of Directors and key Management Personnel i.e. Directors & one rank below
Director comprising all General Managers has been approved by the Board of Directors in compliance of Clause
49 of the Listing Agreement with Stock Exchanges. The said Code of Conduct is posted on Bank’s website www.
pshindia.com. All the Board Members and General Managers have since affirmed the compliance of the Code.

3. General Meeting

3.1. Annual General Meeting:

The Third Annual General Meeting of the shareholders of the Bank was held on Wednesday, 26th June, 2013
at New Delhi, where the following Directors were present :

1. | Sh. D.P. Singh Ex.Chairman and Managing Director
2. | Sh. Rajat Sachar Director
3. | Sh. Mahesh Kumar Gupta Director
4, Sh. Karanpal Singh Sekhon Director
5. | Sh. Sukhen Pal Babuta Director
6. Sh. N Rajendran Director
7. | Sh. Suresh Thakur Director
8. | Sh. Sanjiv Arora Director
9. | Sh. S.P.S.Virk Director

3.2. Extra Ordinary General Meeting :

Extra Ordinary General Meeting of the Bank was held on 21.12.2013 to consider the allotment of preferential
issue of equity shares to The President of India acting through the Government of India [GOI] and it was
resolved to issue and allot 2,12,63,023 equity shares of Rs.10/- each to The President of India acting through

the Government of India [GOI] on preferential basis at a price of Rs.47.03 (including premium of Rs.37.03).

4. COMMITTEES OF DIRECTORS:

The Board of Directors of the Bank has constituted various Committees of Directors to look into different areas of
strategic importance in terms of Reserve Bank of India and Government of India guidelines on Corporate Governance
and Risk Management. The Management lays emphasis on the analysis of sectoral development, segment / product
performance, opportunities, threats, risks & associated concern besides operational performance & development
of HR / IR in the discussions during the Board / Committee Meetings. The important Committees of the Board

are as under:
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SNo Name of the Committee
1. Management Committee of the Board (MC)
2. Audit Committee of Board (ACB)
3. Committee for Monitoring of Large Value Frauds
4, Vigilance Committee
5. Risk Management Committee
6. Customer Service Committee
7. Remuneration Committee
8. Shareholders’ / Investors’ Grievance Committee
9. Nomination Committee
10. |1 T Strategy Committee
11. | Committee of Directors on Executives’ Promotions
12. | Committee of Directors on Appellate / Reviewing Authority
13. | HR Committee
14. | Committee for Monitoring of Recovery
15. | Concurrent Audit Committee
16. | Election of Shareholder Director Committee-Voting by Public Sector Bank

4.1. Management Committee of the Board:

In pursuance of Clause 13 of the Nationalized Banks (Management and Miscellaneous Provisions) Scheme, 1980

(as amended) read with the amendments made by the Ministry of Finance, Government of India, a Management

Committee of the Board has been constituted to consider various business matters of material significance like

sanction of high value credit proposals, compromise / write-off proposals, sanction of capital and revenue

expenditure, premises, investments, donations etc.

The Committee mandate to consist of Chairman and Managing Director , Executive Director (s)and Directors
nominated by Government of India under Section 9 (3) (c) and 9 (3) (g) besides three Directors from amongst
those appointed under sub section (e) (f) (h) and (i) of section 9(3) of The Banking Companies (Acquisition and
Transfer of Undertakings) Act, 1980.

The composition of the committee as on 31st March 2014 is as under:

SNo

Name of the Director

_

Sh. Jatinderbir Singh- Chairman & Managing Director

Sh K.K. Sansi — Executive Director

Sh. M.K.Jain — Executive Director

Sh Pradipta.K. Jena — RBI Nomiinee Director

Sh Mahesh Kumar Gupta —Non-Official Director (CA Category)

Sh Sukhen Pal Babuta — Non-Official Director

Sh. Sanjiv Kumar Arora- Non-official Director

Sh. Suresh Thakur— Non-Official Director

(PN |u B ]w

Sh. Sanjay Verma- Non-Official Director
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During the Financial Year 2013-14, the Management Committee of the Board met on 21 occasions on the following dates:

06.04.2013 21.05.2013 26.06.2013 26.07.2013 19.08.2013
23.08.2013 07.09.2013 17.09.2013 25.09.2013 05.10.2013
26.10.2013 11.11.2013 07.12.2013 21.12.2013 02.01.2014
11.01.2014 28.01.2014 26.02.2014 12.03.2014 22.03.2014
29.03.2014

The details of attendance of the Directors at the aforesaid Meetings of the Committee held during their respective

tenure are as under:

Name of the Director

Period

Meetings held during
their tenure

Meetings attended

Sh D.P. Singh — Ex.CMD 01.04.2013 to 31.01.2014 17 16
Sh. Jatinderbir Singh— CMD 04.02.2014 to 31.03.2014 4 4
Sh P.K. Anand - Ex.ED 01.04.2013 to 31.05.2013 2 2
Sh. K.K.Sansi— ED 05.08.2013 to 31.03.2014 17 17
Sh. M.K.Jain— ED 05.08.2013 to 31.03.2014 17 17
Sh B.P. Kanungo-RBI Nominee 01.04.2013 to 30.05.2013 2 1
Sh. P K Jena-RBI Nominee 31.05.2013 to 31.03.2014 19 12
S. Mahesh Kumar Gupta — Non official 01.04.2013 to 31.03.2014 21 20
Director
. . 14.06.2013 to 13.12.2013 11 11

Sh. Sukhen Pal Babuta—Non official Director

01.01.2014 to 31.03.2014 7 6

01.04.2013 to 13.06.2013 2 2
Sh. Sanjiv Kumar Arora— Non official Director 01.07.2013 to 31.12.2013 11 11

15.01.2014 to 31.03.2014 5 5
Sh. Karanpal Singh Sekhon— 01.04.2013 to 04.07.2013 3 3
Non official Director
Sh. Sanjay Verma- Non official Director 14.12.2013 to 31.03.2014 8 6

01.04.2013 to 14.07.2013 3 3
Sh. Suresh Thakur— Non official Director

11.01.2014 to 31.03.2014 5 5
Sh. S.P.S.Virk-Workmen Employee Director 15.07.2013 to 14.01.2014 13 13

4.2. Audit Committee of Board (ACB):

The Bank, in consonance with the fundamentals of Corporate Governance and in pursuance of directives of the
Reserve Bank of India, has constituted an Audit Committee of the Board. A Non-Executive Director, who is a
Chartered Accountant, is the Chairman of the Committee.

The composition of the Committee as on 31st March, 2014 is as under:
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1

Sh Mahesh Kumar Gupta - CA Director (Chairperson)

2 Sh K.K. Sansi — Executive Director

3 Sh M.K.Jain — Executive Director

4 Sh S C Das — MOF Nominee Director

5 Sh P. K.Jena — RBI Nominee Director

6 Sh Sanjiv Kumar Arora — Non Official Director
During the Financial Year 2013-14, the Audit Committee of the Board (ACB) met on 08 occasions on the dates given
below:
17.04.2013 01.05.2013 27.07.2013 03.09.2013 11.11.2013 07.12.2013
28.01.2014 26.02.2014

The details of attendance of the Directors at the Meetings of the Committee held during their respective tenure are

as under:
Sr. Name of the Director Period Meeting held Meeting
No during their attended
tenure

Sh Sukhen Pal Babuta CA

1. 01.04.2013 to 20.12.2013 6 6
Chairperson upto 20.12.2013

2. | Sh P.K. Anand - Ex.ED 01.04.2013 to 31.05.2013 2 2

3. | Sh. K K Sansi - ED 05.08.2013 to 31.03.2014 5 5

4. | Sh. M K Jain - ED 05.08.2013 to 31.03.2014 5 5

5. | Sh. S C DAS-MoF Nominee Director 22.10.2013 to 31.03.2014 4 3

6. | Sh Rajat Sachar — MoF Nominee Director 01.04.2013 to 21.10.2013 4 4

7. | Sh B.P. Kanungo - RBI Nominee Director 01.04.2013 to 30.05.2013 2 0

8. | Sh P.K.Jena- RBI Nominee Director 31.05.2013 to 31.03.2014 6 4

9. | Sh Mahesh Kumar Gupta (Chairperson w.e.f. 05.03.2013 to 31.03.2014 8 6
21.12.2013)- Non official Director

10. | Sh.Sanjiv Kumar Arora— Non official Director 21.12.2013 to 31.03.2014 2 2

The main functions of Audit Committee inter-alia include assessing and reviewing the financial reporting system of
the Bank to ensure that the financial statements are correct, sufficient and credible. It reviews and recommends to
the Management the quarterly / annual financial statements before their submission to the Board.

The Audit Committee provides directions and oversees the operations of total audit functions of the Bank including
the organization, operation and quality control of internal audit, internal control weaknesses and inspection within
the Bank and follow-up of the suggestions of Statutory/External audit of the Bank and RBI inspections.

The Committee also reviews the adequacy of internal control systems, structure of internal audit department, its
staffing pattern and hold discussions with the internal auditors / inspectors on any significant finding and follow-up
action thereon. It further reviews the financial and risk management policies of the Bank.

ANNUAL REPORT 2013-14

83



m uony ws g §6

Hifafe oRaT—uie & Hed # e |fifd, aifte / fomre facia @l vd Rarel @1 «ift w0 <9 4 4d a4
Tifafdrs ora—uied! & A faarR—famst =l 8 | I8 Afbfy dfr o sfffse RuId (Ta.uw.ueR) & faf= #ef ®

3Tad HRATS il BT 7 |

4.3 §gt T3 & darady IrAST B Grorerst w3
IR R §% 7 U fAFid 14 S9aR), 2004 & U E. RIS /2004.5STTH.UHoE! (TH) H.1004 / 23.04.
017,/2003—4 & ATIH H @S & A= Ugqall S giEmers] udl o, FRame a2 gad Yol &l S9!
HAT UG B 3R LIETES! & AW WR e & [dg dRATs e & IR H [deia I = fHar o | 31 I8 gama
foar mar fo 9IS &1 T SuGAfy a3 WU ST BadT 1 RIS HUT IR I HUR B T T g ddel
AHA B AR ToIT 3gac] HRATS BT & BRI SN | a1 DI oIl- WIel ARG HRIG: dREEe! & 991 A9l 3
R SR <Y |
AT & T HRIT H I 91A] & W1 1 HIS BT AR IS HOX I AT B GRATTST BT R FoIr Feiter
|ftafera § dfas:
F. GG & ARG HeI H YOI TR BT Ia1 o iR 39 R R0 a1 & Ui {6y o 69 |
W OEES! & IR H Ul oW H fddd & SRUN @I TSI 9T §6 U9 ¥RA Red 9% & S
U§eTH] B ITDHT R |
M. RIS / Yiord STa—usdrd &I TR J20 a9ell o Rerfd |
. ghefaa oo 6 dae & 9 amel § 9 TR R wIe SRR S we 8 3R |G R HIRA
afe srufera 81 a1 sifdeiq 2 |
S, g &1 IRIGRT & AR 8 $I 715 STIRIHAS HRATS DI FHTAIAIGHAT S FHIEAT J2AT 3dRS =0
DI D HAT UG
7. 9! & Raes fHaReS SURN &1 |3 G B JAaIS 3= YR DI HAT |
w. Feue dsd & Ui Ael @ iod faviy AfAfd #; (&) seger vd uey fHewa (9)
T & ] HeH (1) IR Rerd §6 & T1fad &1 wnfie 781 exd gU, 2 3T Hewl S FHIA © |
31 T, 2014 BT AT BT AT (ATFAR B
1) # SIfieRdR RHEg— sreger vd yay fcwrs

2) sl TS — fa—varer grr Afha e
3) 50 g& uTd gl — IR—anfaeIR® fcers
4) A 48 HAR — IR—anferIRe feerd
5) o Torg At — IR—anfRr&HR® fAcer®
Ty 2013—14 & IR GART BT 3 Job JRMTT B 78 @1 faavor f=gaR 2 :
14.06.2013 25.09.2013 21.12.2013
eyl ® S96 HRIGT & SR SURART &7 faavur 39 ToR 2
frRee &1 W 3rafer ST PRIBIT D Yo R
TIRT 3mAfora S EGIRIGICA
dod TS
3N 10 Rig— g —3reae Ud yey e 01.04.2013 ¥ 31.01.2014 3 3
o SifcierdR Rig—aregey v yse fAezrd 04.02.2014 3 31.03.2014 0 0
oY WoId FeeR—fa—w=rera 1fad fAeers 01.04.2013 ¥ 21.10.2013 2 1
o) TE. SN—fac—H=mery ArfHd fAeers 22.10.2013 3 31.03.2014 1 1

84 arffe RuXé 2013-14



Punjab & Sind Bank
As for Statutory Audit, the Audit Committee interacts with the Statutory Central Auditors before finalization of Quarterly

/ Year to date / Annual Financial Results and Reports. It also maintains follow up on various issues raised in the Long
Form Audit Report (LFAR).

4.3 Committee for Monitoring of Large Value Frauds:

Reserve Bank of India vide its letter No.RBI1/2004.5.DBS.FGV(F)N0.1004/23.04.01A/2003-4 dated 14th January,
2004 informed about the delay in various aspects of frauds like detection, reporting to regulatory and enforcement
agencies and action against the perpetrators of the frauds. It was therefore, suggested to constitute a Sub-committee
of the Board, which would be exclusively dedicated to monitor and follow up of fraud cases of Rs.1.00 crore
and above. The Audit Committee of the Board will continue to monitor all the cases of frauds in general.

The major functions of the Committee, inter-alia, include monitoring and review of all the frauds of Rs.1.00
crore and above so as to:

(@) Identify the systemic lacunae if any that facilitated perpetration of the fraud and put in place measures
to plug the same

(b) Identify the reasons for delay in detection, if any, reporting to top management of the Bank and RBI

-

(c)  Monitor progress of CBI/Police investigation and recovery position

(d)  Ensure that staff accountability is examined at all levels in all the cases of frauds and staff side action, if
required, is completed quickly without loss of time

(e) Review the efficacy of the remedial action taken to prevent recurrence of frauds, such as strengthening
of internal controls; and

(f)  Put in place other measures as may be considered relevant to strengthen Preventive measures against
frauds.

The Special Committee is constituted with five members of the Board of Directors consists of: (a) Chairman
and Managing Director (b) Two members from ACB and (c) Two other members from the Board excluding RBI
Nominee.

The composition of the Committee as on 31st March, 2014 is as under:
(i) Shri Jatinderbir Singh- CMD

(i) Shri S C Das — MOF Director

(iii)  Shri Sukhen Pal Babuta- Non- Official Director

(iv)  Shri Mahesh Kumar Gupta- Non- Official Director

(v)  Shri Sanjay Verma- Non- Official Director

The Committee met three times during the Financial Year 2013-14 as per the details below:

14.06.2013 25.09.2013 21.12.2013

The details of attendance of directors during their tenure are as under:

Meetings held Meetings
Name of the Director Period SR Atz
tenure
Shri D.P. Singh-Ex.CMD 01.04.2013 to 31.01.2014 3 3
Shri Jatinderbir Singh-CMD 04.02.2014 to 31.03.2014 0 0
Shri Rajat Sachar — M.O.F. Nominee Director 01.04.2013 to 21.10.2013 2 1
Shri S C Das — M.O.F. Nominee Director 22.10.2013 to 31.03.2014 1 1
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Meetings held Meetings
Name of the Director Period ugsphen AliEm
tenure
Shri Sukhen Pal Babuta — Non Official Director 01.04.2013 to 31.03.2014 3 3
Sh. Mahesh Kumar Gupta- Non-Official Director 01.04.2013 to 31.03.2014 3 3
Shri Karanpal Singh Sekhon- Non-Official Director 01.04.2013 to 04.07.2013 1 1
Sh. Sanjay Verma — Non official Director 11.11.2013 to 31.03.2014 1 1

4.4

RBI, vide letter No. DBS. CO. FrMC. No. 7/23.04.001/2009-10 dated 16.09.2009 had advised to initiate necessary
action in respect of effective investigation in fraud cases and prompt reporting to appropriate authority. The Bank
has since then set up a Centralized Dedicated Operating Unit under the aegis of HO Inspection Department to
undertake distinct functions relating to frauds above Rs. 1.00 crore as advised by RBI.

In terms of Board Resolution no. 20214 dated 12.12.2012, a new independent Deptt named ‘Fraud Monitoring
Department’ has been working since 07.02.2013 at one place, leaving no scope to overlapping and duplicity of
effort. Earlier, fraud cases were dealt at two places viz the large value fraud of Rs. one crore & above at HO.
Inspection Deptt, where as frauds below the amount of Rs. one crore were being dealt by HO. Vigilance Deptt.
The new set up resulted in close monitoring of fraud cases, faster closure of old fraud cases, effective follow
up and implementation of preventive measures to check the recurrence of frauds alongwith improvement in
timely reporting of frauds to RBI.

In terms of the directions of Special Committee of Board (SCB), a Committee has also been formed in view of
increasing trend of frauds particularly in those cases where property is kept as security. The identified vulnerable
areas are valuation of property, genuineness of the title deeds and multiple mortgages.

Vigilance Committee

With a view to make the review of vigilance work an effective instrument of monitoring the speedy disposal
of vigilance disciplinary cases, a Vigilance Committee of the Board has been set up in the Bank in terms of
Ministry of Finance letter No.10/12/90/VIG/CVOs dated 24.10.1990 with following members:

1. Shri Jatinderbir Singh- CMD

2. Shri K.K. Sansi — Executive Director

3. Shri M.K. Jain — Executive Director

4. Shri S.C.Das- M.O.F. Nominee Director

5. Shri P.K.Jena - RBI Nominee Director

The Committee met on the following dates during the FY — 2013-14

14.06.2013 19.08.2013 21.12.2013 28.01.2014

The details of attendance of the Directors at the Meetings of the Committee held during their respective tenure are

as under:
Name of the Director Period Meetings held Meetings
during their tenure attended
Shri D.P. Singh —Ex.CMD 01.04.2013 to 31.01.2014 4 4
Shri Jatinderbir Singh—-CMD 04.02.2014 to 31.03.2014 0 0
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Shri P.K. Anand- Ex.ED 01.04.2013 to 31.05.2013 0
Shri K.K.Sansi— ED 05.08.2013 to 31.03.2014

Shri M.K.Jain—- ED 05.08.2013 to 31.03.2014 3
Shri Rajat Sachar— MOF Nominee Director | 01.04.2013 to 21.10.2013 2
Shri S.C.Das— MOF Nominee Director 22.10.2013 to 31.03.2014 2
Shri P.K.Jena— RBI Nominee Director 31.05.2013 to 31.03.2014 2

4.5. Risk Management Committee:

The Bank has constituted a Board level Risk Management Committee to review and evaluate the overall risks
assumed by the Bank.

The Committee reviews three important risk functions viz. Credit Risks, Market Risks and Operational Risks and

takes an integrated view of the subject and impart suitable directions if required.

The composition of the Committee as on 31st March, 2014 is as under:

Shri Jatinderbir Singh- Chairman & Managing Director

Shri M.K.Jain — Executive Director

Shri K.K.Sansi — Executive Director

Shri Sanjiv Kumar Arora — Non-Official Director

Shri N. Rajendran — Non Official Director

6.

Shri Sanjay Verma — Non Official Director

The Committee met on the following dates during the FY - 2013-14

14.06.2013 25.09.2013

21.12.2013

16.01.2014

The details of attendance of the Directors at the Meetings of the Committee held during their respective tenure
are as under:

Meetings Meetings
Name of the Director Period held during attended
their tenure

Shri D.P. Singh-Ex.CMD 01.04.2013 to 31.01.2014 4 4
Shri Jatinderbir Singh-CMD 04.02.2014 to 31.03.2014 0 0
Shri K.K.Sansi-ED 05.08.2013 to 31.03.2014 3 3
Shri M.K.Jain-ED 05.08.2013 to 31.03.2014 3 3
Shri P.K. Anand-Ex.ED 01.04.2013 to 31.05.2013 0 0
Shri Sanjiv Kumar Arora— Non Official Director 01.04.2013 to 31.03.2014 4 4
Shri N Rajendran— Non Official Director 01.04.2013 to 31.03.2014 4 4
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Shri Sanjay Verma — Non Official Director

11.11.2013 to 31.03.2014 2

Shri Karanpal Singh Sekhon— Non Official Director 01.04.2013 to 04.07.2013 1

The Bank has set up an appropriate risk management architecture, comprising Risk Management Organizational
Structure, Risk Principles, Risk Processes, Risk Control and Risk Audit, all with a view to ideally identify, manage,
monitor and control various categories of risks, viz. Credit Risk, Market Risk and Operational Risk, etc. The
underlying objective is to ensure continued stability and efficiency in the operations of the Bank and to look

after the safety of the Bank.

4.6 Customer Service Committee:

(@) Customer Service Committee of the Board

The Bank has constituted a sub-committee of Board, known as ‘Customer Service Committee of the Board’. The
Committee has the following members as on 31st March, 2014:

1. Shri. Jatinderbir Singh-Chairman & Managing Director

2. Shri K.K. Sansi — Executive Director

3. Shri M.K.Jain — Executive Director

4, Shri S.P.S. Virk — Workmen Director

5. Shri Suresh Thakur- Non-Official Director

The functions of the Committee include creating a platform for making suggestions and innovative measures for
enhancing the quality of customer service and improving the level of satisfaction for all categories of clientele
at all times, which inter-alia comprises the following:

i. Act as apex Committee on Customer Service and oversees the functioning of the Standing Committee on
Customer Service and also compliance with the recommendations of the Committee on Procedure and
Performance Audit on Public Service (CPPAPS).

ii. Review the status of the Awards remaining unimplemented for more than 3 months from the date of Awards

and also deficiencies in providing banking services as observed by the Banking Ombudsman.

iii. Mount innovative measures for enhancing the quality of customer service and improving level of customer
satisfaction for all categories of clientele.

During the Financial Year 2013-14, the Committee met on the following dates:

27.7.2013 11.11.2013

The details of attendance of the Directors are as under:

Name of the Director Period Meetings held during Meetings
the period of their attended
tenure
Shri D.P. Singh - Ex.CMD 01.04.2013 to 31.01.2014 2 2
Shri Jatinderbir Singh - CMD 04.02.2014 to 31.03.2014 0 0
Shri K.K. Sansi - ED 05.08.2013 to 31.03.2014 1 1

ANNUAL REPORT 2013-14

91



m uony ws g §6

Sl B SH— PRGN fAeers 05.08.2013 ¥ 31.03.2014 1 1
3 Q& .3He— JY—PRIBRI Fawrd 01.04.2013 ¥ 31.05.2013 0 0
Sl TN TR FFR HHaR s 01.04.2013 ¥ 31.03.2014 2 2
31 G THR — IR—IMMAHTRS e 01.04.2013 ¥ 31.03.2014 2 1

(@) wTed Gar Aqeh Trft afifo:

IRAR Rod d6 & fRenEemgaR, 96 & el @1 widd Su |Gffd & ARk uree darsil W Ud )
Ay &1 Tod foar T 8 59 §6 & 2 Aevege Ud 99 & 3 g ufifted aafts g & Wy § aftaford
2| JoB P FEerd], S D PRGN FH gRT BT Sl 2 |

afifa & g=1 a1 g
1. 9% gRT UTE® digd SURN W AR BT |

2. 3fafer® SRR | THGR UK &), 39 DI dle & UTed AT & THeT Maeqd I/ UfhareAd HRars
R B IR BT T 81 g uRacHl @1 gfaar &1 S 9D |

4.7 IRsf® afifa:

4.8

92

IRA TRHR o (U1 IR f3qi% 09 A/, 2007 WA Th .20 /1 /2005—d10. | gRT AdwiS &3 & dai
D quisTierd [Meeredl & foly SRIMSITET HefEd YIcHIE= &1 BV &1 € | I8 Aicdred [aird 99 & SR Al
FUTAAT Rl WR MRa el d dodTd & AJwU DRI— 1" Jedih [ST8H UIE<T d A, Qi 6
HHGY €, TR ARG & | S Q2 & gurerd H a4 & IR SRI—AWE & Jedidd Ud <F / 37dTs &g
AT B S dTell AcqTe IR & oy fAeers ded &1 urksif¥e GRfd o1 7e- fbar mar 2 |

31.03.2014 I I IART B TR 39 TPR &

st Ta.deNI— fa Aarera g1 Afea

M PH— NRIP grRT TG e

3N @ U 9901 — IR—3aRa e

oft Gorg gt — IR—SrfAsRS fAeers

et /rderer A RBrera foraror afdfy
g 1 TRRYRG] Ud faere] 1 Rreradl, afe s 8, & IR & v SRRuRS / favre Rreryd faro afafa
BT o fHar g |

31 ATd, 2014 T FAT B FLEAT AR 2

1. | 2N g uTd ST, IR AMHIRS Haed —3feger
2. | 1 SIftfexdR R, stenet vd vey feerd —dew
3. | 3N TASSH, ISR fAeers — ae

4. | N T oA — IR fdeiRe feers — dewr

fawi ad 2013—14 # @AfY &1 Fr=faRad faRrl o1 oo 83 -
| 01.05.2013 | 27.07.2013 | 11.11.2013 | 28.01.2014 |

AT BT ARSI GaDHIAT dod! H FMReDl B I HIRId PRIGIA & QRE SURART ST FRT HHTER &

aiffe Ruré 2013-14



Punjab & Sind Bank

Shri M.K. Jain - ED 05.08.2013 to 31.03.2014 1 1

Shri P.K. Anand - Ex.ED 01.04.2013 to 31.05.2013 0 0

Shri S.P.S. Virk — Workmen Employee Director 01.04.2013 to 31.03.2014 2 2

Shri Suresh Thakur- Non-Official Director 01.04.2013 to 31.03.2014 2 1
(b) Standing Committee on Customer Service:

4.7

4.8

Besides, the Sub Committee of the Board as aforesaid, the Bank has also set up a Standing Committee on
Customer Service having two General Managers of the Bank and three other eminent public personalities as
members, as per the guidelines of Reserve Bank of India. The Committee is chaired by the Executive Director
of the Bank.

Main functions of the committee are:
(i)  To take stock of the customer centric measures taken by the Bank.

(i)  To get feedback from the Zonal Offices and put up the same on customer service committee of the Board
for necessary Policy / Procedural action facilitate change on an ongoing basis.

Remuneration Committee:

Government of India announced Performance Linked Incentives for Whole Time Directors of Public Sector Banks
vide Notification No.F N0.20/1/2005-BO.I dated 9th March, 2007. The incentive is based on certain qualitative
as well as quantitative parameters fixed for Performance Evaluation Matrix on the basis of the statement of intent
on goals and benchmarks based on various compliance reports during the previous financial year. In compliance
of the said directives, a Remuneration Committee of the Board was constituted for evaluation of the performance
and incentive amount to be awarded / paid during the year.

The composition of the present Committee as on 31st March, 2014 is as under:

1. Shri.S. C. Das, MOF Nominee Director

2. Shri P.K. Jena, RBI Nominee Director

3. Shri Sukhen Pal Babuta, Non-Official Director

4. Shri Sanjay Verma, Non-Official Director

Shareholders' / Investors' Grievances Committee:

The Shareholders’ / Investors’ Grievances Committee has been constituted to redress shareholders and investors
complaints, if any.

The composition of the Committee as on 31st March 2014 is as under:
1. Shri Sukhen Pal Babuta, Non Official Director - Chairman

2. Shri Jatinderbir Singh, Chairman & Managing Director - Member
3. Shri M.K.Jain, Executive Director - Member

4. Shri N Rajendran, Non Official Director-Member

The Committee met on the following dates during the FY — 2013-14

01.05.2013 27.07.2013 11.11.2013 28.01.2014

The details of attendance of the Directors at the aforesaid Meetings of the Committee held during their respective
tenure are as under:
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ERE

Meetings held during Meetings
Name of the Director Period the period of their attended
tenure

Shri Sukhen Pal Babuta - Chairperson 01.04.2013 to 31.03.2014 4 4
Shri P.K. Anand - Ex.Executive Director 01.04.2013 to 31.05.2013 1 1
Shri D.P.Singh Ex.CMD 01.04.2013 to 31.01.2014 4 4
Shri M.K.Jain- Executive Director 05.08.2013 to 31.03.2014 2 2
Shri N Rajendran 01.04.2013 to 31.03.2014 4 3

The Committee monitors the redressal of investors’ complaints in a time bound manner. The summary of number of
requests/complaints received and resolved during the year are as under

Pending as on 01.04.2013

Received during the year Resolved during the year

Pending as on 31.03.2014

NIL

25 24

One case pertaining to dividend, received on 31.03.2014 on SCORES portal of SEBI was outstanding at the end of
the year 2013-14 and the same was closed by SEBI on 03.04.2014 on the basis of Action Taken Report submitted
On-line by the Bank. Company Secretary has been designated as the “Compliance Officer” of the Bank under Clause
47 (a) of the Listing Agreement with Stock Exchanges.

4.9 HR Committee

The HR Committee has been constituted vide BR No0.19841 dated 05.05.2012 for promoting progressive HR
plans and to have interaction with various unions and associations. CMD, ED and anyone among the other
members is the quorum for meeting. Meeting may be held as and when required but at least once in a quarter.

The composition of the Committee as on 31st March 2014 is as under:

Shri Jatinderbir Singh

o1k W=

—IAS-Chairman & Managing Director

Shri M.K. Jain - Executive Director - Member

Shri K.K. Sansi - Executive Director - Member

Shri S C Das , MOF Nominee Director-Member

Sh. Sanjiv Kumar Arora- Non- Official Director- Member

The Committee met on the following dates during the Financial Year 2013-14\

14.06.2013

25.09.2013 21.12.2013

The details of attendance of the Directors at the aforesaid Meetings of the Committee held during their respective

tenure are as under:

. . Meetings held during the Meetings
Name of the Director Period period of their tenure attended
Shri D.P. Singh- Ex.CMD 01.04.2013 to 31.01.2014 3 3
Shri Jatinderbir Singh-Chairman & 04.02.2014 to 31.03.2014 0 0
Managing Director
Shri P.K. Anand - Ex.Executive Director 01.04.2013 to 31.05.2013 0 0
Shri M.K. Jain - Executive Director 05.08.2013 to 31.03.2014 2 2
Shri K.K. Sansi - Executive Director 05.08.2013 to 31.03.2014 2 2
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1 Folld FAR RIS IR ARG Fwrd 01.04.2013 ¥ 31.03.2014 3 3

4.10 araTher afHfd :

IR Rord 96 9 $fH7 Hu (SUSHT &1 3104 UF 3faxon) IrfafH, 1970 /80 & €RT 9(3) (W) & U=l &
Sfifa IR ol & fAewd ded # fdwd & wu # 999 2q e tue Ui AMge fRuiRa ey € | IR

Rord 9@ g1 SIRT feen—fdell & ooy Arfia |iAfT 1iod SH-1 Juferd 2 Rora Feerd Asa 4 | &4 | &
T e (@ Wda /IR SRiuTed Hagd) e 8 | Sad faen—del &1 sruTe=T § Ua AMid- |k

BT oA fHar T 2 |

411 &Y$ ot gaar grenf3ra srffa afdfe

AT Ui & gl H dadr e d2 GhHId] & I | So @ (oY faHid 31.03.2014 BT a1 @ oAl

drenfire afafy & fe=falRed gew €

M BdAH— PRGN Aeers

f MHIT- FIHRN AeTe

o TadeN— Ra—F3Ted gRT 1fd fAeors

£ oy gHi— IR RHIRS fraerd

T Ioigd— R aEeiRe Fevsre— afafy s

ay 2013—14 & IR f=feRad fafRril o1 affa 1 S50 ge:
14.06.2013 25.09.2013 21.12.2013

|EHFT @1 AT [dHId dodl # el & S Haftd dRiee & IRM IR &7 =IRT

TR &

I dRieIA | doa fo-A
£ G.& e I~ PRSI aerd 01.04.2013 ¥ 31.05.2013 0 0
£ TIB.SH— FRGRI feerd 11.11.2013 ¥ 31.03.2014 1 1
2 3.3 - SRS 3erd 11.11.2013 ¥ 31.03.2014 1 1
7 9T FeeR— e —H AT §RT AR e 01.04.2013 ¥ 21.10.2013 2 1
2 U S fd—H3Ted gRT A1 e 22.10.2013 ¥ 31.03.2014 1 1
3 T Iois— IR @RS e 01.04.2013 ¥ 31.03.2014 3 3

ot BT Rig 99— IR foaiRe fFewe

01.04.2013 ¥ 04.07.2013

A Gorg gHi— IR MfeiRe ffews

11.11.2013 ¥ 31.03.2014
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Director

Shri Rajat Sachar-MOF Nominee Director 01.04.2013 to 21.10.2013 2 1
Shri S C Das-MOF Nominee Director 22.10.2013 to 31.03.2014 1 1
Shri Sanjiv Kumar Arora- Non- Official 01.04.2013 to 31.03.2014 3 3

4.10 Nomination Committee:

Reserve Bank of India has laid down “Fit and Proper” criteria to be fulfilled by persons to be elected as
directors on the Boards of the Nationalized Banks under the provisions of Section 9(3)(i) of Banking Companies
(Acquisition and Transfer of Undertakings) Act, 1970/80. In terms of the guidelines issued by Reserve Bank of
India, a Nomination Committee is required to be constituted consisting of a minimum of three directors (all
independent/non executive directors) from amongst the Board of Directors. In compliance of the said directives,
a “Nomination Committee” had been constituted.

411 IT Strategy Committee of the Board

With a view to take forward IT initiatives and drive other benefits of technologies, IT Strategy Committee of the
Board comprising of the following members is in place as on 31.03.2014.

1. Shri K.K. Sansi - Executive Director

2. Shri M.K. Jain - Executive Director

3. Shri S.C.Das - M.O.F. Nominee Director

N

. Shri Sanjay Verma- Non Official Director

5. Shri N Rajendran — Non Official Director-Chairman of the Committee

The Committee met on the following dates during the Financial Year 2013-14

14.06.2013 25.09.2013 21.12.2013

The details of attendance of the Directors at the aforesaid Meetings of the Committee held during their respective

tenure are as under:

Meetings held during the Meetings

Name of the Director Period period of their tenure attended
Shri P.K. Anand - Ex.Executive Director 01.04.2013 to 31.05.2013 0 0
Shri M.K. Jain - Executive Director 11.11.2013 to 31.03.2014 1 1
Shri K.K. Sansi - Executive Director 11.11.2013 to 31.03.2014 1 1
Shri Rajat Sachar-MOF Nominee Director 01.04.2013 to 21.10.2013 2 1
Shri S C Das-MOF Nominee Director 22.10.2013 to 31.03.2014 1 1
Shri N Rajendran-Non-Official Director 01.04.2013 to 31.03.2014 3 3

Shri Karanpal Singh Sekhon - Non-
Official Director

01.04.2013 to 04.07.2013

Shri Sanjay Verma — Non- Official
Director

11.11.2013 to 31.03.2014
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4.12 wrfuTaer @ Taresiadr ue a1s o afdifa:

RS TR W TGRS SR @4 @ forg, eee! 31 affa ad srien! Hewre (g vd mey e
@1 IuRIT H) 3R IR WHR TT R R9d 9@ & A1fa fsera! o afafy &1 we faar wam 2 | #emvde
T & U & HEDHR & oY [P 19.04.2013 T2AT 29.03.2014 BT AT BT 95 S |
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SRCD Yo fora
et &1 A R DRIbTel R RS
® CINHA B TE
oI
Yo
St SifdeRdR Ris—3remer g yder fAgeres 04.02.2014 ¥ 31.03.2014 1 1
1 S1YLRIE— Y Y—3feTe vd Uey e 01.04.2013 ¥ 31.01.2014 1 1
Y ¥oId FeeR—faca—HaTerd gRT A1Rd fAeers 01.04.2013 ¥ 21.10.2013 1 1
St v a—fIa—=ea gRT T1fAa e 22.10.2013 ¥ 31.03.2014 1 1
s AN FAN— AR T gR1 A1fHd e 01.04.2013 ¥ 30.05.2014 1 1
M NHST— MRIP g1 AT e 31.05.2013 ¥ 31.03.2014 1 1

4.13 wafta/sidie gifdeneor 3q oS o afdifa :
Ied Yeyd VR WR SR | Hafed AFell & TdTel / FHie a)- & Hag ¥ 3drdl / FHie UaesR gq ars df
T AT BT 7o fHar a2 | fRA1d 31.03.2014 & SIFAR e Ao fyforiad € -

1) RS — R Red d§& grr ifha e
2) 51 gL — fa—w=Tera gR1 A1fa e
3) ff 72w AR T — IR rER® fAaers

4.14 ggest ot fororerelt Heat g wfoifer :

IR R, Aad—w=mery, fachy Ja] faumT & fRAie 21.11.2012 & U5 ORAT Th.A. 7 /112 /201261300, &
fSRIER, §% &1 9l &1 Wit 31 R a9 & fou el 1 te |fifd, e seaer vd yey few,
FRIGN fAeere don fiad—darera & I1Rd s onficl §, &1 o fhar T 2 |

31 AT, 2014 & R AT & H=1 FF=TgaR 2 -

1) i SfdedR RE, — 3eTe U4 gy feed

2) SN RS — BEIBHRI fAqer®

3) SN ®.@.ar — SR fAcer®

4) s TS — fa—w=Tera gR1 A1fia e

a9 2013—14 & IRH Freafafaa [t o1 afafa @) doa g3:
13.05.2013  13.06.2013 18.07.2013 17.09.2013 13.03.2014
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4.12 Committee of the Board on Executives’ Promotions:

A Committee of Directors consisting of Executive Director (in the absence of CMD) and the nominee Directors of
Government of India and Reserve Bank of India has been formed for dealing with the promotions at senior level.
The Committee met on 19.04.2013 and 29.03.2014 for conducting interview for the post of General Managers.

The composition of the Committee as on 31st March 2014 is as under:
1. Shri Jatinderbir Singh- Chairman & Managing Director

2. Shri S.C.Das -MOF Nominee Director

3. Shri P.K.Jena-RBI Nominee Director

The details of attendance of the Directors at the aforesaid Meetings of the Committee held during their respective
tenure are as under:

Meetings held during the | Meetings attended

Name of the Director Period period of their tenure

Shri Jatinderbir Singh- Chairman & 04.02.2014 to 31.03.2014 1 1
Managing Director

Shri. D.P.Singh-Ex - Chairman & 01.04.2013 to 31.01.2014 1 1
Managing Director

Shri Rajat Sachar-MOF Nominee Director 01.04.2013 to 21.10.2013 1 1
Shri S C Das-MOF Nominee Director 22.10.2013 to 31.03.2014 1 1
Sh B.P. Kanungo —RBI Nominee Director 01.04.2014 to 30.05.2013 1 1
Sh. P.K.Jena- RBI Nominee Director 31.05.2013 to 31.03.2014 1 1

4.13 Committee of the Board on Appellate / Reviewing Authority:

A committee of the Board on Appellate / Reviewing Authority is constituted to consider appeal / review in
respect of Disciplinary cases at senior Management level, with the following members as on 31.03.2014:

1. Sh. P.K.Jena - RBI Nominee Director
2. Sh. S.C.Das - MOF Nominee Director
3. Sh. Mahesh Kumar Gupta - Non-Official Director

4.14 Committee for Monitoring of Recovery:

A Committee of Directors consisting of Chairman & Managing Director, Executive Director and the nominee
Director of Ministry of Finance has been formed to monitor the progress in recovery of the Bank in terms of
directions received from Ministry of Finance, Department of Financial Services, New Delhi,vide their letter
no.F.No. 7/112/2012- BOA letter dated 21.11.2012.

The composition of the Committee as on 31st March 2014 is as under:
1. Shri Jatinderbir Singh- Chairman & Managing Director
2. Shri M.K. Jain - Executive Director

3. Shri K.K. Sansi - Executive Director
4, Shri S.C.Das -MOF Nominee Director

The Committee met on following dates during the financial year 2013-14.

13.05.2013 13.06.2013 18.07.2013 17.09.2013 13.03.2014
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AT BT IFT 95D H MBI BT I HRIBIA & JATAR IURART T KART FFFER 2 -

S dod o=
e &1 9m R HRIBT LSRRI
® aIRMH @ TS
raforg
E e
2 STYLRYE— Y —3redel Ua uay e 01.04.2013 ¥ 31.01.2014 4 4
#ft SifderdR Ris—atemer g yder fAeers 04.02.2014 ¥ 31.03.2014 1 1
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The details of attendance of the Directors at the aforesaid Meetings of the Committee held during their respective
tenure are as under:

Meetings held during the Meetings
Name of the Director Period period of their tenure attended
Shri. D.P.Singh Ex.CMD 01.04.2013 to 31.01.2014 4 4
Shri Jatinderbir Singh- Chairman & 04.02.2014 to 31.03.2014 1 1
Managing Director
Shri P.K. Anand - Ex. Executive Director 01.04.2013 to 31.05.2013 1 1
Shri M.K. Jain - Executive Director 05.08.2013 to 31.03.2014 2 2
Shri K.K. Sansi - Executive Director 05.08.2013 to 31.03.2014 2 2
Shri Rajat Sachar — MOF Nominee Director 01.03.2013 to 21.10.2013 4 4
Shri S C Das-MOF Nominee Director 22.10.2013 to 31.03.2014 1 0

4.15 Concurrent Audit Committee of the Board
Concurrent Audit Committee of the Board comprising of the following members is in place as on 31.03.2014.

Shri Sanjiv Kumar Arora — Non-Official Director

Shri Sukhen Pal Babuta Non-Official Director

The Committee met on the following dates during the Financial Year 2013-14

26.07.2013 19.08.2013 30.08.2013 04.09.2013 11.09.2013

The details of attendance of the Directors at the aforesaid Meetings of the Committee held during their respective
tenure are as under:

Meetings held during | Meetings
Name of the Director Period the period of their attended
tenure
Shri Sanjiv Kumar Arora — Non-Official Director 14.06.2013 to 31.03.2014 5 5
Shri Sukhen Pal Babuta Non-Official Director 14.06.2013 to 31.03.2014 5 4

4.16. Election of Shareholder Directors Committee-Voting by Public Sector Bank:

In terms of Ministry of Finance, Department of Financial Services letter date 03.04.2012 a committee of Board
for taking decision on supporting the candidates in election as Shareholder Directors in various companies,
Financial institutions and PSU Banks was constituted as per Board resolution number 19840 dated 05.05.2012.

The composition of the Committee as on 31st March, 2014 is as under:

1. | Shri Jatinderbir Singh- IAS- Chairman & Managing Director

Shri M.K.Jain — Executive Director

Shri K.K.Sansi — Executive Director

2
3
4. | Shri Suresh Thakur — Non-Official Director
5

Shri Surinder Pal Singh Virk ~-Workmen Employee Director
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giE AHTRAT B T WART R Ue g Aemeyd, ] FENegd, Uh Heid "eNedd § Ud Ud uEdrs |
IR BT fAUTOT / SAROT / UNUT FT STFHIGH HUAT FfId gRT fHaT ST & | 1€ @1 81 dTell §o& § IR =0T
HAfT & SRIga MH Jo6 # 9IS & F9e IR U Od & | 99 2013—14 & QRTE UAR fAR0T AT 7 27
Yoo JTAIRTT &1 T3 | 96 a8 Gfad a=ar g & a1 IRl &7 SiaRuT I’] & Igfadsur @ fidid 3 Uh 98
B oaf & iR 81 9|

5. foreerat o arfRsifire:
IR—PRIGRI FAere! 1 A= TAT T W B dTel FY Aied URHHS BT I, LIS 6 (F8e+ T
fafdyr uraem™) AreET, 1970 (J2AT WMD) $1 aRT 17 H IfeaRad wal & 1wy, F—F7I W D5 WROR gRI
AR Rod §% & q=rrel & SR fovg g feriRol & orgeR fasar i <e7 2 |
3fegeT UG Yy e o iaN (eed &1 909 & w4 | UIRsIHS &1 JId= 9Rd SReR gRT FaiRa femi
% JER BT ST © | 3fedel Ud gae ey a1 SRR Feerd &1 rd ey 71 qiRsfie &Rk S fosared
Heg AT & &RT 99 TR ©
%) fo<ig 9 2013—14 & SR 99 T FHTAT BT YA - (CURIGE))
4. A UgAM™ ey (W)
1. 2 SfceraR Rz et Ud uey feers 2,84,117.85
2, s A, S HRIGN ferd 10,67,048.38
3. s & i FRIGN feers 10,12,322.57
4. EIRSIEIRSE HaTfga a1eder U yae feerd 15,05,393.53
5. ot VD3 AT FRIGRI Feerd 2.86,961.2
Ty 2013—14 & SRM IR—SREGR] (A2l B a1 T o6 HSWTHIT Yo ATFAR 8 (Ul Bifere fraere!
Td qRT PR BT YR IR 2 Feea o il IR 1 do6 FeqIidl Yob < T8 8)—
s, | FRY$ &1 AW I DI T3 AR (%))
1. | 50 g&= Ut q9an 3,30,000
2. |5 HEW FAR T 2,95,000
3. | &0 ol HAR IRreT 3,25,000
4. |0 BT IE 80,000
5. | =0 guur orER 1,70,000
6. |50 U oA 1,80,000
7. | vadigafas 2,35,000
8. | = dorg gwf 1,20,000
9. | =0 3rfar Burar 10,000
FHl AT 17,45,000
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4.17 Share Transfer Committee:

Punjab & Sind Bank

A committee of officials comprising of one CGM, two GMs, one AGM and the Company Secretary approved the
demat/ transfer/transmission of shares at least once in a fortnight. The minutes of the Share Transfer Committee
are placed before the Board in the forthcoming meetings. 27 meetings of the Share Transfer Committee were
held during 2013-14. The Bank ensures that all transfer of shares is affected within a period of one month from

the date of their lodgment.

5. REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS:

The remuneration including traveling and halting expenses to Non-Executive Directors which are being paid as
stipulated by the Central Government in consultation with Reserve Bank of India from time to time in terms of
Clause 17 of the Nationalized Banks (Management and Miscellaneous Provisions) Scheme, 1970 (as amended).

The Chairman & Managing Director and Executive Directors are being paid remuneration by way of salary as
per rules framed by the Government of India. The details of remuneration and Performance Linked Incentives
paid to Chairman and Managing Director and Executive Director/s is detailed below:

A.  Salary including Arrears paid during the Financial Year 2013-14:

(Amount in Rupees)

Sr. No Name Designation Amount (Rs.)
1 Shri Jatinderbir Singh Chairman & Managing Director 2,84,117.85
2 Shri M.K. Jain Executive Director 10,67,048.38
3 Shri K.K. Sansi Executive Director 10,12,322.57
4 Shri D.P. Singh Ex. Chairman & Managing Director 15,05,393.53
5 Shri P.K. Anand Ex.Executive Director 2,86,961.2

The Sitting Fee paid to the Non-Executive Directors during the Year 2013-14 is as under: (No sitting fee is payable
to whole time directors and director representing Government. of India):

Sr.No Name of the Director Amount Paid in Rs.
1 Sh Sukhen Pal Babuta 3,30,000
2. S. Mahesh Kumar Gupta 2,95,000
3 Sh Sanjiv Kumar Arora 3,25,000
4 Sh K P S Sekhon 80,000
5 Sh Suresh Thakur 1,70,000
6 Sh N. Rajendran 1,80,000
7 Sh S.P.S. Virk 2,35,000
8 Sh. Sanjay Verma 1,20,000
9 Smt. Anita Karnavar 10,000

TOTAL 17,45,000
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(@) TRHN FRER & AR Yob, HARM, MRISAT IR HHRE, IRg—17, fafwa, gared, fiea 9dl w— =,

A ot T R Rl TR HHY T &1 T0ET IR a¥ell @ 3R TR @ Il ¢ |
() Egad STl Ud UHIRIGE @ TRIRT IR AT dI TUET aRfad U @ SR WR &I Sl & |
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6. GENERAL BODY MEETINGS

Details of last three General Body Meetings of the shareholders held are given below:

Nature Day & Date Time Venue

AGM Thursday16.06.2011 11.00 a.m. Air Force Auditorium, Subroto Park,
New Delhi-110 010

AGM Saturday 23.06.2012 9.00 a.m. Air Force Auditorium Subroto Park,
New Delhi-110 010

AGM Wednesday 26.06.2013 9.00 a.m. India International Centre, 40-Max Mueller Marg,
Lodhi Estate, New Delhi-110003

EGM Tuesday 27.03.2012 9.00 a.m. Air Force Auditorium
Subroto Park, New Delhi-110 010

EGM Monday 11.03.2013 9.00 a.m. Air Force Auditorium
Subroto Park, New Delhi-110 010

EGM Saturday 21.12.2013 9.00 a.m. India International Centre, 40-Max Mueller Marg,
Lodhi Estate, New Delhi-110003

7. DISCLOSURES:

a) There is no materially significant Related Party Transaction that may have potential conflict with the interests
of the Bank at large.

b) Income by way of Fees, Commission other than on Government Business, Commission on Guarantees,
LCs, Exchange, Brokerage, Interest on overdue Bills, Advance Bills and Interest earned on Tax Refunds are
accounted for on realization basis.

c) Dividend on Shares in Joint Ventures and Associates is accounted on actual realization basis.

d) No penalties and strictures have been imposed on the Bank by the Stock Exchange and /or SEBI for non-
compliance of any law, guidelines and directives, on any matters related to capital markets, during the last
three years.

e) As on date, the Central Vigilance Commission’s Whistle Blower Policy is in place.

f) Directors have disclosed that they have no relationship between directors inter se as on 31st March 2014.

8. MANDATORY AND NON-MANDATORY REQUIREMENTS:

The Bank has complied with all the applicable mandatory requirements as provided in Revised Clause 49 of
the Listing Agreement entered into with the Stock Exchanges where Bank'’s shares are listed.

The extent of implementation of non-mandatory requirements is as under:

Sr. No | Non-mandatory requirement Status of Implementation

1. Non-executive Chairman to maintain Not Applicable, since the Chairman’s position is
Chairman’s Office at company’s expense. Executive.

2. Board to set-up a Remuneration Committee | Not applicable, as Chairman & Managing Director and
to formulate company’s remuneration Executive Directors draw salary as fixed by the Government
policy on specific remuneration package for | of India. However a Remuneration Committee is in
Executive Directors. operation to consider Performance Linked Incentive in

terms of guidelines issued by the Central Government.

3. Half-yearly declaration of financial Half yearly/Quarterly financial results were published in
performance including summary of leading newspapers and were also placed on the website
significant events in last six months to be of the Bank for the information of the shareholders.
sent to shareholders.

4, Company may move towards regime of The Bank has initiated steps for moving towards achieving
unqualified financial statements. unqualified financial statements.
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IR—PRIITAS Dl & 96 Ug WR g4 &7 I

e ded gRT IUAT T Faai¥ie Afsd 3R SiikaH
IS & HI—HTY AR Hiedl B HY0f TSR die &
TS g BT GURT & TS B

IR Rofd §% & femn—e=l & /g%y, U AHidT
TfAfd &1 Tod fHar T § vd wafad /A Aeeel o)
BB HUT (SUHAT BT 31514 Td 3fawon) srfarfaas, 1980

=2t vt o T | BT GRT 9(3)(313) & 31 fhe YUs WWR fem—fesr o]
B § |
7. | FU 3Mfid ER, aRAfAd Jral RIS UGS | adH H Hel Fadhdl HHIRH @ gd Had (e <isR)
e & wed # e &1 Riamelt & v # R d=a & | ey gofcqan aRenfera 21

o1y od b < arelt (favret <hier) ey =g |

9. UG P TTY:

&, [Aefd a1 denflie] td 99R @ 9eEl @ 9egF ¥ 909 9awii IR RauRa! 31 39 fRdl 9 Hag
SHHIRAT & v 3 Giaa e &1 rawdddl I T & |
9% & fa<ia aRumHl &1 e Asa &1 9o® H I IJAGA & U, §o& ] FAIT IR debldl S99 ©ld
TaSll ®1 Uedd far Sirar @ Siet W da @) afongfot wleg 21 g8 aRom Q1 a1 e wereR uAl # o
TR HRATY S & T4 ¥ U AR I T BT & forae! TR |l 9Rd H 81 3R -1 R a3l T
BT 2 ST TR I It &85 et | 81 Sigl 96 &1 9ge drierd Rerd & | 9@ & el /33% € 39/
a1ffe aRomm §& &1 d9arse http://www.psbindia.com TR SUee & |
1. 94 WIH TaEd fofcs,

fORIST SToITS eras, 25d1 de,

AT FIE, B, JRE—400001

dI0HS PrS — 533295
2. A i Tl 3ip sfear fafacs

TRTAST AT

JisT FHoll Prreia,

qisT Yd, JrIg 400051

TTHE PS: WoEd-—Eay,

vaEdSll § Aldg, T Ul & ey | o/ d@ @ alvd Yed B I HR &A1 1T B |

10.1 ufdapfat o swifaateer:
& DI AR FHIfTS FAl & AT §b $ IR A & AR §F o (U IWRI & JHITDIHROT &g e
R feuifredt for. (Trvareive) der Ao feuifred afdest (o) for. @fivaver) & arer s fear 2 |
IRRYRSG, TITHSIUA 1TaT HIEITHTe & URT 0+ IR & Ifaidhd dHvar dad € |
31 A4, 2014 B §F & YN 275284212 3fdad! IR T RAH | 275281524 R 3ifda wu # a1Ra & e
IEENUREISIGINE S

TRl BT Waod AR DY TdET yfaera
SIIRED 2688 0.0009
aifas
TIUTEIvS 42321308 153737
NSNS 232960216

84.6254
B 275284212 100.0000

' SOH YRT WRHR gRT 9TRT 22,41,32,212 Sfaac) IR oMfieT & |

106 aiffe Ruré 2013-14




Punjab & Sind Bank

5. Company may train Board Members in the
Business Model of the Company as well as
risk profile of the business parameters of the
company, the responsibilities as Director
and the best way to discharge them.

A complete overview of the Business Model and risk
profile along with Code of Conduct adopted by the Board
of Directors has been communicated to each member of
the Board.

6. The evaluation of performance of non-
executive Directors by other members of
the Board and to decide to continue or
otherwise of the Directorship of the non-
executive Directors.

A Nomination Committee has been constituted in terms
of Reserve Bank of India Guidelines and the directors to
be elected under clause 9(3)(i) of The Banking Companies
(Acquisition & Transfer of Undertakings) Act, 1980 shall
be subject to determination of their fit & proper status.

7. The Company to establish the Whistle
Blower Policy for reporting management

As on date, the Central Vigilance Commission’s Whistle
Blower Policy is in place.

concerns about unethical behaviors, actual
or suspected fraud, etc.

MEANS OF COMMUNICATION:

The Bank recognizes the need for keeping its members and stakeholders informed of the events of their interests
through present advanced information technology and means of communication.

The financial results of the Bank are submitted to the stock exchanges, where the securities of the Bank are
listed, immediately after the conclusion of the Board Meeting approving the same. The results are also published
in minimum two or more newspapers, one circulating in the whole or substantially the whole of India and the
other circulating in the NCT of Delhi where the Head Office of the Bank is situated.

The quarterly/year to year/Annual Financial results of the bank are posted on the Bank's website http://www.psbindia.com.

1. Bombay Stock Exchange Ltd.
Phiroze Jeejeebhoy Towers, 25th Floor,
Dalal Street, Fort,
Mumbai-400001
BSE CODE : 533295
2. National Stock Exchange of India Ltd.
“Exchange Plaza”
Bandra Kurla Complex
Bandra,(East)
Mumbai 400 051
NSE CODE : PSB-EQ

The annual listing fees in respect of all the securities listed with the exchange(s) have been paid till date.

10.1 Dematerialisation of Securities:

The shares of the Bank are under compulsory demat list of SEBI and the Bank has entered in to Agreements
with National Securities Depository Limited (NSDL) and Central Depository Services (India) Limited (CDSL) for
dematerialization of Bank’s shares. Shareholders can get their shares dematerialized with either NSDL or CDSL.

As on March 31, 2014 the Bank has 275284212 Number of Equity Shares of which 275281524 Shares are held
in dematerialized form, as per the detail given below.

Nature of Holding Number of shares Percentage
Physical 2688 0.0009
Dematerialized
NSDL 42321308 15.3737
CDSL * 232960216 84.6254
Total 275284212 100.0000

* includes 22,41,32,212 equity shares held by the Government of India.
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10.2 s3agifore gamege darg(Ste.)
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10.2 Electronic Clearing Services (ECS) :

Electronic Clearing Services (ECS) is a modern method of payment where the amounts of dividend/interest etc.,
are directly credited to the bank accounts of the Investors concerned. The Bank has offered the services to the
shareholders with an option to avail the facility at all the centers covered by Reserve Bank of India under its
National ECS/ ECS facility.

10.3 Electronic Share Transfer System & Redressal of Investors’ Grievances:

The Bank ensures that all transfers of Shares are duly affected within a period of one month from the date of their
lodgment. The Board has constituted Shareholders’/ Investors’” Grievances Committee to monitor and review the
progress in redressal of shareholders’/ investors’ grievances and Shares Transfer Committee to consider transfer
of Shares and other related matters. The Committees meet at regular intervals and review the status of Investors’
Grievances.

The Bank has appointed M/s. Link Intime India Pvt Ltd as its Registrars and Transfer Agent with a mandate
to process transfer of Shares, dividend payments, recording of Shareholders’ requests, solution of investors’
grievances amongst other activities connected with the issue of Shares / Bonds. The Investors may lodge their
transfer deeds / requests / complaints with the Registrars at following address:

M/s Link Intime India Pvt Ltd

(Unit: Punjab & Sind Bank)

44, Community Centre, lind floor,

Naraina Indl. Area, Phase-l,

Near PVR Naraina,

New Delhi-110 028.

Phone : (011) 41410592 to 0594

Fax : (011) 41410591

E Mail : delhi@linkintime.co.in

The Bank has also established Shares Cell at Head Office, 21-Rajendra Place, New Delhi - 110008 wherein
the shareholders can mail their requests / complaints for resolution at the address given below:

Punjab & Sind Bank

Head Office : Shares Cell,

21-Rajendra Place, 1st Floor,

New Delhi-110 008.

Telephone : (011) 25782926, 25728930, 25812922

Fax : (011) 25781639

E-mail : complianceofficer@psb.co.in

(The aforesaid e-mail ID is exclusively designated for investors’ complaints pursuant to Clause 47(F) of the listing
agreement with Stock Exchanges)

10.4 Status report in respect of unclaimed shares of the allottees held in Escrow A/c :

S. No. Particulars NSDL CDSL
IN301330-21335661 1601010000399414

1. No. of shares lying in PSB Unclaimed Suspense 1272 1230
Account in beginning of the year
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2. No. of shareholders who approached for transfer
of shares and to whom shares were transferred
from Suspense A/c

3. No. of shares lying in PSB Unclaimed Suspense
Account at the end of the year

1272*

1230*

Certified that voting rights on these shares shall remain frozen till the rightful owner claims the said shares.

11. Corporate Governance

The Bank has adopted and follows such practices, convention and codes as would provide its financial
stakeholders including the depositors, a high level of assurance on the quality of Corporate Governance. The Bank
has transparent ownership structure, well-defined executive management structure, satisfactory risk management
practices, transparency in appointment and functioning of the Board and Senior Management and an elaborate
audit function, carried out both by its Inspection Division and independent audit firms.

12. Financial Calendar (tentative):
Financial Year 1st April, 2013 to 31st March, 2014

Board Meeting for considering of Accounts and recommendation of dividend.

10.05.2014

Submission of audited statement of accounts to RBI.

20.05.2014

Date of Fourth Annual General Meeting.
Time of Fourth Annual General Meeting

Venue of Fourth Annual General Meeting

30.06.2014 Monday
9 AM.

India International Centre,

40-Max Mueller Marg, Lodhi Estate,

New Delhi-110003

Posting of Annual Report

02.06.2014 to 04.06.2014

Book Closure dates

14.06.2014 to 30.06.2014

Record date (for entitlement of final dividend)

13.06.2014

Last Date for receipt of Proxy Forms

25.06.2014 upto 5 pm

Probable date of dispatch of warrants for Dividend

07.07.2014 - 08.07.2014

Payment date — Dividend 11.07.2014
13. Shareholding Pattern as on 31st March 2014

Sr. Description No. of Share Holders Shares % To Equity
No.

1. Govt. of India (Promoters) 1 224132212 81.42
2. Mutual Funds/UTI 0 00 0.00
3. Financial Institutions / Banks 22 12824131 4.65
4. Insurance Companies 0 0 0
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5. facefh weemma o 15 7921591 2.88
6. PHuRe FHor 872 4576428 1.66
7. Juftee e 159790 24250948 8.81
8. RIBESIEIESIE] 1286 992437 0.36
9. faceh ®raRke o 0 0 0
10. | = 13 293986 0.11
1. | TR e 195 292479 0.11

B 162194 275284212 100.00

13.1 oIRd & egufdr oY fF oned weere o ufdforfeeT o= ¥, o sfdadh drereh o sifdener
3TYTE UT ST ¢
fa® 21.12.2013 BI d6 & YARURST B $.5L.TH. H AT Hhed & AJAIGT AR ARG & AUl Sff b AR

FRHR BT URIHRE S &, BT 10/ —. Afhd od & 2,12,63,023 SfFTT IR T faA1H 24.12.2013 BT 1AM
YR TR 37.03%. TR AT&f foar 11 il fob del 99,99,99,971.69%. X1 & o |

14. 31 @I, 2014 &Y rTe gredr o1 Jvft-are fFaeor

dqit AHA BY AHel BT Fd IR TR (3ffpeat TR BT

=1 uferera ) uferera

1 — 2500 148075 9129 9281338 92813380 337
2501 — 5000 7514 463 2848093 28480930 1.04
5001 — 10000 3628 2.24 2784032 27840320 1.01
10001 — 20000 1647 1.02 2364549 23645490 0.86
20001 — 30000 446 0.28 1127631 11276310 0.41
30001 — 40000 197 0.12 703059 7030590 0.25
40001 — 50000 154 0.09 724395 7243950 026
50001 — 100000 295 0.18 2138010 21380100 0.78
100001 3R I 3NfoH 238 0.15 253313105 2533131050 92.02
Hl AT 162194 100.00 275284212 2752842120 100.00

15. 31 aITd, 2014 ST FeeERD I onfaw gic & (Tware) f&aeor

4. NS ArTet AW % (AR B HeEm)
1. ERLIEENCRETATIN 4 333 0.00012
2. BIEREH 6547 1648588 0.59887
3. BV TS 2 550 0.00020
4, 3| 706 117948 0.04285
5, [EEIN 1547 266972 0.09698
6. eSS 1108 289205 0.10506
7. WIS 770 119975 0.04358
8. TIe™T U9 IR gdell 24 1831 0.00067
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5. Foreign Institutional Investors 15 7921591 2.88
6. Bodies Corporate 872 4576428 1.66
7. Resident Individuals 159790 24250948 8.81
8. Non Resident Indians 1286 992437 0.36
9. Overseas Corporate Bodies 0 0 0
10. | Trusts 13 293986 0.11
11. | Clearing Members 195 292479 0.11

Total 162194 275284212 100.00

13.1. Allotment of Equity Shares to The President of India acting through the Government of
India [GOI] on Preferential basis.
As approved by Special Resolution in the EGM of shareholders of the Bank, held on 21.12.2013, 2,12,63,023

equity shares of Rs. 10/- each for cash at a premium of Rs. 37.03 per share aggregating to Rs. 99,99,99,971.69
were issued to GOI on preferential allotment basis on 24.12.2013.

14. Distribution of Shareholders — Category-wise as on 31st March 2014

Category No. of Cases % of Cases | Total Shares Amount(Face % of Amount
Value)

1 - 2500 148075 91.29 9281338 92813380 3.37
2501 - 5000 7514 4.63 2848093 28480930 1.04
5001 — 10000 3628 2.24 2784032 27840320 1.01
10001 — 20000 1647 1.02 2364549 23645490 0.86
20001 - 30000 446 0.28 1127631 11276310 0.41
30001 — 40000 197 0.12 703059 7030590 0.25
40001 - 50000 154 0.09 724395 7243950 0.26
50001 — 100000 295 0.18 2138010 21380100 0.78
100001 & Above 238 0.15 253313105 2533131050 92.02
TOTAL 162194 100.00 275284212 2752842120 100.00

15. Geographical (State Wise) Distribution of Shareholders as at 31st March 2014

Sr. No. State Cases Shares % (No. of Shares)
1. ANDAMAN & NICOBAR 4 333 0.00012
2. ANDHRA PRADESH 6547 1648588 0.59887
3. ARUNACHAL PRADESH 2 550 0.00020
4. ASSAM 706 117948 0.04285
5. BIHAR 1547 266972 0.09698
6. CHANDIGARH 1108 289205 0.10506
7. CHATTISGARH 770 119975 0.04358
8. DADRA & NAGAR HAVELI 24 1831 0.00067
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9 T 3R 8 1735 0.00063
10. | feoel 15245 229002219 83.18756
1. | TR 197 26803 0.00974
12. | oA 31979 3827410 1.39035
13. | gRamn 5238 835110 0.30336
14, | feAmad uewr 300 50548 0.01836
15. | SR 3R TR 254 57341 0.02083
16. | SIRES 1436 180277 0.06549
17. | FHlc® 7203 1503306 0.54609
18. | o 1663 413902 0.15035
19. | Hew g 4269 799156 0.29030
20. | MERTS 33481 26618498 9.66946
21. | AR 9 1099 0.00040
22. | HETe™ 31 3192 0.00116
23. | ANTelS 21 7830 0.00284
24. | IS 983 171998 0.06248
25. | gif$eRY 110 20378 0.00740
26. | GoTE 4990 1273528 0.46262
27. | RToTeRIH 14213 1491478 0.54180
28. | fafawH 6 500 0.00018
29. | ATy 7995 1588467 0.57703
3. | fBgx 19 4420 0.00161
31, | SR Uew 8101 1447398 0.52578
32. | ScRrEs 937 192898 0.07007
33. | uf¥=w dwra 11498 2325797 0.84487
34. | TGN /3 14 1085 0.00039

B 16098 274291775 99.63949
35. | U.3TR3ME. 1286 992437 0.36051

Hel T 162194 275284212 100.00000

16. TTP TFATOIT 3 DAL B EGr DY AT TAT T Hiaa (Refid 01.04.2013 & 31.03.2014)

AT TP aad o ATw gfsar for 94 wie taaaw fo. (fvas)
(Tis)
e ) )
Soadd (%) | gAdH (%)) drar @Y Joadad (®) | g9 (|8) | €&l &) 9=

HIAT(HEA) (E)
ardet, 2013 63.80 57.50 1314577 63.50 57.70 326657
7, 2013 63.20 57.00 1422175 63.70 57.00 380577
S, 2013 60.50 51.85 941001 60.50 52.00 287578

114

aiffe Ruré 2013-14




16.

Punjab & Sind Bank

ERE

9. DAMAN & DIU 8 1735 0.00063
10. DELHI 15245 229002219 83.18756
11. GOA 197 26803 0.00974
12. GUJARAT 31979 3827410 1.39035
13. HARAYANA 5238 835110 0.30336
14. HIMACHAL PRADESH 300 50548 0.01836
15. JUMMU & KASHMIR 254 57341 0.02083
16. JHARKHAND 1436 180277 0.06549
17. KARNATAKA 7203 1503306 0.54609
18. KERALA 1663 413902 0.15035
19. MADHYA PRADESH 4269 799156 0.29030
20. MAHARASHTRA 33481 26618498 9.66946
21. MANIPUR 9 1099 0.00040
22. MEGHALAYA 31 3192 0.00116
23. NAGALAND 21 7830 0.00284
24. ORISSA 983 171998 0.06248
25. PONDICHERRY 110 20378 0.00740
26. PUNJAB 4990 1273528 0.46262
27. RAJASTHAN 14213 1491478 0.54180
28. SIKKIM 6 500 0.00018
29. TAMIL NADU 7995 1588467 0.57703
30. TRIPURA 19 4420 0.00161
31. UTTAR PRADESH 8101 1447398 0.52578
32. UTTARAKHAND 937 192898 0.07007
33. WEST BENGAL 11498 2325797 0.84487
34. APO/ OTHERS 14 1085 0.00039

Total 16098 274291775 99.63949
35. NRI 1286 992437 0.36051

GRAND TOTAL 162194 275284212 100.00000

Share Price, Volume of Shares Traded in Stock
(From 01.04.2013 to 31.03.2014)

Exchanges

National Stock Exchange of India Limited (NSE) Bombay Stock Exchange Ltd. (BSE)
Month Highest (Rs.) Low Volume Traded | Highest (Rs.) Lowest (Rs.) | Volume Traded
(Nos.) (Nos.)
APR 2013 63.80 57.50 1314577 63.50 57.70 326657
MAY 2013 63.20 57.00 1422175 63.70 57.00 380577
JUN 2013 60.50 51.85 941001 60.50 52.00 287578
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\T:Kfl'lg, 2013 54.55 45.25 1107263 54.50 45.15 356002
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Punjab & Sind Bank

ERE

JUL 2013 54.55 45.25 1107263 54.50 45.15 356002
AUG 2013 48.80 36.65 1743556 48.70 *36.75 528466
SEP 2013 44.70 37.50 2675983 44.65 37.45 622730
OCT 2013 44.75 39.25 1816286 44.80 39.45 494631
NOV 2013 54.50 43.50 3038928 54.30 43.30 1002806
DEC 2013 47.50 42.95 1389964 47.90 43.00 473662
JAN 2014 47.50 42.80 1817811 47.25 42.65 639818
FEB 2014 44.95 40.50 758389 44.35 40.70 197703
MAR 2014 45.65 40.40 3043499 45.50 40.30 616852

Auditors’ Certificate on Compliance of Conditions of Corporate Governance
To: The Members of Punjab & Sind Bank

We have examined the compliance of conditions of Corporate Governance by Punjab & Sind Bank, for the year
ended on 31st March 2014, as stipulated in Clause-49 of the Listing Agreement of the Bank with Stock Exchanges.
i.e. National Stock Exchange of India Limited and Bombay Stock Exchange Limited.

The compliance of conditions of Corporate Governance is the responsibility of management. Our examination was
limited to procedures and implementation thereof, adopted by the Bank for ensuring the compliance of the conditions
of the Corporate Governance. It is neither an audit nor an expression of opinion on the financial statements of the Bank.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, we certify that the Bank
has complied with the conditions of Corporate Governance as stipulated in the above mentioned Listing Agreement.

We state that such compliance is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the Bank nor the efficiency or
effectiveness with which the management has conducted the affairs of the Bank.

For R. M. Lall & Co.
Chartered Accountants

(R. P. Tewari)
Partner

M. No. 071448
FRN : 000932C

For B. K. Shroff & Co.
Chartered Accountants

(L. K. Shroff)
Partner

M. No. 060742
FRN : 302166E

Dated: May 10, 2014
Place : New Delhi

For O. P. Tulsyan & Co.
Chartered Accountants

(Rakesh Agarwal)
Partner

M. No. 081808

FRN : 500028N

For R. Kothari & Co.
Chartered Accountants

(Rajesh Kumar)
Partner

M. No. 090865
FRN : 307069E
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Punjab & Sind Bank

The Board of Directors
Punjab & Sind Bank
New Delhi

Dear Sirs,
Re: Declaration under Clause 49(1)(D) 2013-14

It is to declare that all the Board Members and Senior Management Personnel of the Bank have affirmed their
compliance of the Code of Conduct for the Financial Year ended on 31st March, 2014 in accordance with clause 49
(I) (D) of the Listing Agreement entered into with the Stock Exchanges. The said Code of conduct has been posted
on the Bank’s website.

For Punjab & Sind Bank

Place: New Delhi Jatinderbir Singh
Dated:10.05.2014 Chairman & Managing Director

The Board of Directors
Punjab & Sind Bank
New Delhi

Dear Sirs,

Re: CEO/CFO Certification for the year 2013-14

Pursuant to clause 49 of the Listing Agreements, we hereby certify that:

(@) We have reviewed financial statements and the cash flow statement for the year ended 31st March 2014 and
that to the best of our knowledge and belief:

(i) these statements do not contain any materially untrue statement or omit any material fact or contain statements
that might be misleading;

(ii) these statements together present a true and fair view of the Bank’s affairs and are in compliance with
existing accounting standards, applicable laws and regulations.

(b) There are, to the best of our knowledge and belief, no transactions entered into by the Bank during the year
which are fraudulent, illegal or violative of the Bank’s code of conduct.

() We accept responsibility for establishing and maintaining internal controls for financial reporting and that we
have evaluated the effectiveness of internal control systems of the Bank pertaining to financial reporting and
we have disclosed to the auditors and the Audit Committee, deficiencies in the design or operation of such
internal controls, if any, of which we are aware and the steps we have taken or propose to take to rectify these
deficiencies.

(d)  We have indicated to the auditors and the Audit committee:

(i) significant changes in internal control over financial reporting during the year;

(i) significant changes in accounting policies during the year and that the same have been disclosed in the
notes to the financial statements; and

(iii) instances of significant fraud of which we have become aware and the involvement therein, if any, of the
management or an employee having a significant role in the Bank’s internal control system over financial

reporting.
For Punjab & Sind Bank
Place: New Delhi Jatinderbir Singh
Dated:10.05.2014 Chairman & Managing Director
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Punjab & Sind Bank

BASEL Il DISCLOSURES - YEAR ENDED 315" MARCH 2014

Table DF 1 — SCOPE OF APPLICATION

Qualitative Disclosures The Bank does not
(@) The name of the top bank in the group to which the Framework applies. belong to any group

(b) An outline of differences in the basis of consolidation for accounting and regulatory purposes,
with a brief description of the entities within the group (i) that are fully consolidated; (ii) that Not Applicable
are pro-rata consolidated; (iii) that are given a deduction treatment; and (iv) that are neither
consolidated nor deducted (e.g. where the investment is risk-weighted).

Quantitative Disclosures

(c) The aggregate amount of capital deficiencies in all subsidiaries not included in the consolidation Not Applicable
i.e. that are deducted and the name(s) of such subsidiaries.

(d) The aggregate amounts (e.g. current book value) of the bank's total interests in insurance entities,
which are risk-weighted as well as their name, their country of incorporation or residence, the Not Applicable
proportion of ownership interest and, if different, the proportion of voting power in these entities.
In addition, indicate the quantitative impact on regulatory capital of using this method versus
using the deduction.

Table DF 2 — CAPITAL STRUCTURE
Qualitative disclosures

TERMS & CONDITIONS OF LOWER TIER Il CAPITAL:

The Bank has issued Lower Tier Il Bonds by way of Subordinated Debts in the form of Promissory Notes at Coupon
payable annually / semi-annually. These bonds have been issued after getting them duly rated by the Domestic Rating
Agencies. All the outstanding Bonds except issued under series VI & VII are listed at the National Stock Exchange
Ltd. Mumbai. The other important features of these bonds are :

The bonds have a tenor ranging from 109 months to 127 months from date of the issue.

The instruments are fully paid up, unsecured and subordinated to the claims of other creditors, free of
restrictive clauses and not redeemable at the initiative of the holder or without the consent of the RBI.

The instruments are subjected to progressive discounting @ 20% per year over the last five years of their
tenor. Such discounted amounts are not included in Tier — Il Capital for Capital Adequacy purposes.

The claims of the investors in these instruments shall rank superior to the claims of investors in instruments
eligible for inclusion in Tier | Capital and subordinate to the claims of all other creditors.

Subordinated debt instruments shall be limited to 50% of Tier | capital of the Bank and these instruments,
together with other components of Tier Il Capital shall not exceed 100% of Tier | Capital.

The Bank has not issued any upper Tier Il capital and innovative instruments that qualify for inclusion in
Tier | capital.

X/ Crores)

(@) The amount of Tier 1 capital, with separate disclosure of Amount
Paid-up share capital; 475.28
Reserves; 3705.24
Innovative instruments; 160.00
Other capital instruments; 0.00
SUB-TOTAL 4340.52
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Punjab & Sind Bank

ERE

LESS: amounts deducted from Tier 1 capital, including goodwill & investments. 0.1265
TOTAL TIER | CAPITAL 4340.40
(b) The total amount of Tier 2 capital (net of deductions from Tier 2 capital) 2141.62
(c) Debt capital instruments eligible for inclusion in Upper Tier 2 capital. NIL
Total amount outstanding. NA
Of which amount raised during the current year NA
Amount eligible to be reckoned as capital funds NA

(d) Subordinated debt eligible for inclusion in Lower Tier 2 capital

Total amount outstanding 1365.00
Of which amount raised during the current year. NIL
Amount eligible to be reckoned as capital funds 1215.00
(e) Other deductions from capital, if any. NIL
(g) Total eligible capital. 6482.02

Table DF 3 - CAPITAL ADEQUACY

Qualitative disclosures

Bank is already geared up to adopt global best practices while implementing risk management stipulations that are
in conformity with the Basel Il framework.

Comprehensive risk management architecture is in place to address various issues concerning Basel Il. A quarterly
review is carried out to assess the capital need of the Bank, keeping in view the anticipated growth in Risk Weighted
Assets, Market Risk and Operational Risk.

Bank maintains capital as a cushion towards the risk of loss in value of exposure, businesses, etc., to protect the
interest of stake holders, more particularly, depositors.

Bank has system in place for assessing the capital requirements based on current and future business activities and
monitoring the same on an ongoing basis. The bank considers that capital availability is the central theme in the whole
process and its computation is relatable to policy, strategy, business level/composition, and Supervisory concern and
Disclosure issues. Towards this, bank has evolved a well laid down Internal Capital Adequacy Assessment Process
(ICAAP) framework and carries out capital calculation under Pillar-2 also of Basel-Il at periodical intervals besides Pillar
1 Capital calculation. The bank has formulated Stress Testing policy to measure impact of adverse stress scenarios on
the adequacy of capital at periodical intervals.

In line with RBI guidelines, the bank has adopted following approaches for implementation of New Capital Adequacy
Framework — Basel II.

m  Standardised Approach for credit risk

®  Basic Indicator Approach for operational risk

®  Standardised Duration Approach for market risk

Though the bank is presently implementing the above Approach, it has started its preparation for moving towards
advance approaches.

Capital requirements for credit risk:

Amt. - T/ Crores

Portfolios subject to standardised approach @ 9% 4308.66

Securitisation exposures Nil
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Punjab & Sind Bank

Capital requirements for market risk: Standardised duration approach

Capital Charge on account of General Market Risk Amt. - %/ Crores
Interest rate risk 107.15
Foreign exchange risk (including gold) 0.77
Equity risk 16.70

Capital requirements for operational risk:

Amt. - %/ Crores

Basic indicator approach 298.78

Total and Tier 1 capital ratio for the Bank:

Total Capital to Risk Weighted Assets Ratio as per Basel Il 12.10%

Tier | Capital to Risk Weighted Assets Ratio as per Basel Il 8.10%

Table DF 4 - CREDIT RISK : GENERAL DISCLOSURES

Qualitative Disclosures

A. DEFINITIONS OF PAST DUE AN D IMPAIRED:

The Bank follows the basic prudential guidelines issued by the RBI on classification of Non-Performing Asset (NPA)
as under :

a) Interest and / or instalment of principal remain overdue for a period of more than 90 days in respect of a
term loan.

b) The account remains ‘out of order' if the outstanding balance remains continuously in excess of sanctioned
limit / DP for more than 90 days and / or there are no credits continuously for 90 days as on the date of
Balance Sheet or credits are not enough to cover the interest debited during the same period, in respect of
Overdraft/Cash Credit (OD/CC).

¢) The bill remains overdue for a period of more than 90 days in the case of bills purchased and discounted.

d) The installment of principal or interest thereon remains overdue for two crop seasons for short duration
crops.

e) The installment of principal or interest thereon remains overdue for one crop season for long duration crops.

f)  The amount of liquidity facility remains outstanding for more than 90 days, in respect of a securitization
transaction undertaken in terms of guidelines on securitization dated May 7, 2012.

g) In respect of derivative transactions, the overdue receivables representing positive mark-to-market value
of a derivative contract, if these remains unpaid for a period of 90 days from the specified due date for
repayment.

Here, *Overdue' mean any amount due to the Bank under any credit facility, if it is not paid on the due date fixed
by the Bank.

Where the interest charged during any quarter is not serviced fully within 90 days from the end of the quarter, the
account is classified as Non-performing asset and ceases to generate income for the bank.

Besides above, Bank also follows the guidelines issued by RBI in respect of classification of assets under a) Restructured
accounts, b) Project under implementation involving time overrun, c) Post shipment Suppliers' Credit. d) Export Project
Finance, e) Take over Finance, f) Govt. guaranteed Advance, g) Advance under Rehabilitation approved by BFIR / TLI,
h) Advances under Debt Waiver & Debt Relief Scheme 2009, i) Sale of Financial Assets to Securitization Company
/Reconstruction Company, j) Purchase/ Sale of Non-Performing Financial Assets, k) Up-gradation of accounts, )
Accounts regularized near about the Balance Sheet date etc.
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Punjab & Sind Bank

B. CREDIT RISK MANAGEMENT AND OBJECTIVES:

To effectively identify, assess, measure, and manage the credit risk exposure of the Bank, with a view to contain
it within desired limits in relation to the risk appetite of the Bank and commensurate with the availability of
Capital. In doing so, the Bank's Credit Risk philosophy aims at minimising risk and maintaining it within the
levels which shall ensure safety of the Bank's financial resources, including stakeholders' equity and, at the
same time, also ensure a steady and healthy financial growth.

STRATEGIC POLICY OF THE BANK - CREDIT RISK:

The Bank has a comprehensive and well defined Loan Policy which covers various aspects of strategic planning. The
loan policy of the Bank is reviewed from time to time, depending on requirements of the changes in loan portfolio
and general economic and market scenario. The loan policy is also subjected to a comprehensive review by the

Board at

least once a year. The loan policy of the Bank addresses, among other things:
Exposure ceilings and prudential caps in different industry segments and borrower categories.
Pricing based on risk profile linked to credit ratings and/or retail segments.

Guidelines relating to procedures and systems for appraisal, sanction, and monitoring of loans and modes
of dispensation of credit.

Credit Rating framework.

Inspection mechanism and compliance of regulatory and policy guidelines.

CREDIT RISK MANAGEMENT ARCHITECTURE:

TOOLS

The organizational structure of the Bank for Credit Risk Management function has the Board of Directors
at the Apex level that has the overall oversight of management of risks.

The Risk Management Committee (RMC) which is the sub-committee of the Board headed by the Chairman
& Managing Director devises the policy and strategy for integrated risk management including credit risk.

At the operational level, the Credit Risk Management Committee (CRMC) manages the credit risk. The main
function includes implementation of credit risk management policies approved by the Board, monitoring
credit risk on a bank wide basis, recommending to the board for its approval all policies relating to credit
risk management, prudential limits on credit exposures, portfolio management, loan products etc. There is a
structured and standardized credit approval process including a comprehensive credit appraisal procedure.
In order to assess the credit risk associated with any financing proposal, the Bank assesses a variety of risks
relating to the borrower and the relevant industry.

The Risk Management Department (RMD) headed by the General Manger, measures, controls and manages
credit risk on bank wide basis within the limits set by the Board and enforces compliance with risk parameters
set by Board/RMC/CRMC. The RMD is duly supported by Credit Risk Management Cell, Asset Liability
Management Cell and Operations Risk Management Cell.

The Inspection Department as well as Credit Monitoring Department headed by a General Manager, monitors
the quality of loan portfolio, identifies problems and takes steps to correct deficiencies. Loan review / credit
audit is undertaken by the Credit Audit function.

USED FOR CREDIT RISK MANAGEMENT / MITIGATION

Credit Approving Authority — Delegation of Powers. The Bank has a well-defined scheme of delegation of
powers with a multi-tier risk based approving system, which is reviewed periodically and revised as and
when necessary to meet the compulsions of business environment.

Prudential Limits on various aspects of credit / investment like Single / Group borrower limits for various
types of borrowers are in place.

Risk Rating/Pricing - The bank has introduced rating models for various segments, which serve as a single
point indicator of diverse risk factors of a counter party and support credit and pricing decisions.

Credit Audit/Loan review mechanism is an effective tool for constantly evaluating the quality of loan book
and to bring about qualitative improvements in credit administration

Portfolio Management - to start with, the bank has introduced a simple portfolio-monitoring framework.
Going forward the bank will be graduating to a more sophisticated Portfolio Management model.
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RISK MEASUREMENT

Punjab & Sind Bank

At present Credit Risk is assessed through Risk rating at the individual level and through Risk Weighting of the assets

at the portfolio level and capital is maintained based on Risk Weights.

Total gross credit risk exposures

Category Amt. - ¥/ Crores
1 Fund Based Credit Exposures 57857.74
2 Non Fund Based Credit Exposures 3433.43

Geographic distribution of exposures

Category Amt. - ¥/ Crores
Overseas
. NIL
1 Fund Based Credit Exposures
Non Fund Based Credit Exposures NIL
Domestic
. 57857.74
2 Fund Based Credit Exposures
Non Fund Based Credit Exposures 3433.43

INDUSTRY TYPE DISTRIBUTION OF EXPOSURES

Amt. - ¥/ Crores

Industry Fund Based Non- Fund Based Total

AMINING & QUARRYING 837.53 107.98 945.51
B.FOOD PROCESSING 1176.84 26.43 1203.27
C.BEVERAGES & TOBACCO 484.77 18.04 502.81
D.TEXTILES 1412.67 58.35 1471.02
E.LEATHER & LEATHER PRODUCTS 136.02 3.46 139.48
F.WOOD & WOOD PRODUCTS 93.19 3.19 96.38
G.PAPER & PAPER PRODUCTS 102.27 1.29 103.56
H.PETRO./COAL/NUCLEAR FUELS 60.81 0.29 61.10
I.CHEMICALS & CHEMICAL PROD. 520.11 17.12 537.23
J.RUBBER,PLASTIC & ITS PROD. 196.54 20.57 217.10
K.GLASS & GLASSWARE 12.11 0.31 12.42
L.CEMENT AND CEMENT PROD. 252.13 14.36 266.48
M.BASIC METAL & METAL PROD. 2433.65 195.70 2629.35
N.ALL ENGINEERING 672.24 135.53 807.77
O.VEHCLES/V.PARTS/TPT.EQPM. 300.00 127.40 427.40
P.GEMS & JEWELLARY 67.88 225.43 293.30
Q.CONSTRUCTIONS 828.69 329.55 1158.24
R.INFRASTRUCTURE 18164.82 895.95 19060.78
S.OTHER INDUSTRIES 185.62 29.78 215.40
T.RESIDUARY 29919.88 1222.70 31142.58
Grand Total 57857.74 3433.43 61291.17
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Punjab & Sind Bank

Significant exposure:
Industry where the Total Exposure is more than 5% of Total Fund based and Non-fund based exposure:
Amt. - ¥/ Crores

S.No. Industry Exposure
1 Infrastructure 19060.78
2 Residuary 31142.58

RESIDUAL CONTRACTUAL MATURITY BREAKDOWN OF ASSETS
Amt. -3/ Crores

Maturity Pattern (Time Loans & Advances | Investments Foreign Currency Deposits Borrowings
Buckets) (Book Value) | |jabilities Assets
1 day 547.63 0.39 30.18 221.23 584.18 0.00
2-7 days 1044.21 346.32 0.74 17.80 1547.94 380.00
8-14 days 1473.68 292.94 5.08 24.86 2016.91 0.00
15-28 days 2270.23 480.30 12.12 50.09 3564.36 0.00
29 days to 3 months 6617.49 4076.32 29.91 191.97 11947.63 40.00
Over 3 months to 6 months 3844.42 36.69 32.33 73.03 10739.15 200.04
Over 6 months to 1 year 7320.15 899.81 94.68 0.00 27745.45 0.00
Over 1 year to 3 years 14495.39 2417.71 92.77 0.00 13121.22 150.00
Over 3 years to 5 years 9011.54 5874.52 8.70 0.00 4321.80 100.00
Over 5 years 10614.33 13869.11 0.00 0.00 9141.52 1435.00
TOTAL 57239.07 28294.11 306.51 578.98 84730.17 2305.04
Amount of NPAs (Gross)
Category Amt. - ¥/ Crores

1 Substandard 1494.81

2 Doubtful 1 672.15

3 Doubtful 2 346.99

4 Doubtful 3 13.33

5 Loss 26.24
Net NPAs

Amt. - ¥/ Crores
Net NPAs 1918.60
NPA Ratios
Category Percent
1 Gross NPAs to Gross advances 4.41%
2 Net NPAs to Net advances 3.35%

Movement of NPAs (Gross)

Amt. - ¥/ Crores

Opening Balance 1536.90
Additions 1619.61
Reductions 602.99
Closing Balance 2553.52
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Punjab & Sind Bank

Movement of Provisions for NPAs

Amt. - %/ Crores

Opening Balance 412.56
Provisions made during the period 564.68
Write-off

: — 358.57
Write-back of excess provisions
Closing Balance 618.67

Amount of Non-Performing Investments

Amt. - %/ Crores

Amount of Non-Performing Investments 59.04

Amount of provisions held for non-performing investments

Amt. - T/ Crores

Provisions held for non-performing investments 33.45

Movement of provisions for depreciation on investments

Amt. - %/ Crores

Opening Balance 22.73
Provisions made during the period 9.55
Write-off Nil
Write-back of excess provisions 13.23
Closing Balance 19.05

Table DF 5 - CREDIT RISK: DISCLOSURES FOR PORTFOLIOS SUBJECT TO THE

STANDARDISED APPROACH

Qualitative Disclosures

1.

The Bank has approved using the general rating of the following credit rating agencies for risk weighting under
the standardized approach for CRAR calculations CRISIL, ICRA, India Rating, SMERA, BRICKWORK and CARE
for domestic claims and S&P, FITCH and Moody's for claims on non-resident corporates, foreign banks and
foreign sovereigns.

The ratings of all these agencies are being used for all exposures subjected to rating for risk weighting purposes
under the standardized approach for CRAR calculations under Basel-Il as defined by RBI.

The process used to transfer public issue ratings on to comparable assets in the banking book is as per regulatory
requirements of RBI. The public ratings published by the rating agencies on their website are used for this
purpose. Only, ratings which are in force as per monthly bulletin of the concerned rating agency and which
have been reviewed at least once during the previous 15 months are used.

For all the exposures on a particular counterparty, bank uses the rating of only one agency, even though these
exposures are rated by more than one with exception being where each of the exposures is rated by only one
of the approved rating agencies.

To be eligible for risk-weighting purposes, it is ensured that the external credit assessment takes into account
and reflects the entire amount of credit risk exposure the bank has with regard to all payments owed to it i.e.,
both principal and interest. External assessments for one entity within a corporate group is not used to risk
weight other entities within the same group.

For assets that have contractual maturity less than or equal to one year, short term ratings are used while for
other assets, long term ratings are used. For Cash Credit exposures long term ratings are taken.

Where an issuer has a long-term exposure with an external long term rating that warrants a risk weight of 150%,
all unrated claims on the same counterparty, whether short-term or long-term, also receive a 150% risk weight,
except incases where credit risk mitigation techniques are used for such claims. Similar is the case with short-
term rating.

ANNUAL REPORT 2013-14 133



8.

10.

dgad

gony ws g §&6

rgHifea sl fgiRr veifeaal g1 <rarat st (Ao &1 rafafer 2o Sies IR & fou amsiad giteaiu
@ AT SIRGH AR H ydeT U I A A1 ST 2 | g9 faudia gfue wR IR FeiRa sreurafyr <, 39
gfcraer TR AT STedTaey J1d & foly SiRed R 8 &9 ¥ &9 (§ WR R & SlIRgH IR ] 8T | 96 &
foog &= faRur glaar ¥ o= SiRes R <16 & e =g faRkiee w0 ¥ SR &4 orafer aTell ufsfodl &1
TN BT ST & T2 &9 3afe) dTell diRune &R HuiRa wfengferal @1 Ik—fRegiRa drafafyr g@l &g Sikeq IR
A @ {0 YR H €T ST S |

Ifg a1 kot fAiRor voif<gat g & oot fuiRor @ 18 € ORI <1 srerT—etentT SiRew ¥R sifdd farg v €, a=t
IR AIRgH IR AN far Siran & | afe as o S0 faiRor gt g1 a9 a1 aiftres it feniRa &1 € 2
T SRg 9R 3ifdhd fhy 7Y €, 981 ]T AT SIRaHT IR H | TET SR SIgd HR AT fdar R 2 |

)

1))

STet favry fAeiRa arett o <rar fawr 781 8, fawr <raf iR SiReq wR =af=rd ot Sof) qeffexor o= gIRT fagy
ofy feriRor w amenlRd g |

Fur faRy & forg o oioft feiRor (SEf o arffaxor & Siked R IR—2ofigd Jrell W on] SiReq 9
H B B) 9% @ dad IR—GIRT STa1 R N 8, ST&l @il Al US 3feurdry sifvariar 2 afe a8 mar
HAGY G © 91 8 UhR 4 falre aiffgd #ur § «1fde 2 don Ik —fuiRa amal &1 aRueaar fRaiRa

AEl & IRYGId & 918 A8 8, B W 9% & dHadl IR—AEiRd A W N 2 |

e IRISGAT a1 Ut 1 & forg IR—AaiRa artell & fofw om] SiiRes IR ¥ S1fties a1 S¥@ aR16R SIIRgH

R iR f&ar mar @ a1 39 ufiue R IR—RuiRa #melt & forg a8 SiiRew wrR fafRa 8 Sifs o
SIRgH R R N 8T, I I STaT IHS FIF—1 T &R UHR § giRa o1 Sifgd IR 9§ &9 7 |

ATATCHED GHCIHEoT
AF®IH GREPIV R §Y SRIH HH B B d1a SiNgd HIR
ShiRas wR Aoy fafRa wor Silkew IR fafRa #o1 SiRew | 7o Sifem &9 o @ 919

SRgw IR

100% SRe¥ ¥R & &9 32263.37 21754.30 10509.08

100%vhRaw 9R 20142.59 14377.32 5765.27

100%STRa" IR ¥ 21fdrd 6121.57 1539.32 4582.26

PHar 0.00 0.00 0.00

Bl 58527.53 37670.94 20856.61

aIfesar . 6. -FT WIRIA HH BT : AFBIGA gReHIVT & fIT gHdHwor

IUITCHD Yehcteheor
HEIT & 35 & 91 | 99 & folt, 0 SIRGA HH I o gg BT U§e- T U IS ¢ | 9 10+
of® gRETEE & SR 0T SIRGH BT HH B @ o7 3P IS AR T+ AT & | IRYFIdT FHTe,
T FFJA AR oI ARG & U], Yol IR I HH PR o UAdeTd o Ul SIRgH HH HR- & SUrl
DI AT & 7 | AV Yol wATar BHad (SE—11) @ AT ggar Y 30T SR HH I & (9~ HRS
@remes) fre 8 —
R IIEEEASCIRE]

i —deig—efe—afeT

.-

1.

134

A fawia wuilRds gfasfaar

AE GReHIu & Sfaiid |l FFaTRad! I F0T AIRIA HH B B ol A1 77 8 | gga1 78 i

e fforiad 8-

aiffe Ruré 2013-14



Punjab & Sind Bank
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8.  The long-term ratings assigned by the approved rating agencies are directly mapped to the risk weights under
the Standardised Approach for long-term exposures. On the contrary, the unrated short-term claim on counter-
party attracts a risk weight of at least one level higher than the risk weight applicable to the rated short-term
claim on that counter-party. Issue-specific short-term ratings are used to derive risk weights for claims arising
from the rated facility against banks and a corporate's short-term rating is not used to support a risk weight for
an unrated long-term claim.

9. If there are two ratings accorded by eligible credit rating agencies, which map into different risk weights, the
higher risk weight is applied. If there are three or more ratings accorded by eligible credit rating agencies with
different risk weights, the ratings corresponding to the two lowest risk weights are referred to and the higher of
those two risk weights are applied, i.e., the second lowest risk weight.

10. The RW of the investment claim is based on specific rating by a chosen credit rating agency, where the claim is
not an investment in a specific assessed issue:

i) the rating applicable to the specific debt (where the rating maps into a risk weight lower than that which

applies to an unrated claim) is applied to the bank's un-assessed claim only if this claim ranks pari passu

or senior to the specific rated debt in all respects and the maturity of the un-assessed claim is not later than
the maturity of the rated claim, except where the rated claim is a short term obligation.

ii) if either the issuer or single issue has been assigned a rating which maps into a risk weight equal to or
higher than that which applies to unrated claims, an unrated claim on the same counterparty, is assigned
the same risk weight as is applicable to the rated exposure, if this claim ranks pari passu or junior to the
rated exposure in all respects.

Exposure amounts after risk mitigation subject to the standardized approach
Amt. - T/ Crores

Risk Weight Category Exposure After Credit Risk Un-Rated Exposure Rated Exposure
Mitigation
Below 100 % risk weight 32263.37 21754.30 10509.08
100 % risk weight 20142.59 14377.32 5765.27
More than 100 % rISk Welght 6121.57 1539.32 4582.26
Deducted 0.00 0.00 0.00
TOTAL 58527.53 37670.94 20856.61

Table DF 6 - CREDIT RISK MITIGATION: DISCLOSURES FOR STANDARDISED APPROACHES

Qualitative Disclosures

1. Credit Risk Mitigation is a proactive management tool designed to enhance revenue growth, while protecting an
entity's earnings from loss. Banks employ various methods and techniques to reduce the impact of the credit
risks they are exposed to in their daily operations. Some of the credit risk mitigation techniques are permitted
to be used by the supervisor for reducing the capital charge after adjustment for value, currency mismatch and
maturity mismatch. Various Credit Risk Mitigants (CRM) recognized under the New Capital Adequacy Framework
(Basel 1l) are as follows:

= Collateralised transactions
= On-balance-sheet-netting
®  (Guarantees

2. Eligible financial collateral:

All collaterals are not recognised as credit risk mitigants under the Standardised Approach. The following are
the financial collaterals recognized:
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Punjab & Sind Bank

i)  Cash and Deposits including deposits in foreign currency.

ii) Gold: benchmarked to 99.99% purity.

iii) Securities issued by Central and State Governments

iv) Kisan Vikas Patra and National Savings Certificates

v) Life insurance policies

vi) Debt securities -Rated subject to conditions.

vii) Debt securities not rated issued by banks subject to conditions
viii) Units of mutual funds subject to conditions

There are certain additional standards for availing capital relief for collateralized transactions, which have direct
bearing on the management of collaterals, and these aspects are taken into account during Collateral Management.

3.  On-balance-sheet-netting

On-balance sheet netting is confined to loans/advances (treated as exposure) and deposits (treated as collateral),
where Bank has legally enforceable netting arrangements, involving specific lien with proof of documentation
and which are managed on a net basis.

4. Guarantees Where guarantees are direct, explicit, irrevocable and unconditional, bank takes account of such
credit protection in calculating capital requirements. The range of eligible guarantors / counter guarantors include:

Sovereigns, sovereign entities (including BIS, IMF, European Central Bank and European Community as well
as certain specified MDBs, ECGC and CGTSME), banks and primary dealers with a lower risk weight than the
counterparty;

Other entities rated AA or better.

The Bank accepts all types of collaterals against exposures. However, for Basel-Il norms, the eligible collaterals
are considered and given appropriate treatment before they are set-off against exposures. The bank has a well
laid-out Credit Risk Mitigation & Collateral management Policy and also guidelines for valuation of collaterals.
The Bank also takes cognizance of eligible guarantees and substitution of rating of guarantor(s) in cases where
these are better than that of the counter-party. Besides, for purposes of credit protection, Central Govt., State

Govt., ECGC and CGFT coverages are also taken into account to apply appropriate risk weights.

Disclosed credit risk portfolio under the standardised approach, the total exposure that is covered by: Eligible financial
collateral; after the application of haircuts — ¥ 2491.56 crore

Table DF 7- SECURITISATION: DISCLOSURE FOR STANDARDISED APPROACH
Qualitative Disclosures

Objective of Policy on Securitization of Assets
1. For Raising Resources
1.1 To raise resources for the Bank (through mortgage/ asset backed securitization) at a reasonable cost.

1.2 For better asset liability management as long tenure assets can be disposed off, IN CASE OF NEED, to reduce
the maturity mismatches.

1.3 To manage the capital funds efficiently without effecting the growth of the Bank. To rotate assets and to continue
to book business even while capital availability is scarce.

1.4 To access to new source of funding and diversify the existing funding sources.
1.5 To maximize the returns by churning assets fast.

1.6 For better managing the credit portfolio. By hiring of assets in sectors of high concentration, the Bank would be
in a position to continue to book additional business in these sectors and hence maintain market share, client
relationship etc.

ANNUAL REPORT 2013-14 137



e v ws e o

d& o ffaesor & faufd Feor ST &7 fhell o=y wwer (3ff) &1 F2f 9= 2
S G MRAAT BT AL, 78.69 PIS ®UY

arfésar $ruw. 8. $f3er g& i e wifRger
UTHD GhSITHRUT

FIGIR SREH BT MY &Sl &)1 ¥ gRacH, faael ga1 &, a6k g™l Ud uRad-gdr ¥ 8 dlel 9fas &l a7y
o1 fAR=adr & 8| 9 a8 wHdT € f6 IR SIRew # S9S SUR / 0T <7 Tl ST ofF O el iR e
Tfafaferl g2 I T8 SR T AR SR A1 A € | IR ARG T faer Nl & SgaR yaes foar ST
2, T argAIe a1S g1 fhar Sirar 2 | 3 e, afsiferdl & e, face ga1 d2m o Sarei &1 gag vd Wiard
TR / SR AfbAT & JFAR BT YARTT il & iR T8l I 81 9 I fafame el & ogar i
ARfEl & SfaRT B 2RI SR dTet faumei @2 i gRaw & IgaRu § &1 3”d € | AUR & J&d] H iR
SR BT 3ol AFGHIGH AMMAH IHHE & AR far Arar 2 | ST (@UR) & Mo =g @2 fasma & forg
SU UICHIfeRl & TFAR GoilTd ATl ! |0l IRA™ Rofd 9% & gSRiae fewn-fesl & ifaR &1 9l 7 |
IR R Ye & I
TR SR e & Ieeg 1 90 &

» GRHA &1 Jdg
o1 <R SIkgA v fafrrg ) Sikew &1 vde
fraer diéwifera &1 Sfua arffevor va qearea
frae derm geurel varell &1 vaie vd Sfea Rarfém
faf e Jruersll &1 srguTer

ATSITCHD YPCIPeor

ion S AR - TS
TS R ARH 68.40
IR Rafa Sikew 20.96
faceh fafvra SfRew 0.77

aifear $huw. 9. uRaraaord oiftgar
OTCHD b THUT

9% A gRETATId SIRgH Yegd de e fARARAT RIS 9 S&T a¥fell Udgd WR IRl IR @ 8| 986 B
eere—Hrse aiiie MR R s NTAl B THE Bl € | § SReH, B AT & FUSU Bl Gfdpar § o1 2 |

qRETAATHS SIRIH el I & AR PRIBRI FQerd Bl fedeldl § URATAAIHS SIIgH yaed |AfT (3l R
A, ) T T TS B | MIRTAN. B FfHd Sob TS [l § $F 9 $F TS IR TR B ST 8 | 2Iara
P 3iT TS SR MR ARD AET—RIeT (MRATINS.Y) § &7 FARIT0 T~ HRaT & | 3 PRIS B F SR
& gt ot gedral, Emsh & FEfd w ko oRa—uder ) @) Sl 2 |

BT HIHI, FHRE Ud LTSy onfe & arafd Arat § waen fReror faumT, Samen fbmT vd aaaar faumT s+
Rarfén Tra—awg R 3fifse HHA ffp IS (THAL) &I o4 € | uRATaIHS SIRIA JT Iy fARaRdT 1o
§ gt fafames Rud o gageg vd afid fear smar 2 | aRareds Sied & fog doil y9R &1 Soer
2 IO W §F el d YADIP UG BT U IR el © | T IRETeTeId SIigd & fofg Yol UaR &1 FIroeT
I UGl BT IR IHE 8 3 IR A1 §F & FI—H IR IET & |

arfeser $huw. 10. o o afFedt & o e¢ iRgar (an€. ane. ane. . )
UMD GbhSTHRIT

138 aiffe Ruré 2013-14



Punjab & Sind Bank

ERE

2. For Deploying Surplus Funds: Avenue for bulk deployment of surplus funds either by subscribing to the PTCs
or by purchase of assets through bilateral assignment of debts with reasonable rate of return.

However, Bank has not sold out any standard credit portfolio under securitization to any other entities

Assignment of Standard Pool Assets- T 78.69 crores

Table DF 8 - MARKET RISK IN TRADING BOOK
Qualitative disclosures

Market risk refers to the uncertainty of future earnings resulting from changes in interest rates, foreign exchange
rates, market prices and volatilities. The Bank assumes market risk in its lending and deposit taking businesses and
in its investment activities, including position taking and trading. The market risk is managed in accordance with the
investment policies, which are approved by the Board. These policies ensure that operations in securities, foreign
exchange and derivatives are conducted in accordance with sound and acceptable business practices and are as per
the extant regulatory guidelines, laws governing transactions in financial securities and the financial environment.
Market Risk in Trading Book is assessed as per the Standardized Duration approach. The capital charge for Held for
Trading (HFT) and Available for Sale (AFS) portfolios is computed as per Reserve Bank of India prudential guidelines.

Market risk management objectives:
The objectives of market risk management are as follows:
= Management of liquidity
=  Management of interest rate risk and exchange rate risk.
®  Proper classification and valuation of investment portfolio
= Adequate and proper reporting of investments and derivative products

= Compliance with regulatory requirements

Quantitative Disclosures

The capital requirements for: Amt. - I/ Crores
Interest rate risk; 68.40
Equity position risk; 20.96
Foreign exchange risk; 0.77

Table DF 9 - OPERATIONAL RISK

Qualitative disclosures

The Bank has formulated Policies on 'Operational Risk Management' and the 'Business Continuity Plan & Disaster
Recovery Management'. These policies are being reviewed by the Board of the Bank on annual basis. Bank is in
process of collecting 'Loss Data'.

As per the policy on Operational Risk, the Operational Risk Management Committee (ORMC) has been set up
which is headed by the Executive Director. Regular meetings of the ORMC are convened at least on quarterly basis.
Inspection Deptt of the bank undertakes onsite 'Risk Based Internal Audit' (RBIA) of the branches. Credit Proposals /
Limits beyond ¥ 3 Crores are subjected to Regular Credit Audit also.

Inspection, Reconciliation and Vigilance Departments are reporting matters relating to Housekeeping, Reconciliation
and Frauds etc. periodically to ACB. Regulatory reporting with regard to Operational Risk and Business Continuity
Plan is made timely & regularly. Bank is presently following ‘Basic Indicator Approach' for calculating Capital Charge
on Operational Risk. However, the bank is preparing to move to advance approaches of calculating capital charge

for Operational Risk.
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Table DF 10 -INTEREST RATE RISK IN THE BANKING BOOK (IRRBB)

Qualitative disclosures

The Interest rate risk in banking book is measured and managed by the bank through Traditional Gap for Earnings at
Risk (EaR) approach and modified Duration Gap for Economic Value (MVE) Approach. Interest rate risk in banking
book includes all advances and investments kept under Held to Maturity (HTM) portfolio. The strategies and process/
structure of organization /scope an nature of risk reporting/policies etc., are the same as reported under DF — 8. The
methodology adopted to measure the interest rate risk in banking book (IRRBB) is based on RBI suggested guidelines.

1.1

1.2

1.3

RBI has stipulated monitoring of interest rate risk through a Statement of Interest Rate Sensitivity (Reprising Gaps)
to be prepared at monthly intervals. Accordingly, ALCO reviews Interest Rate Sensitivity statement on monthly
basis and monitors the Earnings at Risk (EaR) which measures the change in net interest income of the Bank
due to parallel change in interest rate on both the assets and liabilities.

RBI has also stipulated to estimate the impact of change in interest rates on economic value of bank's assets and
liabilities through Interest Rate Sensitivity under Duration Gap Analysis (IRSD). Bank also carries out Duration
Gap analysis as stipulated by RBI at monthly/quarterly intervals. The impact of interest rate changes on the
Market Value of Equity (MVE) is monitored through Duration Gap Analysis. Using the above, Modified Duration
of liabilities and assets for each bucket is calculated and the impact on their value for a change in interest rate
by 200 bps is reckoned by adding up the net position is arrived to determine as to whether there will be a
positive increase in the value or otherwise.

As a prudential measure limit has been fixed for EaR as well as for Net Duration Gap of the assets and liabilities
and the same is monitored at regular intervals.

Quantitative Disclosures

a)

Earning at Risk

| At 100 bps change for gaps upto T year on average basis I 81.71 Crores

Modified Duration Gap for Economic Value (MVE) - 6.81%
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BASEL- 11l DISCLOSURES — FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31st MARCH 2014

Table DF 1 — SCOPE OF APPLICATION

Qualitative Disclosures

(a) List of group entities considered for consolidation The Bank does not belong to any group

(b) List of group entities not considered for consolidation both under the

accounting and regulatory scope of consolidation Not Applicable

Quantitative Disclosures

. o . L Not Applicable
(c) List of group entities considered for consolidation

(d) The aggregate amount of capital deficiencies in all subsidiaries which are

not included in the regulatory scope of consolidation i.e. that are deducted Not Applicable

(e) The aggregate amounts (e.g. current book value) of the bank’s total

interests in insurance entities, which are risk-weighted. Not Applicable

(f) Any restrictions or impediments on transfer of funds or regulatory capital

within the banking group Not Applicable

Table DF 2 - CAPITAL ADEQUACY
Qualitative disclosures

Bank is already geared up to adopt global best practices while implementing risk management stipulations that are
in conformity with the Basel 1l and Basel Ill framework.

Comprehensive risk management architecture is in place to address various issues concerning Basel Il and Basel Ill.
A quarterly review is carried out to assess the capital need of the Bank, keeping in view the anticipated growth in
Risk Weighted Assets, Market Risk and Operational Risk.

Bank maintains capital as a cushion towards the risk of loss in value of exposure, businesses, etc., to protect the
interest of stake holders, more particularly, depositor's.

Bank has system in place for assessing the capital requirements based on current and future business activities and
monitoring the same on an ongoing basis. The bank considers that capital availability is the central theme in the whole
process and its computation is relatable to policy, strategy, business level/composition, and Supervisory concern and
Disclosure issues. Towards this, bank has evolved a well laid down Internal Capital Adequacy Assessment Process
(ICAAP) framework and carries out capital calculation under Pillar-2 of Basel Il and also of Basel-lll at periodical
intervals besides Pillar 1 Capital calculation. The bank has formulated Stress Testing policy to measure impact of
adverse stress scenarios on the adequacy of capital at periodical intervals.

In line with RBI guidelines, the bank has adopted following approaches for implementation of New Capital Adequacy
Framework —

- Standardised Approach for credit risk
- Basic Indicator Approach for operational risk
- Standardised Duration Approach for market risk

Though the bank is presently implementing the above Approach, it has started its preparation for moving towards
advance approaches.

Capital requirements for credit risk:

Amt. - I/Crores

Portfolios subject to standardised approach @ 9% 4310.88

Securitisation exposures Nil
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Punjab & Sind Bank

Capital requirements for market risk: Standardised duration approach

Capital Charge on account of General Market Risk Amt. - ¥/ Crores
Interest rate risk 175.54

Foreign exchange risk (including gold) 0.77

Equity risk 37.25

Capital requirements for operational risk:

Amt. - %/ Crores

Basic indicator approach 298.78

Total and Tier 1 capital ratio for the Bank:

Total Capital to Risk Weighted Assets Ratio as per Basel IlI 11.04%
Common Equity Tier | Capital to Risk Weighted Assets Ratio as per Basel 11l 7.27%
Tier | Capital to Risk Weighted Assets Ratio as per Basel IlI 7.62%

Table DF 3 - CREDIT RISK : GENERAL DISCLOSURES

Qualitative Disclosures

A. DEFINITIONS OF PAST DUE AND IMPAIRED:

The Bank follows the basic prudential guidelines issued by the RBI on classification of Non-Performing Asset (NPA)
as under :

a) Interest and / or instalment of principal remain overdue for a period of more than 90 days in respect of a
term loan.

b) The account remains ‘out of order’ if the outstanding balance remains continuously in excess of sanctioned
limit / DP for more than 90 days and / or there are no credits continuously for 90 days as on the date of
Balance Sheet or credits are not enough to cover the interest debited during the same period, in respect of
Overdraft/Cash Credit (OD/CC).

c) The bill remains overdue for a period of more than 90 days in the case of bills purchased and discounted.

d) The installment of principal or interest thereon remains overdue for two crop seasons for short duration
crops.

e) The installment of principal or interest thereon remains overdue for one crop season for long duration crops.

f)  The amount of liquidity facility remains outstanding for more than 90 days, in respect of a securitization
transaction undertaken in terms of guidelines on securitization dated May 7, 2012.

g) In respect of derivative transactions, the overdue receivables representing positive mark-to-market value
of a derivative contract, if these remains unpaid for a period of 90 days from the specified due date for

repayment.

Here, * Overdue’ mean any amount due to the Bank under any credit facility, if it is not paid on the due date fixed
by the Bank.

Where the interest charged during any quarter is not serviced fully within 90 days from the end of the quarter, the
account is classified as Non-performing asset and ceases to generate income for the bank.

Besides above, Bank also follows the guidelines issued by RBI in respect of classification of assets under a) Restructured
accounts, b) Project under implementation involving time overrun, c) Post shipment Suppliers’ Credit. d) Export Project
Finance, e) Take over Finance, f) Govt. guaranteed Advance, g) Advance under Rehabilitation approved by BFIR / TLI,
h) Advances under Debt Waiver & Debt Relief Scheme 2009, i) Sale of Financial Assets to Securitization Company
/Reconstruction Company, j) Purchase/ Sale of Non-Performing Financial Assets, k) Up-gradation of accounts, )
Accounts regularized near about the Balance Sheet date etc.
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B. CREDIT RISK MANAGEMENT AND OBJECTIVES:

To effectively identify, assess, measure, and manage the credit risk exposure of the Bank, with a view to contain it
within desired limits in relation to the risk appetite of the Bank and commensurate with the availability of Capital. In

doing so,

the Bank’s Credit Risk philosophy aims at minimising risk and maintaining it within the levels which shall

ensure safety of the Bank’s financial resources, including stakeholders’ equity and, at the same time, also ensure a

steady and healthy financial growth.

STRATEGIC POLICY OF THE BANK - CREDIT RISK:

The Bank has a comprehensive and well defined Loan Policy which covers various aspects of strategic planning. The
loan policy of the Bank is reviewed from time to time, depending on requirements of the changes in loan portfolio
and general economic and market scenario. The loan policy is also subjected to a comprehensive review by the

Board at
| |
[ |

least once a year. The loan policy of the Bank addresses, among other things:

Exposure ceilings and prudential caps in different industry segments and borrower categories.
Pricing based on risk profile linked to credit ratings and/or retail segments.

Guidelines relating to procedures and systems for appraisal, sanction, and monitoring of loans and modes
of dispensation of credit.

Credit Rating framework.
Inspection mechanism and compliance of regulatory and policy guidelines.

CREDIT RISK MANAGEMENT ARCHITECTURE:

TOOLS

The organizational structure of the Bank for Credit Risk Management function has the Board of Directors
at the Apex level that has the overall oversight of management of risks.

The Risk Management Committee (RMC) which is the sub-committee of the Board headed by the Chairman
& Managing Director devises the policy and strategy for integrated risk management including credit risk.

At the operational level, the Credit Risk Management Committee (CRMC) manages the credit risk. The main
function includes implementation of credit risk management policies approved by the Board, monitoring
credit risk on a bank wide basis, recommending to the board for its approval all policies relating to credit
risk management, prudential limits on credit exposures, portfolio management, loan products etc. There is a
structured and standardized credit approval process including a comprehensive credit appraisal procedure.
In order to assess the credit risk associated with any financing proposal, the Bank assesses a variety of risks
relating to the borrower and the relevant industry.

The Risk Management Department (RMD) headed by the General Manger, measures, controls and manages
credit risk on bank wide basis within the limits set by the Board and enforces compliance with risk parameters
set by Board/RMC/CRMC. The RMD is duly supported by Credit Risk Management Cell, Asset Liability
Management Cell and Operations Risk Management Cell.

The Inspection Department as well as Credit Monitoring Department headed by a General Manager monitor
the quality of loan portfolio identifies problems and takes steps to correct deficiencies. Loan review / credit

audit is undertaken by the Credit Audit function.

USED FOR CREDIT RISK MANAGEMENT / MITIGATION

Credit Approving Authority-Delegation of Powers. The Bank has a well-defined scheme of delegation of
powers with a multi-tier risk based approving system, which is reviewed periodically and revised as and
when necessary to meet the compulsions of business environment.

Prudential Limits on various aspects of credit / investment like Single / Group borrower limits for various
types of borrowers are in place.

Risk Rating/Pricing - The bank has introduced rating models for various segments, which serve as a single
point indicator of diverse risk factors of a counter party and support credit and pricing decisions.

Credit Audit/Loan review mechanism is an effective tool for constantly evaluating the quality of loan book
and to bring about qualitative improvements in credit administration
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